
 
 

SEPTEMBER 25, 2019 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

5:00 P.M. Closed Session; 6:00 P.M. Regular Session 
201 N. Broadway, Escondido, CA 92025 

 

 MAYOR Paul McNamara 

 DEPUTY MAYOR Consuelo Martinez 

 COUNCIL MEMBERS Olga Diaz 
  John Masson 
  Michael Morasco 

 CITY MANAGER Jeffrey Epp 

  CITY CLERK Zack Beck 

 CITY ATTORNEY Michael McGuinness 

 DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Bill Martin 

 DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING SERVICES Julie Procopio 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ELECTRONIC MEDIA: 
Electronic media which members of the public wish to be used during any public comment period should be submitted 
to the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the Council meeting at which it is to be shown.   
 
The electronic media will be subject to a virus scan and must be compatible with the City’s existing system.  The media 
must be labeled with the name of the speaker, the comment period during which the media is to be played and contact 
information for the person presenting the media.   

 
The time necessary to present any electronic media is considered part of the maximum time limit provided to speakers.  
City staff will queue the electronic information when the public member is called upon to speak.  Materials shown to 
the Council during the meeting are part of the public record and may be retained by the Clerk.   
 
The City of Escondido is not responsible for the content of any material presented, and the presentation and content 
of electronic media shall be subject to the same responsibilities regarding decorum and presentation as are applicable 
to live presentations. 



 

September 25, 2019 
5:00 P.M. Meeting 

 

Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL:  Diaz, Martinez, Masson, Morasco, McNamara 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

In addition to speaking during particular agenda items, the public may address the Council on any item which 

is not on the agenda provided the item is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council.  State law 
prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such items, but the matter may be referred to the City 

Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please refer to the back page of the agenda for 
instructions.) Speakers are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications. 

CLOSED SESSION: (COUNCIL/RRB) 

I. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-- EXISTING LITIGATION (Government Code 

54956.9(d)(1)) 

a. Case Name: Crown Castle Fiber LLC V. City of Escondido, U.S. District Court 
Case No: ’19-CV-1056-DMS (WVG) 

II. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION/SIGNIFICANT 

EXPOSURE (Government Code 54956.9(d)(2))  

a. Consideration of Opposing the Wireless Infrastructure Association’s Petition for Declaratory 

Ruling with the Federal Communications Commission, In the Matter of Accelerating Wireless 
Broadband Deployment by Removing Barriers to Infrastructure Investment (WT Docket No. 

17-79).  

III. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54956.8) 

a. Property:  1201 E. Washington Avenue, APN 230-141-01 
City Negotiator:  Jeffrey Epp, City Manager 
Negotiating Parties: KB Homes 
Under Negotiation: Review Unsolicited Offer 



b. Property:  APNs 233-022-21 & 233-022-23 
City Negotiator:  Jeffrey Epp, City Manager 
Negotiating Parties: 555 W. Grand LLC 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Agreement 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 



 

September 25, 2019 
6:00 P.M. Meeting 

 

Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

MOMENT OF REFLECTION: 

 
FLAG SALUTE   

 

ROLL CALL:  Diaz, Martinez, Masson, Morasco, McNamara 
 

PROCLAMATIONS: National Neighborhood Day  
   San Diego Hunger Awareness 

 

PRESENTATIONS: San Diego Gas & Electric Update  
   San Diego County Water Authority  

 
CLOSED SESSION REPORT 

 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 

items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please 

refer to the back page of the agenda for instructions.) NOTE:  Depending on the number of requests, comments 
may be reduced to less than 3 minutes per speaker and limited to a total of 15 minutes. Any remaining speakers 

will be heard during Oral Communications at the end of the meeting. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

Items on the Consent Calendar are not discussed individually and are approved in a single motion.  However, 
Council members always have the option to have an item considered separately, either on their own request 

or at the request of staff or a member of the public. 

1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/RRB) 

  



2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council) 

Request the City Council approve the City Council and Housing Successor Agency warrant numbers: 
 

  334146 – 334356 dated September 4, 2019 

  334357 – 334565 dated September 11, 2019 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Sheryl Bennett) 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None Scheduled 

4. FISCAL YEAR 2019 REGIONAL REALIGNMENT RESPONSE GRANT AND BUDGET 
ADJUSTMENT - 

Request the City Council approve authorizing the Escondido Police Department to accept a Fiscal Year 

2019 Regional Realignment Response Grant funds in the amount of $100,000; authorize the Chief of 
Police or his designee to execute grant documents on behalf of the City; and approve budget 

adjustments needed to spend grant funds.  

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Craig Carter) 

5. FISCAL YEAR 2019-20 STATE OF CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY SELECTIVE 
TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM (STEP) GRANT AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - 

Request the City Council approve authorizing the Escondido Police Department to accept a Fiscal Year 
2019-20 California Office of Traffic Safety (OTS) Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) Grant 

in the amount of $454,000; authorize the Chief of Police or his designee to execute grant documents 

on behalf of the City; and approve budget adjustments needed to spend grant funds.  

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Craig Carter) 

6. FISCAL YEAR 2019-20 STATE OF CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF TRAFFIC PEDESTRIAN AND 

BICYCLE SAFETY PROGRAM GRANT AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - 

Request the City Council approve authorizing the Escondido Police Department to accept a Fiscal Year 
2019-20 California Office of Traffic Safety (OTS) Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety Program Grant in the 

amount of $25,000; authorize the Chief of Police or his designee to execute grant documents on behalf 

of the City; and approve budget adjustments needed to spend grant funds.  

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Police Department: Craig Carter) 

7. RUBBERIZED PAVEMENT GRANT PROGRAM APPLICATION - 

Request the City Council approve authorizing the Director of Engineering Services or her designee to 
submit an application(s) for the Rubberized Pavement Grant Program funds for an amount up to 

$350,000 from the California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle); and if 

awarded, to accept the grant funds and complete the necessary documents required by CalRecycle for 
participation in the Rubberized Pavement Program in conjunction with the Citywide annual pavement 

maintenance program. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Engineering Services Department: Julie Procopio) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-140 
  



8. BID AWARD FOR THE PURCHASE OF LIVE RAINBOW TROUT - 
Request the City Council approve accepting the second lowest responsive and responsible bid from Mt. 

Lassen Trout to purchase live Rainbow Trout by unit price for stocking at Dixon Lake and Lake 
Wohlford; and authorize the Deputy City Manager to execute a Purchasing Contract with Mt. Lassen 

Trout effective September 25, 2019 through June 30, 2020, with the option to renew the Contract on 

an annual fiscal year basis not to exceed a total of four consecutive years. Contract renewal options 
are contingent upon budget appropriations and satisfactory performance by the contractor. The unit 

price bid for live rainbow trout is $4.44 per pound with an estimated purchase quantity of 55,000 

pounds per year for an estimated annual amount of $244,200. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Sheryl Bennett) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-137 

 

CONSENT RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/RRB) 

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/RRB at a previous 

City Council/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting.  (The title of Ordinances listed on the Consent Calendar are 
deemed to have been read and further reading waived.) 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

9. APPEAL OF PLANNING COMMISSION DECISION TO APPROVE A CONDITIONAL USE 

PERMIT FOR A WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITY FOR PTI-T-MOBILE (PHG 18-0016) 
Request the City Council deny the appeal and uphold the Planning Commission decision to approve the 

project and adopt Resolution No. 2019-148. Staff has suggested two alternative options: Option A) 
Affirm the appeal, set aside the decision of the Planning Commission with findings reached by the City 

Council to deny the project, and adopt Resolution No. 2019-149; or Option B) Deny the appeal, but 

modify the decision of the Planning Commission (with or without amended conditions).   

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin) 

A) RESOLUTION NO. 2019-148  B) RESOLUTION NO. 2019-149 

10. DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT AND MASTER AND PRECISE DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN FOR THE QUINCE STREET SENIOR HOUSING PROJECT (PHG 17-0028) - 

Request the City Council approve an amendment to the Downtown Specific Plan and a new Planned 
Development for the Quince Street Senior Housing Project located at 220 N. Quince Street (APN 229-

331-10-00).  

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin) 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-12 (First Reading and Introduction) 

11. TAX EQUITY AND FISCAL RESPONSIBILITY ACT HEARING FOR HEALTHRIGHT 360 

FACILITIES - 
Request the City Council approve the issuance of one or more series of revenue bonds in an aggregate 

principal amount not to exceed $65,000,000 by the California Municipal Finance Authority, of which 
approximately $6,150,000 will be allocable to projects in the City of Escondido and the remaining 

amount will be allocable to projects in other cities.  

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-141 



 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

12. HOUSING RELATED PARKS PROGRAM PROJECT UPDATE - 

Request the City Council receive and file an update on recreational facilities rehabilitation and 

improvements built with Housing Related Parks Program (HRP) grant funds.  

Staff Recommendation: Receive and File (Public Works Department: Joseph Goulart and 
Communications & Community Services Department: Joanna Axelrod) 

 

WORKSHOP 

13. COMMUNITY ADVISORY GROUP UPDATE - 

The workshop will serve as an update on progress in forming five Community Advisory Groups and 

announce future meeting dates. 

Staff Recommendation: None (City Manager's Office: William L. Wolfe) 

 

FUTURE AGENDA 

14. FUTURE AGENDA - 

The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the City 
Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these future agenda 

items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying questions, brief 
announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an item when it is discussed. 

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Zack Beck) 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

CITY MANAGER'S WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital Improvement 

Projects, Public Safety and Community Development. This report is also available on the City’s website, 

www.escondido.org. 

 WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 

jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 
items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. Speakers 

are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications.  

file:///C:/Users/RVAQuestys/Downloads/www.escondido.org


ADJOURNMENT 

 

UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE 
Date Day Time Meeting Type Location 

October 2 - - No Meeting - 

October 9 Wednesday 5:00 & 6:00 p.m. Regular Meeting Council Chambers 

October 16 - - No Meeting - 

October 23 Wednesday 5:00 & 6:00 p.m. Regular Meeting Council Chambers 



TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL 
 

The public may address the City Council on any agenda item. Please complete a Speaker’s form and give it to 
the City Clerk.  Submission of Speaker forms prior to the discussion of an item is highly encouraged.  Comments 

are generally limited to 3 minutes. 
 

If you wish to speak concerning an item not on the agenda, you may do so under “Oral Communications.”  
Please complete a Speaker’s form as noted above. 
 

Nomination forms for Community Awards are available at the Escondido City Clerk’s Office or at 

http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx 
 

Handouts for the City Council should be given to the City Clerk.  To address the Council, use the podium in the 
center of the Chambers, STATE YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD and speak directly into the microphone. 
 

AGENDA, STAFF REPORTS AND BACK-UP MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE: 
 

• Online at http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx 

• In the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall  
• Placed in the Council Chambers (See: City Clerk/Minutes Clerk) immediately before and during the 

Council meeting. 
 

AVAILABILITY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS AFTER AGENDA POSTING:  Any supplemental writings 
or documents provided to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 

inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located at 201 N. Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council 

Chambers while the meeting is in session. 
 

LIVE BROADCAST 
 

Council meetings are broadcast live on Cox Cable Channel 19 and U-verse Channel 99 – Escondido Gov TV.  
They can also be viewed the following Sunday and Monday evenings at 6:00 p.m. on those same channels.  

The Council meetings are also available live via the Internet by accessing the City’s website at 
www.escondido.org, and clicking the “Live Streaming –City Council Meeting now in progress” button on the 

home page. 
 

Please turn off all cellular phones and pagers while the meeting is in session. 
 

The City Council is scheduled to meet the first four Wednesdays 
of the month at 5:00 in Closed Session and 6:00 in Open Session. 

(Verify schedule with City Clerk’s Office) 
Members of the Council also sit as the Successor Agency to the Community Development 

Commission, Escondido Joint Powers Financing Authority, 

 and the Mobilehome Rent Review Board. 
 

CITY HALL HOURS OF OPERATION 
Monday-Friday 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

 
If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact our ADA Coordinator at 

839-4643.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

 

Listening devices are available for the hearing impaired – please see the City Clerk. 

 

http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx
http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx
file:///C:/Users/RVAQuestys/Downloads/www.escondido.org


 
 

 
Consent Item No. 1  September 25, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 

A F F I D A V I T S 
 

OF 
 

I T E M  
 

P O S T I N G 



 

Staff Report - Council 

Consent Item No. 2    September 25, 2019   File No. 0400-40 

 

SUBJECT:  Approval of Warrants 
 

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Request approval for City Council and Housing Successor Agency warrant numbers: 
 
334146 – 334356 dated September 4, 2019 
334357 – 334565 dated September 11, 2019 
 

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 
 
The total amount of the warrants for the following periods are as follows: 
  
August 29 – September 4, 2019, is $1,828,867.03 
September 5 – September 11, 2019, is $2,084,926.73 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Escondido Municipal Code Section 10-49 states that warrants or checks may be issued and paid 
prior to audit by the City Council, provided the warrants or checks are certified and approved by the 
Director of Finance as conforming to the current budget. These warrants or checks must then be 
ratified and approved by the City Council at the next regular Council meeting. 



 
 
Consent Item No. 3  September 25, 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A P P R O V A L 
 

O F 
 

M I N U T E S 
 



 

Staff Report - Council 

Consent Item No. 4   September 25, 2019   File No. 0480-70 
 

SUBJECT:  Fiscal Year 2019 Regional Realignment Response Grant and Budget Adjustment 
 

DEPARTMENT: Police Department  
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is requested that the City Council authorize the Escondido Police Department to accept the FY 
2019 Regional Realignment Response Grant funds in the amount of $100,000; authorize the Chief of 
Police or his designee to execute grant documents on behalf of the City; and approve budget 
adjustments needed to spend grant funds. 
 
FISCAL ANALYSIS:  
 
This action will have no impact on the FY 2019-20 General Fund Budget.  Grant funds will be used for 
police officer overtime and associated overhead. 
 
PREVIOUS ACTION:  
 
On July 11, 2018, the City Council approved $119,785 from the Regional Realignment Response 
Grant. These grant funds covered police officer overtime and associated overhead. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Escondido Police Department has been allocated funds under the FY 2019 Regional 
Realignment Response Grant.  This funding was provided by the State of California Board of 
Community Corrections through Assembly Bill 118 and Senate Bill 89, initiatives to reduce state 
prison overcrowding and support local law enforcement efforts to efficiently manage offenders and 
parole-violators. Escondido’s allocation is used to support regional and local suppression operations. 
Funds must be used for police officer overtime and associated overhead.   
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 
 

Craig Carter, Chief of Police 

9/9/2019 2:17 p.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Budget Adjustment 





 

Staff Report - Council 

Consent Item No. 5   September 25, 2019   File No. 0480-70 
 
SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2019-20 State of California Office of Traffic Safety Selective Traffic 

Enforcement Program (STEP) Grant and Budget Adjustment 
 

DEPARTMENT: Police Department 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is requested that the City Council authorize the Escondido Police Department to accept the FY 
2019-20 California Office of Traffic Safety (OTS) Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) 
Grant in the amount of $454,000; authorize the Chief of Police or his designee to execute grant 
documents on behalf of the City; and approve budget adjustments needed to spend grant funds. 
 
FISCAL ANALYSIS:  
 
This action will have no impact on the FY 2019-20 General Fund Budget.  Grant funds will be used for 
salary and benefits for a full-time DUI traffic officer.  The grant will also fund overtime expenses 
related to traffic safety enforcement activities and traffic safety supplies.      
 
PREVIOUS ACTION:  
 
The City Council accepted a FY 2018-19 California Office of Traffic Safety Selective Enforcement 
Grant in the amount of $410,000 on September 19, 2018. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Escondido Police Department received a FY 2019-20 California Office of Traffic Safety STEP 
Grant in the amount of $454,000.  Grant funds will enhance traffic safety programs from October 1, 
2019, through September 30, 2020.  The Police Department will use grant funds to pay for salary and 
benefits for a full-time traffic enforcement officer, traffic safety supplies, and for police officer overtime 
expenses for DUI checkpoints, saturation patrols, and traffic safety enforcement details. 
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 
 

Craig Carter, Chief of Police 

9/9/2019 2:17 p.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Budget Adjustment 





 

Staff Report - Council 

Consent Item No. 6   September 25, 2019   File No. 0480-70 

 

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2019-20 State of California Office of Traffic Safety Pedestrian and 
Bicycle Safety Program Grant and Budget Adjustment 

 

DEPARTMENT: Police Department 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is requested that the City Council authorize the Escondido Police Department to accept the FY 
2019-20 California Office of Traffic Safety (OTS) Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety Program Grant in the 
amount of $25,000; authorize the Chief of Police or his designee to execute grant documents on 
behalf of the City; and approve budget adjustments needed to spend grant funds. 
 
FISCAL ANALYSIS:  
 

This action will have no impact on the FY 2019-20 General Fund Budget.  Grant funds will be used for 
police officer overtime expenses related to traffic safety education activities and traffic safety supplies. 
 
PREVIOUS ACTION:  
 
The City Council accepted a FY 2018-19 Office of Traffic Safety Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety 
Program Grant in the amount of $25,000 on September 19, 2018. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Police Department received a FY 2019-20 State of California Office of Traffic Safety Pedestrian 
and Bicycle Safety Program Grant in the amount of $25,000. Grant funds will enhance traffic safety 
programs from October 1, 2019, through September 30, 2020. The Police Department will use grant 
funds to pay for police officer overtime for educational programs related to bicycle and pedestrian 
safety. Grant funds will also cover bicycle helmets, educational materials, and safety supplies for 
community members.  
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 
 

Craig Carter, Chief of Police 

9/9/2019 2:17 p.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Budget Adjustment 





 

Staff Report - Council 

Consent Item No. 7   September 25, 2019   File No. 0480-70 

 

SUBJECT:  Rubberized Pavement Grant Program Application 
 

DEPARTMENT: Engineering Services Department 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2019-140 authorizing the Director of 
Engineering Services or her designee to submit an application(s)  for the Rubberized Pavement Grant 
Program (Program) funds for an amount up to $350,000 from the California Department of Resources 
Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle); and if awarded, to accept the grant funds and complete the 
necessary documents required by CalRecycle for participation in the Rubberized Pavement Program 
in conjunction with the Citywide annual pavement maintenance program.  
 

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 
 

Grant funds will leverage funds programmed for the Citywide annual pavement program in order to 
use Rubberized Asphalt Concrete (RAC) products in addition to traditional asphalt paving materials. 
Grant awards are based on a flat rate of $1.00 per square yard of installed rubberized chip seal 
material. Costs must be incurred for paving projects before April 1, 2022. 
 
PREVIOUS ACTION: 
 
On October 22, 2014, the City Council authorized the Public Works Director to apply for 2014 
Rubberized Pavement Grant Program funds. The City of Escondido (City) received an award not to 
exceed $147,144. 
 
On October 19, 2016, the City Council authorized the Public Works Director to apply for 2016 
Rubberized Pavement Grant Program funds. The City received an award not to exceed $350,000. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
CalRecycle administers the Program in order to promote use of recycled-content surfacing products 
derived from waste tires generated in California, and decrease the adverse environmental impacts 
created by unlawful disposal and stockpiling of waste tires. Public Resources Code sections 40000 et 
seq. authorize CalRecycle to administer various grant programs in furtherance of the State of 
California’s (State) efforts to reduce, recycle and reuse solid waste generated within the State, 
thereby preserving landfill capacity and protecting public health, safety and the environment. 



Rubberized Pavement Grant Program Application 
September 25, 2019 
Page 2 

RAC products are a proven road paving material that have been used in California since the 1970s. It 
is made by blending ground tire rubber with asphalt binder and conventional aggregate materials. 
Benefits include cost effectiveness, durability, safety, noise reduction, and an environmentally friendly 
alternative to traditional road paving materials. 
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 
 

Julie Procopio, Director of Engineering Services 

9/18/2019 3:29 p.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution No. 2019-140 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-140 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL CITY 
OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING 
THE SUBMITTAL OF AN APPLICATION(S) TO 
CALRECYCLE FOR RUBBERIZED PAVEMENT 
GRANT PROGRAM  
 

 WHEREAS, Public Resources Code sections 48000, et seq., authorize the 

Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (‘CalRecycle”) to administer various 

grant programs (“Grants”) in furtherance of the State of California’s (“State”) efforts to 

reduce, recycle, and reuse solid waste generated within the State thereby, preserving 

landfill capacity and protecting public health and safety and the environment; and 

 WHEREAS, in furtherance of this authority, CalRecycle is required to establish 

procedures governing the application, awarding, and management of the Grants; and 

 WHEREAS, the CalRecycle grant application procedure require, among other 

things, an applicant’s governing body to declare by resolution certain authorizations 

related to the administration of CalRecycle grants. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Escondido, as follows: 

1. That the above recitations are true. 

2. That the City Council authorizes the submittal of an application(s) to 

CalRecycle for the Rubberized Pavement Grant Program. 

3. That the Director of Engineering Services, or his/her designee, is hereby 

authorized and empowered to execute, in the name of the City of Escondido, all grant 

documents, including but not limited to, applications, agreements, amendments and 

requests for payment, necessary to secure grant funds and implement the approved 

grant project. 

4. That these authorizations are effective for five (5) years from the date of 

adoption of this Resolution.  



 

Staff Report - Council 

Consent Item No. 8   September 25, 2019   File No. 0470-35 
 
SUBJECT:  Bid Award for the Purchase of Live Rainbow Trout 
 

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2019-137 to approve the following: 
  

1. Accept the second lowest responsive and responsible bid from Mt. Lassen Trout to 
purchase live Rainbow Trout by unit price for stocking at Dixon Lake and Lake Wohlford; 
and 

 
2.  Authorize the Deputy City Manager to execute a Purchasing Contract (“Contract”) with Mt. 

Lassen Trout effective September 25, 2019, through June 30, 2020, with the option to 
renew the Contract on an annual fiscal year basis not to exceed a total of four consecutive 
years. Contract renewal options are contingent upon budget appropriations and satisfactory 
performance by the contractor. 

 
 

FISCAL ANALYSIS:  
 

In 2017, a Purchasing Contract was awarded to Calaveras Trout Farm for delivery of trout at a rate of 
$3.89 per pound, with annual increases not to exceed 3 percent.  In FY 2019, given these allowed 
price increases, the contract price with Calaveras Trout Farm would be $4.13 per pound.  However, 
due to circumstances beyond the control of Calaveras Trout Farm, they will not be able to supply 
Rainbow Trout to the City of Escondido (“City”) for the remaining years of the contract because their 
fish stock had to be released.   
 
To ensure the timely delivery of trout for stocking Lake Wohlford and Dixon Lake, staff recommends 
awarding the new contract to Mt. Lassen Trout, the second lowest bidder that submitted a responsive 
bid in 2017.  Mt. Lassen Trout’s original bid price was $4.18 per pound with 3 percent annual 
increases similar to the bid of Calaveras Trout Farm.  Including these annual price increases, the unit 
price bid from Mt. Lassen Trout will be $4.44 per pound, with an estimated purchase quantity of 
55,000 pounds per year for an estimated annual amount of $244,200.  
 
PREVIOUS ACTION:  
 
On October 11, 2017, the City Council approved the bid award for stocking live Rainbow Trout to 
Calaveras Trout Farm, the lowest responsive and responsible bidder to City Request for Bid (“RFB”) 
#18-03.  Calaveras Trout Farm has successfully supplied fish to the City for the past two fiscal years. 
Due to circumstances beyond the control of the Calaveras Trout Farm, all of their fish stock had to be 



Bid Award for the Purchase of Live Rainbow Trout 
September 25, 2019 
Page 2 

released.  On August 28, 2019, the City was notified via email that Calaveras Trout Farm was unable 
to supply live Rainbow Trout to the City per the Contract.  The City’s Purchasing department 
contacted the second lowest responsive and responsible bidder for RFB #18-03, Mt. Lassen Trout. 
They have agreed to supply live Rainbow Trout to the City at the same unit price on their original bid, 
including allowable annual contract price increases. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City operates and maintains Dixon Lake and Lake Wohlford.  These lakes offer various outdoor 
activities including fishing. This Contract to purchase live Rainbow Trout is necessary to stock fish at 
these lakes. Load sizes shall be between 1,500 and 6,000 pounds per lake, and delivery will be 
required approximately fifteen times during the fishing season, which runs November through April.  
The total quantity of fish to be delivered will be up to a maximum of 55,000 pounds between the two 
lakes.  Quantities required during renewal years may vary taking into consideration the City’s needs 
and budget appropriations. On August 24, 2017, the City duly published a formal request for bids. 
Three (3) competitive bids were received and opened on September 7, 2017; the bid results were as 
follows: 
 
  Calaveras Trout Farm     $3.89 per pound 
  Mt. Lassen Trout      $4.18 per pound 
  Chaulk Mound Trout Ranch   $5.50 per pound 
 
On October 11, 2017, the Contract was awarded to Calaveras Trout Farm, who successfully supplied 
live Rainbow Trout to the City for two (2) consecutive contract years ending June 30, 2019.  
Calaveras Trout Farm notified the City on August 28, 2019, that they would be unable to provide live 
Rainbow Trout to the City for the foreseeable future.  Due to this circumstance, Staff recommends 
awarding the Contract to Mt. Lassen Trout; the second lowest responsive and responsible bidder that 
conformed to the City’s bid specifications and requirements.  
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 
 

Sheryl Bennett, Deputy City Manager/Admin. Svs.   Joan Ryan, Director of Finance 

9/18/2019 3:02 p.m.        9/18/2019 4:02 p.m. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Resolution No. 2019-137 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-137 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE DEPUTY CITY 
MANAGER, TO EXECUTE, ON BEHALF OF 
THE CITY, A PURCHASING CONTRACT 
WITH MT. LASSEN TROUT FOR THE 
PURCHASE OF LIVE RAINBOW TROUT 

WHEREAS, the City of Escondido (“City”) operates and maintains Dixon Lake 

and Lake Wohlford; and 

WHEREAS, the purchase of live Rainbow Trout is necessary to stock fish at the 

lakes to offer fishing activies; and 

WHEREAS, the Calaveras Trout Farm supplied the City with live Rainbow Trout 

for two (2) consecutive contract periods, but advised the the City in August 2019 that 

they are unable to provide live Rainbow Trout for the foreseeable future; and 

WHEREAS, Mt. Lassen Trout was determined to be the second lowest 

responsive and responsible bidder that conformed to the City’s bid specifications and 

requirements; and 

WHEREAS, Mt Lassen Trout has agreed to supply the City with live Rainbow 

Trout at their original unit price bid, with allowable increases for two contract periods; 

and  

WHEREAS, the Deputy City Manager recommends awarding a Purchasing 

Contract (“Contract”) to Mt. Lassen Trout effective September 25, 2019, through June 



30, 2020, in the estimated amount of $244,200, with four one-year renewal options for 

the purchase of live Rainbow Trout; and 

WHEREAS, the Contract renewal options are conditional upon budget 

appropriations and satisfactory performance by the contractor; and  

WHEREAS, price increases under the Contract renewal options are not to 

exceed three percent (3%) per each renewal year, subject to approval by the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Contract amount is an estimated annual cost based on 

anticipated quantities; and 

WHEREAS, this City Council desires at this time and deems it to be in the best 

public interest to accept the recommendations by the Deputy City Manager, and award 

the bid to Mt. Lassen Trout. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows: 

1. That the above recitations are true. 

2. That the City Council authorizes the Deputy City Manager to execute, on 

behalf of the City, a Contract for the remainder of this fiscal year with renewal options 

for the purchase of live Rainbow Trout in a form approved by the City Attorney. 

 



Staff Report - Council

Public Hearing Item No.9 September 25, 2019 File No. 0810-20

SUBJECT: Appeal of Planning Commission Decision to Approve a Conditional Use Permit 
for a Wireless Communication Facility for PTI-T-Mobile (PHG 18-0016)

DEPARTMENT: Community Development Department, Planning Division

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council deny the appeal and uphold the Planning Commission decision to 
approve the project and adopt Resolution No. 2019-148. 

Alternative Options:

Option A: Affirm the appeal, set aside the decision of the Planning Commission with findings 
reached by the City Council to deny the project, and adopt Resolution No. 2019-149. 

Option B: Deny the appeal, but modify the decision of the Planning Commission (with or 
without amended conditions).

Whether the City Council decides to uphold the Planning Commission’s denial and approve the 
application (with or without amended conditions), or affirm the appeal and deny the application, 
the City Council should state the finding(s) along with reasons for its decision without 
prejudice.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

The application consists of a Conditional Use Permit (“CUP”) to construct a wireless communications 
facility consisting of twelve (12) panel antennas, twelve (12) remote radio units, and one (1) 
microwave dish antenna concealed within a new forty (40) foot tall stealth Monopine, and associated 
ground-mounted mechanical equipment within a twelve (12) foot by twenty (20) foot CMU block 
enclosure in the R-1-10 Zone (Single Family Residential, with 10,000 SF minimum lot size).  The 
Planning Commission considered the application and voted to approve the project on July 23, 2019.  
The staff report and meeting minutes from that hearing are included as Attachments 2 and 3. The 
Office of the City Clerk received a timely filed appeal of the Planning Commission decision on August 
1, 2019. The appeal, submitted by Mike Hendel on behalf of approximately fifteen (15) neighbors, is 
included with this report as Attachment 1.  The appeal stated objections to the Planning 
Commission’s approval.  Staff’s responses to the objections are provided in the Analysis section to 
the report.  



T-Mobile Monopine Appeal (PHG18-0016)
September 25, 2019
Page 2

LOCATION:

The 4.52-acre is located at 2534 East El Norte Parkway (APN 225-270-63-00), on the north side of 
East El Norte Parkway between East Tangelo Place and Sungold Way.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

The action before the City Council is to consider a timely filed appeal of the Planning Commission’s 
approval of the project.  Application fees for entitlement permit services, including appeals of planning 
decisions, are collected at the time an application is submitted.  These fees were established by the 
City Council to more fully recover the costs of staff time spent reviewing and processing the 
applications.  City staff time to analyze the project and the basis of appeal.  There is no fiscal impact 
associated with the staff recommendation. 

PLANNING COMMISSION DECISION AND SUMMARY:

On July 23, 2019, the Planning Commission considered the project and received public testimony.  
The property owner and the applicant spoke in favor of the project indicating that the proposed facility 
was an allowed use in this zone and that the antenna was needed in this approximate location to fill 
gaps in coverage.  One (1) business owner occupying the site spoke to Code Enforcement-related 
issues the neighbors had raised. Five (5) neighbors spoke against the project and expressed 
concerns regarding radio frequency (“RF”) emissions, the intensification of uses, and the general 
condition of the site. The owners of eleven (11) neighboring properties, only some of whom spoke, 
provided letters detailing specific issues which were attached to the Planning Commission staff 
report.   

The Planning Commission’s preliminary review of the project resulted in a lengthy discussion about 
the activities occurring on the subject property and any health-related impacts associated with the 
proposed wireless communication facility. The Planning Commission’s deliberations resulted in 
comments/suggestions regarding the occupancy and use intensity of the property.  Initially the 
Planning Commission expressed deep concerns with the approval of the project and spent a 
considerable amount of time discussing whether the proposed CUP would exacerbate and expand 
the deterioration of bordering land uses or have a special effect on an area.  The Planning 
Commission ultimately stated that the project’s special conditions would help ensure a more lawful 
operation of the site.  As conditioned by the Planning Commission, all code violations must be 
addressed prior to building permit issuance.  This would ensure that corrective measures are in place 
to make the site more compatible with the aesthetics, mass, bulk, and character of existing and 
potential uses on adjoining properties in the general vicinity.  With respect to RF emissions and any 
health-related risks, the Planning Commission determined that RF emissions cannot serve as a basis 
for denying or regulating wireless facilities to the extent that such facilities comply with the Federal 
Communications Commission (“FCC”) regulations. At the conclusion of the deliberations, the 
Planning Commission voted 5-2 to approve the proposed CUP based on findings that the wireless 
communication facility was suitable for the site and surrounding neighborhood and that the special 



T-Mobile Monopine Appeal (PHG18-0016)
September 25, 2019
Page 3

conditions would re-establish lawful occupancy and use intensity, which would benefit the 
surrounding neighborhood.

The Planning Commission staff report and Planning Commission meeting minutes are provided as 
Attachments 1 and 2, respectively.

BACKGROUND:

The subject property was annexed to the City in 1988.  Prior to the time of annexation, there existed 
certain non-residential uses on the property in addition to an existing residence. At the time of 
annexation, the property became subject to a residential zoning designation of R-1-10, which 
rendered the non-residential uses nonconforming. On May 13, 1988, a Certificate of Nonconforming 
Use was recorded honoring the scope and extent of land use activities in place at the time of 
annexation. With the construction of East El Norte Parkway in 2007, the property’s original 4.52 acres 
was bifurcated so that 0.98 acres of the parcel remained south of El Norte Parkway and 2.56 acres 
remained to the north. 

A Conditional Use Permit (“CUP”) is required in order to construct a wireless communication facility 
within a residential zone, in accordance with Article 34 (Communication Antennas) of the Escondido 
Zoning Code. Per Article 61, Division 3, new, conforming uses can be placed on nonconforming 
properties.  A CUP was issued by the Planning Commission, authorizing the project, on July 23, 
2019.  The appellant requests that the City Council overturn the Planning Commission’s approval of 
the CUP.  The City Council, in its de novo review of this appeal, must determine whether the 
proposed project meets the findings required for a CUP.  The City Council may uphold the appeal or 
uphold the decision of the Planning Commission, in whole or in part, based upon these findings.
 
ANALYSIS:

1. General Plan / Zoning

The General Plan land-use designation for the subject site is Suburban (S), requiring single-family 
residential development. The zoning is R-1-10 (10,000 SF minimum lot size). 

2. Site Modifications and Site Standards

The permit request consists of a modification to a previously recorded Certificate of Nonconformity.  
The Project proposal includes the following the construction of a wireless antenna array disguised as 
a faux pine tree and associated ground mounted equipment. The proposed use for a wireless 
communication facility within a residential zone is allowed with approval of a CUP in accordance with 
Article 34 (Communication Antennas) of the Escondido Zoning Code. The subject site is zoned 
residential with numerous nonconforming uses allowed on site. Article 61, Division 3, allows 
conforming uses to be placed on nonconforming properties. The 1988 Certificate of Nonconformity 
allows for other uses of the property, which may be permitted by the residential zoning so long as 



T-Mobile Monopine Appeal (PHG18-0016)
September 25, 2019
Page 4

they do not contribute in any way to the extension, enlargement or increase intensity of the uses 
described in the Certificate’s Exhibit B. The physical/aesthetic aspects of this project include:

 Site Orientation: Integrated into the existing landscaping in front of the main residence
 Buffer: Existing trees, structures and a solid perimeter fence
 Topography: The highest point on the property is the northeastern corner closest to

Hamlin Court. The proposed monopine will be installed at a lower area
between the existing Building A and El Norte Parkway.

 Fencing: The property is enclosed with a chain link fence and slats at six (6) feet in
height (maximum height allowable in the R-1 zone)

 Stealth Design The antenna pole is clad in faux tree bark and faux pine foliage covers it to
forty-five (45) feet in height to approximate a pine and integrate with other
existing trees onsite of similar height 

3. Site Operations 

In general, homes are more sensitive to changes that may result in increased noise, vibrations, or 
increased levels of traffic congestion. Non-residential uses are typically less sensitive to these types 
of changes because they interfere less with normal commercial, office, or industrial activities. The 
project would not result in the constant generation of any adverse noise, dust, odor or traffic impacts. 
The communications equipment is unmanned and will operate 24/7 without the need of onsite 
personnel. If the facility’s backup generating equipment is needed, it will come on automatically and is 
contained within the block containment enclosure to buffer noise.

The subject, residentially zoned site has been operating with nonresidential land uses for some time.  
The nature and scope of the nonconforming uses was documented by the City with a certificate of 
nonconformity, issued in 1988.  This essentially approves a specific amount of land use activity and 
authorizes the continuance of the nonconforming use of land.  As such, nonconforming use may be 
continued even though such use does not conform to the revised provisions of applicable regulatory 
ordinances.  This only applies if such use constitutes a legal nonconforming use as determined by the 
provisions of the Zoning Code.  During the course of processing the CUP application, City staff 
learned that the actual land use activities occurring onsite exceeded the amount authorized by the 
1988 Certificate of Nonconforming Use.  These investigations are ongoing.  To date, the Code 
Enforcement Division has to date issued two (2) Notices of Violation to occupants of the subject site 
and further investigations continue.  It is important to note that these subsequent investigations 
concerning the project site were not available to the Planning Commission when they considered the 
CUP request on July 23, 2019.  Copies of the Notices are included in this report as Attachment 6 and 
a full history of Code Enforcement activities is documented in Attachment 7.



T-Mobile Monopine Appeal (PHG18-0016)
September 25, 2019
Page 5

4. Supplemental Details of Request

1. Property Size (total): 4.52 acres

2. Property Size (north): 2.56 acres

3. Equipment Enclosure:  CMU block enclosure with stucco finish to resemble 
adjacent residence. Size is proposed as twelve (12) feet wide, twenty (20) feet 
long and eight (8) feet tall without a roof

4.  Antennas:  Twelve (12) panel antennas each approximately six (6) feet high and 
twelve (12) inches wide, and one (1) microwave dish four (4) feet in diameter; 
Maximum antenna height is 35 feet

5. Antenna Structure:  40-foot tall faux Monopine designed to resemble a real pine 
tree in color and needle density

6. Proposed Buildings:  12’ x 20’ x 8’ concrete block enclosure with stucco-finish to 
match adjacent residence and six-inch wood-trim cap

7. Equipment: Cabinets and other associated equipment within the block enclosure.

8. Hours of Operation:  24 hours (unmanned facility).

9.  Setbacks to adjacent Properties from Monopine Structure:

El Norte Parkway (front) 85’
South (nearest existing offsite resident) 225’
Northwest (nearest existing offsite resident) 175’
Northeast (nearest existing offsite resident) 290’

10. Landscaping/screening: 3-foot screen wall around base of Monopine and 
additional shrubs around the equipment enclosure

5. Appeal

The following is an overview of the appellant’s position filed, along with staff’s response:

1a. Appellant’s position – The appellant stated that approximately fifteen (15) 
neighbors oppose the Planning Commission’s CUP approval 
due to the uncertain risks of RF emissions.



T-Mobile Monopine Appeal (PHG18-0016)
September 25, 2019
Page 6

1b. Staff response – While the applicant’s original submittal included the required 
emissions summary indicting the proposal would operate 
below FCC limits, Planning staff requested further studies 
detailing those emissions and effects to the surrounding 
neighborhood. A RF Electromagnetic Fields Exposure 
Report was received on August 30, 2019, and corroborates 
their earlier summary. A copy of that report is included as 
Attachment 4.

Federal law prohibits cities from considering RF emissions 
as a basis for denying or regulating wireless facilities if (as is 
the case here) the applicant has demonstrated that the 
proposed wireless facility complies with the FCC’s RF 
emissions regulations. The City Council is therefore limited 
to reviewing and discussing the proposed design and 
location of the wireless facility and making findings based on 
the requirements in the ordinance and within the constraints 
of federal and state law governing the regulation of 
telecommunications facilities. The City Council should 
therefore focus its consideration of the appeal and the 
required findings based on the evidence in the record and 
considering the wireless facilities design and location criteria 
set forth in Article 34 of the Zoning Code.

2a. Appellant’s position – The cell tower proposal does not use the latest, safest, and 
least noticeable equipment. 

2b. Staff response – The proposed tower for PTI-T-Mobile is to fill gaps in current 
cell service. 5G has not been implemented in the City yet 
and is not proposed for this location.

3a. Appellant’s position – The subject site is nonconforming as to land use agreements 
recorded in 1988. Neighbors want conditions that require the 
site to stay in compliance for a minimum period of 90 days 
and that perimeter walls be built.

3b. Staff response – When Planning staff learned of possible expansions of uses 
beyond those allowed by the 1988 Certificate of 
Nonconforming Use, they referred these matters to the Code 
Enforcement Division for further investigation. Code 
Enforcement subsequently opened an investigation and 
those investigations are ongoing. The issue of 
nonconformance and these two (2) conditions requested by 



T-Mobile Monopine Appeal (PHG18-0016)
September 25, 2019
Page 7

the appellant were raised and discussed by the Planning 
Commission on July 23, 2019. The Planning Commission 
ultimately voted not to include the conditions in their 
approval of the project. 

4a. Appellant’s position – The expansion of nonconforming uses has impacted 
surrounding property values and the introduction of a forty 
(40) foot cell tower only further compounds this issue.

4b. Staff response – Code Enforcement has to date issued two (2) Notices of 
Violation to occupants of the subject site and further 
investigations continue.  Copies of the Notices are included 
in this report as Attachment 6 and a full history of Code 
Enforcement activities is documented in Attachment 7. In the 
opinion of City staff, the introduction of a permitted structure 
or use on a nonconforming site does not constitute an 
expansion of nonconformity as defined in the City’s Zoning 
Code Sec. 33-1242(d).

5a. Appellant’s position – Approval of the cell tower makes it less likely property will 
ever cycle into its intended residential use.

5b. Staff response – Wireless service facilities are allowed on R-1 zoned private 
properties after obtaining a Conditional Use Permit (“CUP”) 
pursuant to Sec. 33-94. FCC regulations do not permit the 
City to arbitrarily deny such facilities otherwise allowed in the 
Code.

6a. Appellant’s position – The Planning Commission’s notice period was too short for 
neighbors to work with Code Enforcement and Planning 
Divisions.

6b. Staff response – Sec. 33-1300 requires all public hearings to be noticed within 
ten (10) days of the hearing. The Planning Commission 
hearing for this item on July 23, 2019 was properly noticed 
by: (1) mailing public notices out to property owners within 
500’ of the subject property on July 8, 2019, (2) running a 
legal notice in Times-Advocate on July 11, 2019; and (3) 
posting two (2) public notice signs on the subject property 
facing East El Norte Parkway on July 12, 2019.  All duly 
noticed mailers and signs were made in advance of the 
Planning Commission meeting in accordance with law.  



T-Mobile Monopine Appeal (PHG18-0016)
September 25, 2019
Page 8

6.  Allowed Uses, Structures, Vehicles and Storage per 1988 Certificate of Nonconformity

1. Parking lots:  Main lot is in the northeastern corner with additional parking 
available between the east edge of the tennis court and the eastern property line. 
No parking of equipment or vehicles in daily use are allowed in Area 1.

2. Number of Vehicles:  Limited to fifteen (15) licensed heavy (dual rear axles) 
vehicles, ten (10) pieces of unlicensed equipment, ten (10) miscellaneous trailers 
and sixty (60) various cars and light duty (single rear axle) trucks.

3. Number of businesses:  Due to the nonconforming nature of the site, the number 
of businesses are to remain at the same levels existing at the time of the 
Certificate’s recordation.

4. Number of persons:  The total number of employees and onsite residents are to 
remain at the same levels established in 1988.

5. Storage:  Materials, parts, trailers and vehicles can be stored in areas 1, 2 and 3.

6.  Maintenance activity:  None allowed in Area 1. Light maintenance (defined as 
brake work and other minor equipment repairs) is allowed in Area 2. Heavy 
maintenance (defined as engine rebuilding, welding, etc.) is allowed in Area 3.

7. Hours of Operation:  Monday through Friday seven (7) a.m. to six (6) p.m. and 
Saturdays, Sundays and holidays nine (9) a.m. and five (5) p.m.

8.  Fueling of vehicles:  No daily fueling of vehicles is allowed from any storage 
tanks except for the original underground tank and pump adjacent to Building A 
(the residence at the northwestern corner of the site).

9. Fuel Tank:  One (1) 1000-gallon underground storage tank dating back to 1959 is 
noted in the 1965 Assessor’s Building Record and mentioned in 1988 Exhibit B. 
County DEH has no record of this tank, yearly inspections or certifications. If no 
longer useable, such a structure cannot be replaced. 

10. Fencing:  A solid fence is to be maintained around the property. Storage in Area 
1 cannot exceed the height of the fencing. Because this site and the surrounding 
properties all are zoned R-1, the maximum fence height allowed is six (6) feet.



T-Mobile Monopine Appeal (PHG18-0016)
September 25, 2019
Page 9

11. Buildings:  Only the buildings shown in Exhibit B’s site plan may remain. These 
are:

 Building A: 5,208 SF single-story office/living space (original 
residence) 

 Building A-1: 1,025 SF carport attached to Building A
 Building B: 561 SF pool area storage room
 Building C: 2,720 SF 2-story office building (original garage)
 Building D: 3,277 SF cabinet/woodworking shop building
 Building E: 3,177 SF storage/maintenance building
 Building F: 2,208 SF storage/light maintenance building

A 7,564 SF tennis court exists between Building E and El Norte Parkway. The 
swimming pool depicted west of Building A has been filled in. No expansion of 
existing buildings or construction of new buildings is allowed and no buildings 
may be erected in the El Norte Parkway right-of-way. Any structures listed above 
partially or completely destroyed for any reason shall not be replaced or rebuilt.

7.  Supplemental Radio Frequency Report

To be fully responsive to neighborhood concerns regarding RF emissions, Planning staff requested 
further RF information of the project applicant, asking for more detail on anticipated emissions and 
effects to the surrounding neighborhood. Dtech Communications, LLC was retained by the applicant 
to determine whether its proposed wireless communications facility at this location complies with the 
FCC’s RF safety guidelines. A RF Electromagnetic Fields Exposure Report prepared by Dtech was 
received by Planning staff on August 30, 2019, and contains a computer-simulated analysis of the 
electromagnetic fields (“EMF”) exposure resulting from the facility.  A copy of that report is included 
as Attachment 4.

For persons standing in accessible areas on the ground and adjacent roof, calculations resulted in 
exposure levels below the FCC’s most stringent General Population Maximum Permissible Exposure 
(“MPE”) limits. At antenna elevation, the highest calculated exposure level, the overexposure area 
extends just forty-one (41) feet from the front face of the antennas. There are no buildings or 
surrounding structures at antenna elevation. Beyond forty-one feet, exposure levels are predicted to 
be below the FCC’s most stringent MPE limits. The antennas are mounted on a tall tower and 
therefore not accessible by the general public. In all areas outside the subject property, exposure is 
shown as being at or below five (5) percent of MPE. Per FCC standards, individuals can safely 
occupy areas at or below MPE for an indefinite amount of time.  As noted previously in the report, 
federal law prohibits cities from considering RF emissions as a basis for denying or regulating 
wireless facilities if (as is the case here) the applicant has demonstrated that the proposed wireless 
facility complies with the FCC’s RF emissions regulations.



T-Mobile Monopine Appeal (PHG18-0016)
September 25, 2019
Page 10

PUBLIC INPUT:

Eight (8) public speakers addressed the Planning Commission during the July 23, 2019, public 
hearing on this item. Although it was expected that radio frequency emissions would be brought up by 
surrounding residents, it was the predominant theme of oral testimony. They also raised concerns 
regarding intensification of uses at the site and various perceived Code violations.  

 Kerrigan Diehl, Plancom, Inc., Applicant for the project, available for questions.
 Brian Wilson, owner of the property, spoke in favor of the project.
 Christina King, spoke in opposition to the project
 Mike Hendel, spoke in opposition to the project
 Andre White, spoke in opposition of the project
 Rosalie McChesney, spoke in opposition of the project
 Lisa Brown, spoke in opposition of the project
 Gail McMorran, owner of the AirX business on the subject site

The Planning Division of the City of Escondido requested further RF information of the project 
applicant, asking for more detail on anticipated emissions and effects to the surrounding 
neighborhood. The resulting RF Electromagnetic Fields Exposure Report was received on August 30, 
2019 and corroborates their earlier summary reviewed at Planning Commission. A copy of that report 
is included as Attachment 4. Copies of additional public correspondence received as of the draft date 
of this report are included as Attachment 5. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:

The proposed project is categorically exempt from environmental review in conformance with CEQA 
Section 15303, “New Construction of Small Structures.” The Secretary of the California Resources 
Agency has determined that the projects in this class do not have a significant effect on the 
environment, and therefore are categorically exempt from CEQA.

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:

Bill Martin, Director of Community Development
9/19/2019 10:57 a.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Attachment 1 – Appeal of Planning Commission decision, filed Mike Hendel on August 1, 2019.
2. Attachment 2 – July 23, 2019 Planning Commission Staff Report 
3. Attachment 3 – July 23, 2019 Planning Commission Minutes 
4. Attachment 4 – RF Electromagnetic Fields Exposure Report of August 30, 2019
5. Attachment 5 – Public Correspondences Received Since the Planning Commission Hearing



T-Mobile Monopine Appeal (PHG18-0016)
September 25, 2019
Page 11

6. Attachment 6 – Copies of Code Enforcement’s Notices of Violation
7. Attachment 7 – Code Enforcement History
8. Resolution No. 2019-148
9. Resolution No. 2019-148 - Exhibits A, B, C, and D
10.Resolution No. 2019-149
11.Resolution No. 2019-149 - Exhibits A and B



Attachment 1





 

 

 

Agenda Item No.: G.2 
Date:  July 23, 2019 

 
 
 
 

 

PROJECT NUMBER / NAME:  PHG 18-0016 / Wireless Communication Facility, PTI-T-Mobile  

 

REQUEST:  A Conditional Use Permit to install a wireless communications facility consisting of 
12 panel antennas,12 remote radio units, and one microwave dish antenna concealed within a 
new 40’ tall stealth mono-pine, and associated ground-mounted mechanical equipment within a 
12’ x 20’ CMU block enclosure in the R-1-10 (Single Family Residential, 10,000 SF minimum lot 
size) zone. The proposal also includes the adoption of the environmental determination prepared 
for the project. 

 

 

LOCATION: 2534 East El Norte Parkway  

 

APN / APNS: 225-270-63-00 

 

GENERAL PLAN / ZONING:  Suburban / R-1-10  

 

 

APPLICANT:  Plancom for                   

PTI-T-Mobile  

 

PRIMARY  

REPRESENTATIVE: Kerrigan Diehl 

 

 

DISCRETIONARY ACTIONS REQUESTED:  Conditional Use Permit 

 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS:          Planning Case 88-89-PPL 

 

PROJECT PLANNER:          Paul K. Bingham, Assistant Planner II 

 pbingham@escondido.org  

 

CEQA RECOMMENDATION:  Exempt (CEQA Guidelines Section 15303, “New Construction of 

Small Structures”) 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conditional Approval 

 

REQUESTED ACTION:  Approve Planning Commission Resolution No. 2019-14 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING REQUIRED:   ☐ YES     ☒ NO 

 

REPORT APPROVALS:                            ☐ Bill Martin, Community Development Director 

☒ Mike Strong, Assistant Planning Director 

Attachment 2



PHG 18-0016 
July 23, 2019 
Planning Commission Meeting 

 

2 

 

 

 

A. BACKGROUND: 
 

The subject property was annexed to the City in 1983. Prior to the time of annexation, there 

existed certain non-residential uses on the property in addition to an existing residence. At the 

time of annexation, the property became subject to a residential zoning designation of R-1-10, 

which rendered the non-residential uses nonconforming. On May 13, 1988, a Certificate of 

Nonconforming Use was recorded honoring the scope and extent of land use activities in place 

at the time of annexation. With the construction of East El Norte Parkway in 2007, the property’s 

original 4.52 acres was bifurcated so that 0.98 acres of the parcel remained south of El Norte 

Parkway and 2.56 acres remained to the north. A letter issued by the Director of Community 

Development on October 2, 2007 restated and clarified the allowable nonconforming uses for the 

new configuration.  

 

The requested Conditional Use Permit is required in order to construct a wireless communication 

facility within a residential zone, in accordance with Article 34 (Communication Antennas) of the 

Escondido Zoning Code. Per Article 61, Division 3, new, conforming uses can be placed on 

nonconforming properties.  

 

B. PROJECT ANALYSIS: 

 

T-Mobile is proposing to install a wireless communications facility on the subject property 

consisting of 12 panel antennas and 12 remote radio units concealed within a new 40’ tall stealth 

mono-pine. This is proposed to be on the northern portion of the property in the front yard area of 

the existing residence/office known as building “A”. Adjacent to this antenna structure, the 

applicant proposes to install the ground-mounted mechanical equipment necessary to operate 

the facility hidden behind a 12’ x 20’ CMU block enclosure. All utilities and cabling from the 

enclosure to the mono-pine are to be undergrounded.  

 

The antennas placed on the proposed mono-pine structure will reach a maximum height of 35 

feet, in conformance with the height limit of the property’s R-1-10 zoning. The applicant proposes 

an additional 5’ of matching simulated pine foliage to round out the top of the tree and help the 

structure better resemble a natural pine tree. Past practice has been to allow antenna structures 

concealed as faux trees to include simulated foliage beyond the zone’s height limit to create a 

more natural looking tree. 

 

The mono-pine would be located approximately 215 feet from the closest off-site residence, and 

would be set back approximately 85 feet from the sidewalk along East El Norte Parkway. The 

facility would be at least 20 feet away from the closest existing structure on the subject property, 

however an emissions study prepared for the project shows that the levels of exposure in 

surrounding structures and on the ground are within the required levels of safety. 

 

Pursuant to Article 34, Section 33-703 of the Escondido Zoning Code, the five principles described 

below shall serve as general guidelines for the placement of wireless communication facilities:  



PHG 18-0016 
July 23, 2019 
Planning Commission Meeting 

 

3 

 

 

 

(a) Height guidelines- Utilizes lowest profile technology.  Personal wireless facilities 

should be designed to be in scale with surrounding buildings and tree heights.  Use 

existing structures as opposed to introducing new ones.  Encourage facilities that meet 

the zone’s height standards; 

 

(b) Location guidelines- which requires the avoidance of proliferations that create or 

compound undesirable visual impacts, but also encourage co-locations, where 

appropriate.  The principle also applies to wireless communication facilities proposed 

to be located in residential zones, to encourage single sites utilizing stealth designs 

and latest technology, ensure full aesthetic integration of new facilities into the 

proposed locations, ensure the mass and scale of the proposed facility are not 

excessive in order to meet the carrier’s reasonable coverage objectives;  

 
(c) Stealth technology guidelines- Encourage creative, unobtrusive stealth technology;  

 
(d) Older facility guidelines- encourage older facilities to upgrade using less obtrusive 

technology; and 

 
(e) Emission guidelines- Ensure that emissions do not exceed federal thresholds.           

 

City staff reviewed the plans for issues such as siting, architecture, zoning compliance, 

landscaping, engineering, building requirements, safety, and other standards described in Article 

34 of the Zoning Code. On June 27, 2019, the Design Review committee considered the project 

and recommended approval with the conditions that all utilities running between the CMU 

enclosure and the base of the mono-pine be placed underground, and that a three-foot high 

screen wall be added at the mono-pine’s base. The applicant has subsequently agreed to these 

added conditions. 

 

C. NEIGHBORHOOD CONCERNS 

 

Public notice was provided for this project pursuant to Section 33-1300 of the Escondido Zoning 

Code. Upon receipt of the notice, property owners in the project vicinity contacted City staff to 

voice their concerns with the project, as well as the general conditions and use of the project site. 

Copies of all correspondence received by the Planning Division prior to publication of this report 

have been attached hereto.  

 

Project-related concerns focused primarily on RF emissions, as well as the expansion of the non-

residential nature of the project site. Staff has reviewed the RF report, and has determined that 

emissions from the proposed facility would fall below the maximum allowed by the FCC for 

wireless communication facilities. As long as this is the case, the City cannot take RF-related 

concerns into consideration when making a decision to approve or deny an application for a 

wireless communication facility. 

 



PHG 18-0016 
July 23, 2019 
Planning Commission Meeting 

 

4 

 

 

The concerns raised by neighboring property owners with regard to the general condition and use 

of the subject property involve a possible expansion of its legal nonconforming uses which would 

be in violation of the City Code and the Certificate on Nonconforming Use that was recorded 

shortly after annexation. Specific issues identified in the correspondence received by the City so 

far include daily worker and equipment noise at all hours, extensive storage of campers, trucks, 

trailers and cargo containers on site, piles of tree trimming debris, the dumping of slurry in multiple 

pits to dry and be hauled off later, large numbers of cars and trucks coming and going, a sign 

advertising available contractor storage, and trailers being parked temporarily in the adjacent 

residential neighborhood. 

 

Planning Division staff has requested that the Code Enforcement Division investigate the issues 

identified above. As of the date of publication of this staff report, a code enforcement case has 

opened and an investigation will be conducted to determine the nature of any code violations on 

the subject property, and identify actions necessary to resolve said violations. A condition of 

approval has been added to the Draft Resolution No. 2019-14 that would require all code 

violations to be corrected prior to issuance of any building permits necessary to construct the 

subject wireless communication facility. This will have the effect of bringing the property into 

conformance with the Certificate of Nonconforming Use recorded against the property in 1988 

and modified by the Director of Community Development in 2007, as described in the Background 

section of this report.  

 

D. SUPPLEMENTAL DETAILS OF REQUEST 

 

1. Property Size (total):  4.52 acres 

 

2. Property Size (north side): 2.56-acres 

 

3. Concealment Structure: 40-foot tall faux mono-pine designed to resemble a real 

pine tree in color and needle density 

 
4. Equipment Enclosure: 12’ x 20’ x 8’ block enclosure with stucco-finish to match 

adjacent residence and six-inch wood-trim cap. 

 
5. Antennas: Twelve (12) panel antennas each approximately six (6) 

feet high and twelve (12) inches wide, and one (1) 

microwave dish four (4) feet in diameter. Maximum 

antenna height is 35 feet. 

 
6. Equipment: Cabinets and other associated equipment within 

equipment enclosure  

 
7. Hours of Operation:  24 hours, unmanned 

 
 



PHG 18-0016 
July 23, 2019 
Planning Commission Meeting 

 

5 

 

 

 
8. Setbacks to Adjacent Properties from Mono-pine: 

 

El Norte Pkwy (Front)  85’ 

South (nearest resident)  225’ 

Northwest (nearest resident): 175’ 

Northeast (nearest resident) 290’ 

 
9. Landscaping/screening: 3-foot screen wall around base of mono-pine and 

additional shrubs around the equipment enclosure.  

 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL STATUS: 

 

The proposed project is exempt from environmental review in conformance with the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 15303, “New Construction of Small Structures”. 

 
F. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 

The Planning Commission is the authorized agency for reviewing, denying and granting 

discretionary approvals related to major Conditional Use Permits. The Planning Commission is 

being asked to consider this Conditional Use Permit for a forty (40) foot tall wireless 

communication facility designed to resemble a pine tree. The Planning Commission may approve, 

conditionally approve, or deny the proposed plan.  No other discretionary permits are requested 

or required for the proposed scope of work.   

 

City staff recommends the Planning Commission approve Planning Case No. PHG18-0016 based 

on the Findings of Fact and subject to the Conditions of Approval attached to Planning 

Commission Resolution 2019-14 as Exhibits “C” and “D,” respectively.  The proposed project is 

consistent with the Article 34 of the Escondido Zoning Code, and the location, size, design and 

operating characteristics of the proposed project will be compatible with adjacent land uses. The 

Conditions of Approval cited above will ensure that any nonconforming uses that were not legally 

established will be abated prior to installation of the proposed project.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1. Location and General Plan Map 

2. Draft Planning Commission Resolution No. 2019-14 

3. Public Correspondence 

  



PHG 18-0016 
July 23, 2019 
Planning Commission Meeting 

 

6 

 

 



PHG 18-0016 
July 23, 2019 
Planning Commission Meeting 

 

7 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 



ATTACHMENT 2 

8 
 

  Planning Commission 
 Hearing Date:  July 23, 2019 

 Effective Date: August 3, 2019 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 2019-14 

 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

OF THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO 
INSTALL A WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS 
FACILITY FOR PTI-T-MOBILE AT 2534 EAST EL 
NORTE PARKWAY 

 
APPLICANT: Plancom, Inc. (for PTI-T-Mobile) 

 
 CASE NO:  PHG 18-0016 
 

 WHEREAS, Plancom, Inc., on behalf of PTI-T-Mobile (herein after referred to as 

“Applicant”), filed a land use development application (Planning Case No. PHG 18-0016) 

constituting a request for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow installation of a 

Wireless Communication Facility consisting of 12 panel antennas, twelve 12 remote radio 

units, and one (1) microwave dish antenna, concealed within a new 40-foot tall stealth 

mono-pine, and associated ground-mounted mechanical equipment within a 12’ x 20’ 

CMU block enclosure, as provided in Exhibit “B” attached hereto, on a 4.52 acre site 

located at 2534 East El Norte Parkway (APN 225-270-6300), in the R-1-10 Zone; and 

WHEREAS, the subject property is all that real property described in Exhibit "A," 

which is attached hereto and made a part hereof by this reference as though fully set forth 

herein; and 

 WHEREAS, the land use development application was submitted to, and 

processed by, the Planning Division of the Community Development Department in 

accordance with the rules and regulations of the Escondido Zoning Code and the 



 

9 
 

applicable procedures and time limits specified by the Permit Streamlining Act 

(Government Code Section 65920 et seq.) and California Environmental Quality Act 

(“CEQA”) (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.); and   

WHEREAS, Wireless Communication Facilities are conditionally permitted uses 

within the R-1-10 Zone, subject to the approval of a Conditional Use Permit, in accordance 

with Section 33-703 of the Escondido Zoning Code; and    

WHEREAS, pursuant to CEQA and CEQA Guidelines (Title 14 of California Code 

of Regulations, Section 15000 et. seq.), the City is the Lead Agency for the Project, as 

the public agency with the principal responsibility for approving the proposed Project; and

 WHEREAS, the Planning Division did study said request, performed necessary 

investigations, prepared a written report, and does recommend approval of the Project; 

and 

  WHEREAS, City staff provided public notice of the application in accordance with 

City and State public noticing requirements; and 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Escondido did, on 

July 23, 2019, hold a duly noticed public hearing as prescribed by law.  At said hearing, 

this Planning Commission received and considered the reports and recommendation of 

the Planning Division and gave all persons full opportunity to be heard and to present 

evidence and testimony respecting said matter.  Evidence was submitted to and 

considered by the Planning Commission, including, without limitation:  

a. Written information including plans, studies, written and graphical information, and 

other material, submitted by the Applicant;  

b. Oral testimony from City staff, interested parties, and the public;  



 

10 
 

c. The staff report, dated July 23, 2019, with its attachments as well as City staff’s 

recommendation on the Project, which is incorporated herein as though fully set 

forth herein; and 

d. Additional information submitted during the public hearing; and 

  WHEREAS, said public hearing before the Planning Commission was conducted in 

all respects as required by the Escondido Municipal Code and the rules of this Planning 

Commission; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Planning Commission of the City of 

Escondido: 

1. That the above recitations are true and correct.   

2. The proposed project is exempt from environmental review in 

conformance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 15303, “New 

Construction of Small Structures”. 

 3. After consideration of all evidence presented, and studies and 

investigations made by the Planning Commission and in its behalf, the Planning 

Commission makes the following substantive findings and determinations, attached 

hereto as Exhibit “C,” relating to the information that has been considered.  In accordance 

with the Findings of Fact and the foregoing, the Planning Commission reached a 

recommendation on the matter as hereinafter set forth.   

 4. The application to use the subject property for said purpose specified 

above and subject to each and all of the conditions hereinafter set forth in Exhibit “D” is 

hereby approved by the Planning Commission.  This Planning Commission expressly 

declares that it would not have approved this land use development application except 



 

11 
 

upon and subject to each and all of said conditions, each and all of which conditions shall 

run with the land and be binding upon the Applicant, the owner, and all subsequent 

owners of the subject property, and all persons who use the subject property for the use 

permitted hereby. 

 5. The Planning Commission, therefore, directs that a Notice of Exemption 

be filed with the County Clerk of the County of San Diego in accordance with CEQA 

Guidelines. 

  6. Said plan is on file in the Planning Division of the Community 

Development Department and is available for inspection by anyone interested herein, and 

said development plan is incorporated herein by this reference, the same as if it were fully 

set forth herein.  This Project is conditionally approved as set forth on the application and 

project drawings, all designated as approved by the Planning Commission, and shall not 

be altered without the express authorization by the Planning Division.  Any deviations 

from the approved plans shall be reviewed by the City for substantial compliance and may 

require amendment by the appropriate hearing body. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, pursuant to Government Code Section 

66020(d)(1): 

 1. NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Project is subject to dedications, 

reservations, and exactions, as specified in the Conditions of Approval.  The Project is 

subject to certain fees described in the City of Escondido’s Development Fee Inventory 

on file in both the Community Development and Engineering Services Departments.  The 

Applicant shall be required to pay all development fees of the City then in effect at the 

time and in such amounts as may prevail when building permits are issued.  It is the City’s 



 

12 
 

intent that the costs representing future development’s share of public facilities and capital 

improvements be imposed to ensure that new development pays the capital costs 

associated with growth.  The Applicant is advised to review the Planned Fee Updates 

portion of the web page, www.escondido.org, and regularly monitor and/or review fee-

related information to plan for the costs associated with undertaking the Project. 

 2. NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that the 90-day period during which to 

protest the imposition of any fee, dedication, reservation, or other exaction described in 

this resolution begins on the effective date of this resolution, and any such protest must 

be in a manner that complies with Section 66020. 

  



 

13 
 

 PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED by a majority vote of the Planning 

Commission of the City of Escondido, California, at a regular meeting held on the 23rd 

day of July, 2019, by the following vote, to wit: 
 

 AYES: COMMISSIONERS: 

 NOES: COMMISSIONERS: 

 ABSTAINED: COMMISSIONERS: 

 ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: 

 

 
  ______________________________ 
  JAMES SPANN, Chairman 
  Escondido Planning Commission 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
MIKE STRONG, Secretary of the 
Escondido Planning Commission 
 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was passed at the time and by 

the vote above stated. 
 
  
   
                                                     _____________________________ 
  KIRSTEN PERAINO, Minutes Clerk 
  Escondido Planning Commission 
 
 
 
 

Decision may be appealed to City Council 
pursuant to Zoning Code Section 33-1303 

  



 

14 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Legal Description 

PHG 18-0016 
 
 
 

 
  



 

15 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
PROJECT PLANS 

PHG 18-0016



 

16 
 



 

17 
 



 

18 
 



 

19 
 



 

20 
 

  



 

21 
 

EXHIBIT “C” 
FINDINGS OF FACT 

PHG 18-0016 

Environmental Determination: 

 

The proposed project is exempt from environmental review in conformance with the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 15303, “New Construction of Small Structures.” 

Conditional Use Permit:  

 

1. All decisions granting or denying Conditional Use Permits shall be made in accordance with 

Section 33-1203 of the Escondido Zoning Code (Findings for Conditional Use Permits). The 

new construction of a wireless communication facility has been reviewed and the Planning 

Commission concludes and finds, based on the analysis of the project described in the July 

23, 2019, Planning Commission Staff Report, that:   

 

a. Approving the proposed Conditional Use Permit to allow the installation of a wireless 

communication facility would be based upon sound principles of land use and in response 

to the services required by the community because the placement of the wireless antenna 

structure will facilitate wireless communication services in the northeast portion of the City. 

In addition, the facility has been designed to resemble a pine tree and will not create a 

substantial alteration of the visual environment. 

 

b. Granting the proposed Conditional Use Permit will not cause deterioration of bordering land 

uses or create special problems for the area in which it is located because the facility has 

been designed to blend in with existing vegetation and structures on the site, and RF 

emissions generated by the proposed facility would be below the FCC’s accepted safety 

standards. Additionally, Conditions of Approval will also be placed on the project which 

would help minimize adverse impacts to the property and address existing and future 

nuisance issues. 

 
c. The proposed Conditional Use Permit has been considered in relationship to its effect on 

the neighborhood. It has been determined to be compatible with the surrounding 

neighborhood because it will be located on a property with other mature trees, all antennas 

and radio units will be appropriately screened by the branches and needles of the proposed 

faux mono-pine tree on which they are mounted, and all associated ground-mounted 

equipment will be placed within a block equipment enclosure in scale with and stucco-

finished and painted to match the adjacent residential structure.  

 
  



 

22 
 

 
EXHIBIT “D” 

PROJECT CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
PHG 18-0016 

 
 
1. All construction and operations shall comply with all applicable requirements of the Escondido 

Zoning Code and requirements of the City.  Approval of this request shall not waive 
compliance with any sections of the Municipal Code and all other applicable City requirements 
in effect at the time of building permit issuance.   
 

2. The applicant shall be required to pay all development fees of the City in effect at the time and 
in such amounts as may prevail when building permits are issued, including any applicable 
City Wide Facilities fees.   

 
3. The proposed wireless communication facility shall be in substantial conformance with the 

plans attached as Exhibit “B” hereto, to the satisfaction of the Planning Division, except as 
modified by these Conditions of Approval. 

 
4. Any proposed construction shall comply with all applicable requirements of the Escondido 

Zoning Code and requirements of the Planning Division, Building Division, Fire Department 
and Engineering Services Department.     
 

5. The legal description attached as Exhibit “A” hereto, has been provided by the applicant and 
neither the City of Escondido nor any of its employees assume responsibility for the accuracy 
of said legal description. 
 

6. All exterior lighting shall conform to the requirements of Article 35, Outdoor Lighting.  
 

7. All new utility service shall be installed underground or kept within the structure. 
 

8. The proposed antennas shall reach a maximum height of 35 feet, with the overall height of 
the mono-pine “tree” being 40 feet high.   

 
9. The proposed equipment enclosure shall be stucco-finished and painted to match the 

adjacent residential structure, and shall include a wooden trim cap. 
 

10. Socks shall be installed over and around the antennas and all antennas, radio units, 
associated equipment, brackets, mounting arrays, etc., shall be painted to match the needles 
on the faux mono-pine tree. 

 
11. Faux pine needles shall be of a sufficient density to adequately screen the proposed antennas 

and other equipment mounted on the faux mono-pine from view, to the satisfaction of the 
Planning Division. 

 
12. A screen wall three feet high shall be installed around the base of the mono-pine to screen 

the bolts and other footing material from view. 
 
13. Additional vines, shrubs or other landscaping material shall be installed in front of the 

proposed block wall enclosure facing El Norte Parkway and shown on the building plans to 
the satisfaction of the Planning Division.  



 

23 
 

 
14. The trunk and branches of the faux pine tree shall be textured and finished to appear as 

natural tree bark and so noted on the building plans, to the satisfaction of the Planning 
Division.   

 
15. The GPS antenna units shall be painted to match the building or wall, which shall be noted on 

the building plans to the satisfaction of the Planning Division. 
 

16. No equipment placed within the equipment enclosure shall protrude above the top of the 
enclosure. 

 
17. Any support poles, brackets, cable runs and other support equipment shall be painted to 

match/blend with the varying colors and textures of the tree, and/or equipment enclosure. 
These shall be clearly noted on the building plans to the satisfaction of the Planning Division.  

 
18. An appropriate number of branches shall be incorporated into the faux pine tree to create a 

natural shape and to appropriately screen the antenna panels. This shall clearly be indicated 
on the building plans and an example in the form of a photo of another faux mono-pine tree 
with the same number of antennas and RRUs as proposed shall be submitted with the building 
plans for approval.   

 
19. This project shall conform to the Public Art Partnership Program, Article 37 of the Escondido 

Zoning Code. 
 

20. No utilities shall be released for any purpose or Certificate of Occupancy issued until all 
requirements of the Planning, Engineering, and Building Divisions have been completed.    

 
21. The plans submitted for building permit shall include notes or details containing the necessary 

work involved in complying with these project conditions.  
 

22. An inspection by the Planning Division will be required prior to operation of the project. 
Everything should be installed prior to calling for an inspection, although preliminary 
inspections may be requested.  Contact the project planner at (760) 839-4306 to arrange a 
final inspection. 

 
23. If at the time of Planning final inspection, it is determined that sufficient screening has not 

been provided, the applicant shall be required to provide additional landscaping improvements 
to the satisfaction of the Planning Division. 

 
24. The applicant, or any subsequent operator/leaseholder, hereby agrees to investigate 

complaints related to possible interference with electronic equipment in the surrounding area, 
to determine the cause of the interference. If this facility is determined to be the cause of the 
electronic interference, T-Mobile, or any subsequent operator/leaseholder, shall solve the 
problem in a timely manner to the satisfaction of the complainant and the Director of 
Community Development. Any interference with Fire Department or public safety 
communications shall be corrected immediately to the satisfaction of the City of Escondido.   

 
25. The applicant shall coordinate with the City of Escondido to select a qualified, independent, 

third party to conduct actual power density measurements of the facility within ninety (90) days 
of installation and full operation. The results of the study shall be submitted to the Director of 



 

24 
 

Community Development so that the theoretical power density study can be compared to the 
actual output and ensure compliance with FCC requirements. 

 
26. The applicant, or any subsequent operator/leaseholder, shall be responsible for all ongoing 

maintenance of the facility, including the antennas, faux branches, associated equipment and 
live plantings, to ensure that the condition of the facility does deteriorate and the faux pine 
does not appear weathered.   

 
27. Signage proposed for the facility shall be limited to that required by law, and shall comply with 

the City of Escondido Sign Ordinance (Ord 92-47). Appropriate signs providing notice, caution 
or warning, and other necessary markings shall be placed at the main access point(s) and 
other locations, as may be required, in order to alert the general public, maintenance or other 
workers approaching the antennas to the presence of RF transmissions and to take 
precautions to avoid exposures in excess of FCC limits. The requirement for the appropriate 
signage/notice shall be indicated on the building plans. 

 
28. No additional antennas or expansion of this facility shall be permitted without a modification 

of the Conditional Use Permit and a public hearing before the Planning Commission, or as 
allowed by relevant State or Federal law. T-Mobile shall not oppose co-location on the pole 
for another wireless carrier (subject to the City of Escondido approval) if it can be proven that 
the additional carrier would not adversely affect the operation and function of T-Mobile 
Wireless Service antennas.  Minor changes within the approved size and design parameters 
may be permitted by the Director of Community Development and the Building Division.  

 
29. All municipal and zoning code violations, whether currently known or identified as part of any 

code enforcement investigation of the project site, shall be resolved, abated, or otherwise 
addressed, and the property must be in full compliance with all aspects of the Escondido 
Municipal and Zoning Codes prior to issuance of any building permit for the project. A written 
determination of such compliance by the Director of Community Development or his or her 
designee shall be required prior to issuance of said building permit. 

 
30. After installation of the wireless communication facility, the entire property must be maintained 

in compliance with the legal nonconforming status of said property or if discontinued, pursuant 
to the timelines provided in Article 61, which may be amended, must be found to be in 
conformance with applicable measures of the Escondido Zoning Code, to the satisfaction of 
the Director of Community Development. Noncompliance with the foregoing shall constitute 
cause for immediate revocation of this Conditional Use Permit through a noticed public 
hearing before the Planning Commission. The wireless communication facility approved by 
this Conditional Use Permit shall be immediately abated upon notice of permit revocation. 

 
31. This item may be referred to the Planning Commission for review and possible revocation or 

modification of the Conditional Use Permit at a noticed public hearing upon receipt of 
nuisance complaints and/or non-compliance with the conditions of approval. 

 
32. This CUP shall become null and void unless utilized within twelve (12) months of the effective 

date of approval. 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 3
Public Correspondence

PHG 18-0016

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



From: Paul Bingham
To: Joanne Tasher
Subject: FW: Case No: PHG 18-0016
Date: Thursday, July 18, 2019 1:21:57 PM

Forward #1

Paul Bingham
Assistant Planner II
Planning Division | City of Escondido
Direct: 760-839-4306
www.escondido.org

From: rcocom <rcocom@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2019 11:23 PM
To: Paul Bingham <pbingham@escondido.org>
Subject: Case No: PHG 18-0016

To be included in the staff report.

I've recently learned of cell phone towers being installed near our homes and there was no
mention of health effects whatsoever. 
Thousands of studies link low-level wireless radio frequency radiation exposures to a long list
of adverse biological effects, including:

DNA single and double strand breaks
oxidative damage
disruption of cell metabolism
increased blood brain barrier permeability
melatonin reduction
disruption to brain glucose metabolism
generation of stress proteins

Compared to earlier versions of cell towers, 5G is ultra high frequency and intensity which are
shorter length millimeter waves that do not travel as far (or through objects). To compensate
many more mini cell towers must be installed and/or this particular one is going to be very
powerful. This will greatly increase the community's risk of continuous RF Radiation
exposure. Homeowner will be almost sleeping next to this site and raising our kids yet the
effects of this radiation on public health have yet to undergo the rigors of long-term testing.

There's also the devaluation of the properties, particularly those closer to the site. These
additions are not going to make the area a desirable place to live.

55



Thanks,

Robert Cocom

56



From: Paul Bingham
To: Joanne Tasher
Subject: FW: [Website Feedback]: Installation of wireless communication Facility
Date: Thursday, July 18, 2019 1:22:20 PM

Forward #2

Paul Bingham
Assistant Planner II
Planning Division | City of Escondido
Direct: 760-839-4306
www.escondido.org

From: Mike Strong <mstrong@escondido.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2019 9:11 PM
To: Adam Finestone <afinestone@escondido.org>; Paul Bingham <pbingham@escondido.org>
Subject: Fwd: [Website Feedback]: Installation of wireless communication Facility

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: <noreply@escondido.org>
Date: July 17, 2019 at 9:00:06 PM PDT
To: <mstrong@escondido.org>
Subject: [Website Feedback]: Installation of wireless communication Facility
Reply-To: <dmopia@yahoo.com>

Dason Mopia
dmopia@yahoo.com

To whom it may concern, 

I would like to voice my concerns of the installation of a 40ft cell tower at 2534 E
El Norte Parkway.I feel that the installation of such a structure would devalue
mine and my neighbors’ homes. I also believe that having such a structure in
close proximity would cause and increased risk of harm to our health. Cell phone
towers emit RF radiation which can cause headaches, memory loss,
cardiovascular stress, low sperm count, birth defects and various types of cancer.

Sincerely,

Dason & Noemie Mopia

57



Home owners 2565 Hamlin CT, Escondido 92027

HTTP_USER_AGENT: Mozilla/5.0 (Windows NT 10.0; Win64; x64)
AppleWebKit/537.36 (KHTML, like Gecko) Chrome/75.0.3770.142
Safari/537.36
REMOTE_HOST: 68.7.157.19
REMOTE_ADDR: 68.7.157.19
LOCAL_ADDR: 10.255.2.55

58



From: Paul Bingham
To: Joanne Tasher
Subject: FW: Installation of wireless communication Facility
Date: Thursday, July 18, 2019 1:22:39 PM

Forward #3

Paul Bingham
Assistant Planner II
Planning Division | City of Escondido
Direct: 760-839-4306
www.escondido.org

From: Dason Mopia <dmopia@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2019 9:05 PM
To: Paul Bingham <pbingham@escondido.org>
Subject: Installation of wireless communication Facility

I would like to voice my concerns of the installation of a 40ft cell tower at 2534 E El Norte Parkway.I feel

that the installation of such a structure would devalue mine and my neighbors’ homes. I also believe that

having such a structure in close proximity would cause and increased risk of harm to our health. Cell

phone towers emit RF radiation which can cause headaches, memory loss, cardiovascular stress, low

sperm count, birth defects and various types of cancer.

Sincerely,

Dason & Noemie Mopia

Home owners 2565 Hamlin CT, Escondido 92027

59



From: Paul Bingham
To: Joanne Tasher
Subject: FW: Conditional Use Permit PHG 18-0016
Date: Thursday, July 18, 2019 1:22:54 PM

Forward #4

Paul Bingham
Assistant Planner II
Planning Division | City of Escondido
Direct: 760-839-4306
www.escondido.org

From: Tom <tbyoung@cox.net> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2019 8:12 PM
To: Paul Bingham <pbingham@escondido.org>
Subject: Conditional Use Permit PHG 18-0016

Hello Paul,

I am writing in opposition to the cell tower in our residential neighborhood.

Even disguised as a pine tree, it would discourage people from wanting to live in the neighborhood
and would have a negative impact on our quality of life.

The businesses currently located on the site are already disruptive (excessive noise) and this would
make the situation worse.

It would be better to not allow this construction at this time instead of having to get rid of it at a
later time, after the fact.

Please get this issue before the City Council so that the citizens and voters can make their voices
heard.

Thank You,

Tom Young
2481 Honeybell Ln
Escondido CA 92027
(760)504-4564
tbyoung@cox.net

60



From: Paul Bingham
To: Joanne Tasher
Subject: FW: PHG18-0016
Date: Thursday, July 18, 2019 1:23:12 PM

Forward #5

Paul Bingham
Assistant Planner II
Planning Division | City of Escondido
Direct: 760-839-4306
www.escondido.org

-----Original Message-----
From: lisa Brown <lisaangel65@hotmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2019 6:38 PM
To: Paul Bingham <pbingham@escondido.org>
Subject: PHG18-0016

Hi, my name is Lisa Brown I live at 720 Jonathon Place right near the subject site. I will be attending the meeting on
Tuesday. I and my husband mostly definitely oppose the installation of cell towers near our home. We know there is
no 100% proof of whether it is harmful to be near or not but we would rather be safe then sorry. We have made
efforts in our home to keep wireless to a minimum, like paying SDG&E an extra fee to keep the analog reader
instead of the newer wireless one, also some protection in our home. The owner of the property involved in wanting
the tower will make money from it, and doesn’t care if maybe there could be harmful waves if so close but we do.
There are so many homes near that property that could be affected if someday it’s a 100% proven fact that being
close could be harmful. We do not want to take that chance. We have two young daughters and have lived in
Escondido since we have been kids, it is not fair to allow something like this so close to homes. This is all for profit
for the owner, nothing else. It makes me upset that this should even be questioned, it should never be allowed so
close to homes. Hopefully the planning department and city has the best interest for residents. I question a lot of
things that went on at that property since we moved in December 1995. Before the Great Wall we heard and saw a
lot of weird things. This is a topper. Because we don’t know the long term effect and nobody else 100% knows we
don’t want to live close to any cell towers. Thank you for your time. Lisa Brown 760 807-4643 I’ll be there
Tuesday....

Sent from my iPhone

61



July 17, 2019 

Escondido Planning Commission 

Reference: (APN No. 225-270-63-00) proposed Conditional Use Permit PHG 18-

0016, a proposed 40ft cell phone tower and 12’x20’ block enclosure at 2534 East 

El Norte Parkway 

Our property is approximately 40 ft from the main driveway that is used by the 

Soapstone Werks company. We have the following concerns that are all centered 

around the safety: 

1. The biggest concern is long term health risk of the constant exposure to the

signals going to and from the tower. These risks may be described as

minimal from your studies, but we don’t want to be the test subjects to

“see” if the calculations were correct. I certainly don’t was anyone to die

from direct long term exposure to the transmissions or by a reaction to the

transmission with a chemical or element that a person has consumed that

causes a fatal reaction. We have children and we do not know if the

constant exposure will affect their younger bodies or their fertility should

they want to have children or if this could put their children at more risk for

birth defects.

2. The traffic that goes through Soapstone can be quite noisy during the day

from the vehicle traffic. We are concerned that more people coming into

and out of the property will create more noise and the transmission itself at

different frequencies could lead to hearing loss.

3. The traffic going into and out of the facility, especially those on foot that

literally lean against my fence a night and smoke, add a security risk.  I

certainly don’t want to offend anyone who belongs there. But we are on

constant guard for anyone who crosses the property line and have install a

light near the back fence as a deterrent.

4. Lastly, which is indirectly safety related, our property value will most likely

go down as many people would not want to put their families at risk unless

we practically give them the house.

62



For us, the risk is too great and we protest against anything that put our family 

and future generations safety at risk. Please help us by supporting my family and 

neighbors as valuable people of our community and deny this and any other 

project that could potential put our health and safety at risk. 

Sincerely,  

André and Darlene White 

731 Sungold Way 

Escondido, Ca 92027 

317-626-7700

63



From: Paul Bingham
To: Joanne Tasher
Subject: FW: PHG 18-0016
Date: Thursday, July 18, 2019 1:25:00 PM

Forward #7

Paul Bingham
Assistant Planner II
Planning Division | City of Escondido
Direct: 760-839-4306
www.escondido.org

-----Original Message-----
From: Diane Moritz <dddipat@cox.net>
Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2019 2:04 PM
To: Paul Bingham <pbingham@escondido.org>
Subject: Re: PHG 18-0016

Thank you, Mr. Bingham. I appreciate your quick response and the clarification.
Diane Moritz

Sent from my iPhone

> On Jul 17, 2019, at 1:08 PM, Paul Bingham <pbingham@escondido.org> wrote:
>
> Hi Diane,
> I appreciate you contacting me with your questions.
> The subject property actually extends on both sides of El Norte Parkway because the El Norte roadway extension
bisected the property. That said, the proposed project for the T-Mobile monopine will be located on the northern
portion of the property on the western side close to the existing single-story house.
> The studies the carrier submitted say emissions from this antenna array are below what the FCC sets as a safe
level. None of those emissions is supposed to be audible.
> If you have any further questions, please let me know.
> Thanks,
>
> Paul Bingham
> Assistant Planner II
> Planning Division | City of Escondido
> Direct: 760-839-4306
> www.escondido.org
>
>
>
>
> -----Original Message-----
> From: Diane Moritz <dddipat@cox.net>
> Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2019 12:25 PM
> To: Paul Bingham <pbingham@escondido.org>

64



> Subject: PHG 18-0016
>
> The map is unclear to me. Is the site just on the north side of El Norte Pkwy or does it include part of the field
behind the houses on Jonathon Pl.? Will the communications facility/mechanical equipment emit audible noise that
will disturb the surrounding neighborhoods?
> Thank you.
> Diane Moritz
>
> Sent from my iPhone

65



From: Paul Bingham
To: Joanne Tasher
Subject: FW: conditional use permit-PHG 18-0016
Date: Thursday, July 18, 2019 1:25:26 PM

Forward #8

Paul Bingham
Assistant Planner II
Planning Division | City of Escondido
Direct: 760-839-4306
www.escondido.org

From: shelumiel@cox.net <shelumiel@cox.net> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2019 10:52 AM
To: Paul Bingham <pbingham@escondido.org>
Subject: conditional use permit-PHG 18-0016

Dear Sir, My name is Richard Micheletti and I reside at 668 Jonathon Place. My back yard is located
at the southwest corner of the property in question.
My concerns are:

1. We already had the city try to locate an illegal “water reclamation plant” (sewer treatment)
on the adjoining property which I thought was all one piece of property, not a separate lot. If
this a veiled attempt to change the zoning for future use, it will be met with legal resistance.
Like the notice points out, this is a single family residential area.

2. Again, this is a single family residential area! Why does the city continue to want to use this
property for commercial use? When I bought my property, I went to city planning and
inquired about the status of the property behind me and was told it was a wildlife corridor!

3. I do not know the whole history of why the property in question is being used commercially in
the first place, as vehicle storage lot(s), except when the original ranch was split up, the
owners gave the city this parcel as a concession but, again, this is a single family residential
area!

4. The bunker and fake pine tree may adversely effect the surrounding property values.
5. Having a broadcast and electro-mechanical background, I am aware of harmful magnetic

fields produced by the equipment mentioned, not to mention microwave transmission
exposure, both presenting  potential health risks.

6. This notice is severely lacking in lead time and actual facts, like placing an x as to where this
bunker style building and tower would be located for a start.

Aside from this notice, I also want to lodge a complaint about the fire hazard due to a lack of
care of the city owned lot behind my property. I have formally complained online but
nothing has been done. I have spent months for the last 3 years eradicating tumble weed

66



the blow over my fence.

67



From: Paul Bingham
To: Joanne Tasher
Subject: FW: Challenge to Request for Conditional Use Permit - PHG 18-0016
Date: Thursday, July 18, 2019 1:26:04 PM

Forward #9

 

 
 

Paul Bingham
Assistant Planner II
Planning Division | City of Escondido
Direct: 760-839-4306
www.escondido.org
 

 
 

From: Miranda Marlow <mirandamarlow@gmail.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2019 10:31 AM
To: Paul Bingham <pbingham@escondido.org>
Cc: Miranda Marlow <mirandamarlow@gmail.com>
Subject: Challenge to Request for Conditional Use Permit - PHG 18-0016
 
Dear Mr. Bingham,
 
Please accept this notice as an official challenge to the request to
install a wireless communications facility in my neighborhood
(Case No. PHG 18-0016).  Unfortunately as a mom to 2 young children,
and my husband on travel for work, I will not be able to attend the Public
Hearing July 23 at 7pm in person.  I am submitting this official notice to
you in lieu of my physical attendance at the public hearing.
 
I have lived on Hamlin Court with my husband, and 2 young daughters for
the past 9 years. We have dealt with the noise and disruption from the
business operations adjacent to us since the beginning. The business
operations noise and disruption from its trucks and machinery have
steadily increased over time without any notification or consideration of
the impact to their residential neighbors.  We are very disappointed
this business is requesting to build and expand by installing a
wireless communication facility, without any consideration for its
residential neighbors, especially those of us who are directly
adjacent. 
 
Our property values will decrease due to the unsightly "faux pine tree" and
"bunker style building" as well as the stigma of health risks yet unknown
caused by such a facility. It was noticeable and disturbing that this
permit request is "exempt from environment review". We are a
neighborhood of families with young children, the lack of consideration for

68



our general health, safety and well-being is unsettling to say the least.
 
We understand that wireless communications is an important
infrastructure for our city, but I beg you to reconsider the impact and
appropriateness of this structure in a residential neighborhood
with young children.  We hope that you will respect our neighborhood,
stand up to this business on our behalf and relocate this structure to a
more appropriate location.
 
Thank you for your time and service to our community.  
 
Sincerely,
Miranda Marlow (also on behalf of Madeleine and Carl Rodoni)
2552 Hamlin Court
Escondido, CA 92027
M: 858-997-5485
mirandamarlow@gmail.com

69



From: Paul Bingham
To: Joanne Tasher
Subject: FW: New Studies Link Cell Phone Radiation with Cancer - Scientific American
Date: Thursday, July 18, 2019 1:33:38 PM

Forward #10

Paul Bingham
Assistant Planner II
Planning Division | City of Escondido
Direct: 760-839-4306
www.escondido.org

-----Original Message-----
From: roland hanson <fielder681@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, July 17, 2019 10:27 AM
To: Paul Bingham <pbingham@escondido.org>
Cc: Pam Albergo <palbergo@sbcglobal.net>
Subject: New Studies Link Cell Phone Radiation with Cancer - Scientific American

Mr Bingham,
As regards the city’s plan to place a cell tower in our area, please be advised of the below linked article on a recent
study of biological affects of cell phone radiation.
Regards,
Roland Hanson PSM, Health Physics
681 Star Ruby Court
Escondido, CA 92027

https://www.scientificamerican.com/article/new-studies-link-cell-phone-radiation-with-cancer/

Sent from my iPhone

70



From: Paul Bingham
To: Joanne Tasher
Subject: FW: PHG 18-0016 2576 E. El Norte Parkway
Date: Thursday, July 18, 2019 1:34:12 PM

Forward #11

 

 
 

Paul Bingham
Assistant Planner II
Planning Division | City of Escondido
Direct: 760-839-4306
www.escondido.org
 

 
 

From: Pam Albergo <palbergo@sbcglobal.net> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 16, 2019 4:56 PM
To: Paul Bingham <pbingham@escondido.org>
Subject: Re: PHG 18-0016 2576 E. El Norte Parkway
 
Thank you for your attention to this issue. I look forward to
hearing from you with further information. 
 
Pam 
 
On Tuesday, July 16, 2019, 02:20:17 PM PDT, Paul Bingham <pbingham@escondido.org> wrote:

 

 

Hi Pam,

  Thank you for sending this to me. Someone else had already forwarded it, which

prompted me to do more research.

  I appreciate all of your concerns and please know that your letters will be attached to my

staff report sent to Planning Commission and we will discuss the issues at hearing.

  FYI: I am having some internal meetings on these issues and will get back to you with

more.

  Thanks,

 

Paul Bingham

Assistant Planner II

Planning Division | City of Escondido
71



Direct: 760-839-4306

pbingham@escondido.org

 

 

From: Pam Albergo <palbergo@sbcglobal.net> 

Sent: Tuesday, July 16, 2019 1:54 PM

To: Paul Bingham <pbingham@escondido.org>

Subject: PHG 18-0016 2576 E. El Norte Parkway

 

Paul,

 

My name is Pam Albergo. My husband Tom and I have sent emails to the planning commission and city

council previously but realized that we should also send a copy to you.

 

We oppose the cell tower and concrete building and also have grave concerns about the businesses in

that location as stated in our letter I have attached. 

 

Please feel free to contact us.

Pam Albergo 760-802-369

Tom Albergo 760-644-1030

 

Thank you, 

Pam

 

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android

72



From: Paul Bingham
To: Joanne Tasher
Subject: FW: PHG 18-0016 2576 E. El Norte Parkway
Date: Thursday, July 18, 2019 1:34:49 PM
Attachments: letter to planning and city council Conditional Use Permit PHG 18-1.docx

Forward #12

 

 
 

Paul Bingham
Assistant Planner II
Planning Division | City of Escondido
Direct: 760-839-4306
www.escondido.org
 

 
 

From: Pam Albergo <palbergo@sbcglobal.net> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 16, 2019 1:54 PM
To: Paul Bingham <pbingham@escondido.org>
Subject: PHG 18-0016 2576 E. El Norte Parkway
 
Paul,
 
My name is Pam Albergo. My husband Tom and I have sent emails to the planning
commission and city council previously but realized that we should also send a copy to you.
 
We oppose the cell tower and concrete building and also have grave concerns about the
businesses in that location as stated in our letter I have attached. 
 
Please feel free to contact us.
Pam Albergo 760-802-369
Tom Albergo 760-644-1030
 
Thank you, 
Pam
 
Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android

73



We are writing today to air our concerns about the proposed Conditional Use 

Permit PHG 18-0016, a proposed 40ft cell phone tower and 12’x20’ block 

enclosure at 2534 East El Norte Parkway (APN No. 225-270-63-00). The Planning 

Commission hearing is scheduled for July 23, 2019. 

 

We are traveling and will be unable to attend the meeting, but wanted you to 

know our concerns. As residents whose property is approximately 100 yards away 

from the proposed tower and block building we have a number of concerns.  

First, when we moved into our home in 2013, the property was used primarily by 

Soapstone Werks and our noise/appearance concerns were minimal. The business 

operated primarily on weekdays and seemed to adhere to normal business hours. 

A number of years later Airx either expanded or located their business at that 

location. Since then, we have had constant issues with hearing the loud backup 

warning device from their numerous trucks and vehicles at all hours of the day 

and night including many from 4am to 6am. We have previously contacted, on 

numerous occasions the Code Enforcement Department.  This has had some, but 

minimal impact in lessening the noise. In addition to the vehicle noises their 

employees routinely play loud, thumping music from their stereos at the various 

shift changes at all times of the day and night.  

 

The parcel is zoned as R-1-12 Single Family Residential, 12,00 SF minimum lot size, 

not light industrial. In addition to the two businesses on the property (not in a 

property zoned light industrial), there exists multi-family residential units. 

Occupants of those residences have on numerous occasions have had live bands 

playing late into the night prompting us and other neighbors to have to call for 

police assistance. 

 

The owners of this parcel have been poor neighbors as outlined above and now 

they are seeking to put a profit making tower on their property at the expense of 

the residents surrounding this property yet again impacting our property values, 

our tranquility and now quite possibly our health. 

74



Please disallow this request for conditional use to go forward. Over the years the 

property owners have demonstrated that they do not care about their impact on 

the surrounding neighborhood and therefore should not be granted their request 

to further negatively impact the residents of the surrounding neighborhood. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Pam and Tom Albergo 

2576 Hamlin Court 

Escondido, CA  92027 

palbergo@sbcglobal.net 

talbergo@sbcglobal.net 

 

75



From: Paul Bingham
To: Joanne Tasher
Subject: FW: Conditional Use Permit - PHG 18-0016
Date: Thursday, July 18, 2019 1:35:54 PM

Forward #13

 

 
 

Paul Bingham
Assistant Planner II
Planning Division | City of Escondido
Direct: 760-839-4306
www.escondido.org
 

 
 

From: Michael Hendel <mjhhendel@gmail.com> 
Sent: Friday, July 12, 2019 2:17 PM
To: Paul Bingham <pbingham@escondido.org>
Cc: Michael Hendel <mjhhendel@gmail.com>
Subject: Conditional Use Permit - PHG 18-0016
 
Hi Paul,
 
My wife and I live at 743 Sungold Way in the Chaparral Ridge community.  We received the
notice of public hearing from Escondido for a Conditional Use Permit for a wireless
communications facility to be located at 2534 East El Norte Parkway.  Our home backs up to
this property.
 
Although the site was zoned residential, the property was grandfathered for existing business
use at the time we bought the model home (July 2011) when the community was nearing
completion. At that time there were 3 businesses on the property - Soapstone Werks, AirX and
a halfway house.  Since that time, AirX has grown significantly with more trucks, dumping
pits, equipment, activity and noise throughout the day and are now using space on both the
north and south sides of the property which is split by East El Norte Parkway.  Besides part of
AirX's operation, the south side of the property is also a contractor storage area for trailers and
other items.  Also, on the north side of El Norte Parkway near the street and behind the fence,
we also see landscaper trucks, shipping containers, and RVs.
 
Our major concern is the site is zoned R-1-12 but since we've moved in the site has moved
progressively further away from single family residential and now has more commercial
business uses than what was disclosed and active at the time of our purchase and with more 24
hour activity.  The addition of a wireless communications facility, which is likely a very
permanent use, adds to the site being basically for business use longer term.
 
Work has just started on prepping the land on the east side of Tangelo Place for 3 single
family homes which is great to see.  We feeI the need is to keep 2534 East El Norte Parkway
zoned residential with no further business use additions so it is preserved in the state it was
when Shea Homes built this community.  We feel it's already gone far beyond that with AirX's

76



expansion, contractor storage, and landscaper, shipping containers and RVs parking uses.
 
We would like to talk to you about this as soon as possible to gain additional information and
your insights prior to the council meeting on July 23.  We will also be looking to make
comments on this at the council meeting.
 
Please let us know your schedule and when we can talk to you hopefully on Monday 7/15 or
Tuesday 7/16. Thanks for your help in advance and we look forward to talking to you soon.
 
Mike and Mary Hendel
743 Sungold Way
Escondido, CA 92027
 
Mike's cell: 619-540-0799
Home: 760-294-0743
 
Parcel # 225-760-31-00

77



Attachment 3







 
YOUR RF SAFETY PARTNER 

Page 1/14

 
RADIO FREQUENCY ELECTROMAGNETIC FIELDS EXPOSURE REPORT 

  
 Prepared for T-Mobile 

 
c/o PlanCom, Inc. 

Site Name: El Norte Parkway 
Site ID: SD07212A 
Site Type: Monopine 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Located at: 
 

2534 E El Norte Parkway 
Escondido, CA 92027 

Latitude: 33.1500 / Longitude: -117.0487 
 
 
 

Report Date:  8/30/2019 
Report By:  Jamie Santos 

 
 
 
 

Based on FCC Rules and Regulations, T-Mobile is will be compliant 
provided recommendations are implemented. 

Attachment 4



 

             5850 Oberlin Drive, Ste. 300 San Diego, CA 92121 58.792.0066 www.dtechcom.com Page 2/14 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................................................3
2.0 SITE DESCRIPTION ........................................................................................................................................4

2.1 Site Map .............................................................................................................................................................4
2.2 Antenna Inventory ...........................................................................................................................................5

3.0 ANALYSIS ...........................................................................................................................................................6
3.1 Emission Predictions .......................................................................................................................................6

4.0 CONCLUSION ...................................................................................................................................................9
4.1 Results ................................................................................................................................................................9
4.2 Recommendation(s) .........................................................................................................................................9
4.3 Statement of Compliance ............................................................................................................................. 11
4.4 Engineer Certification ................................................................................................................................... 11

 
Appendix A:  Background ........................................................................................................................................... 12
Appendix B:  Measurement and/or Computer Simulation Methods ................................................................... 13
Appendix C:  Limitations ............................................................................................................................................ 13
Appendix D:  T-Mobile RF Advisory Signs ............................................................................................................. 14
 
  



 

             5850 Oberlin Drive, Ste. 300 San Diego, CA 92121 58.792.0066 www.dtechcom.com Page 3/14 

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

PlanCom Inc., contractors to T-Mobile, to 
determine whether its wireless communications facility complies with the Federal Communications 

. This report contains a computer-
simulated analysis of the sure resulting from the facility.  The analysis 
also includes assessment of existing wireless carriers on site, where information is provided.  The table 
below summarizes the results at a glance: 
 

Table 1: EMF Summary 

T-Mobile Summary 

Access Type Walk-up/Man-lift 
Access to antennas locked NA 

RF Sign(s) @ access point(s) NOC, Guidelines & Caution 
(Recommended) 

RF Sign(s) @ antennas  None 
Barrier(s) @ sectors NA 
Max EMF level for 

 T-Mobile on Ground 1.5% General Population 

Max EMF level for 
 T-Mobile on Adjacent Roof 

34.5% General Population 
(6.9% Occupational) 

Min Clearance Distance from Face of  
T-Mobile  Antennas 41 Feet 

 
  



 

             5850 Oberlin Drive, Ste. 300 San Diego, CA 92121 58.792.0066 www.dtechcom.com Page 4/14 

2.0 SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The wireless telecommunication facility is located on a building rooftop.  The facility consists of 1 wireless 
carrier(s) or operator(s): T-Mobile.  The antennas are typically grouped into sectors pointing in different 
directions to achieve the desired areas of coverage.  T-Mobile antennas are mounted on a monopine tower 
and are connected to the equipment via coaxial cables. 
 

2.1 Site Map 
 

 
  



 

             5850 Oberlin Drive, Ste. 300 San Diego, CA 92121 58.792.0066 www.dtechcom.com Page 5/14 

2.2 Antenna Inventory 
 
Technical specifications in the table below are provided by our clients and/or gathered from physical field 
surveys where applicable and/or possible.  Conservative estimates are used where information is not 
provided or available. 
 

Table 2: Site Technical Specifications

  

Antenna ID Operator Antenna Mfg Antenna Model Type 
Frequency 

(MHz) Technology
Orientation 

(°T)
Horizontal 
BWdth (°)

Antenna 
Aperture (ft)

Antenna 
Gain (dBd)

Total ERP 
(Watts)

Bottom Tip 
Height Above 
Ground (Z) (ft)

Bottom Tip 
Height Above 

Adj. Roof (Z) (ft)

Bottom Tip 
Height At Ant. 

Level (Z) (ft)

A1 T-Mobile Ericsson AIR3246 Panel 2100 LTE 40 27.1 4.9 19.4 13934 29.7 15.7 0.0
A2 T-Mobile RFS APXVAARR24 43-U-NA20 Panel 700 LTE 40 61.01 8.0 13.3 2999 28.1 14.1 0.0
A3 T-Mobile Commscope TMBXX-6516-R2M Panel 1900 UMTS/LTE 40 65 4.2 15.4 4866 30.0 16.0 0.0
B1 T-Mobile Ericsson AIR3246 Panel 2100 LTE 140 27.1 4.9 19.4 13934 29.7 15.7 0.0
B2 T-Mobile RFS APXVAARR24 43-U-NA20 Panel 700 LTE 140 61.01 8.0 13.3 2999 28.1 14.1 0.0
B3 T-Mobile Commscope TMBXX-6516-R2M Panel 1900 UMTS/LTE 140 65 4.2 15.4 4866 30.0 16.0 0.0
C1 T-Mobile Ericsson AIR3246 Panel 2100 LTE 260 27.1 4.9 19.4 13934 29.7 15.7 0.0
C2 T-Mobile RFS APXVAARR24 43-U-NA20 Panel 700 LTE 260 61.01 8.0 13.3 2999 28.1 14.1 0.0
C3 T-Mobile Commscope TMBXX-6516-R2M Panel 1900 UMTS/LTE 260 65 4.2 15.4 4866 30.0 16.0 0.0
D1 T-Mobile Commscope Unknown Dish 10500 - 270 2 4.0 38.0 65 25.0 11.0 0.0



 

5850 Oberlin Drive, Ste. 300 San Diego, CA 92121 58.792.0066 www.dtechcom.com Page 6/14

3.0 ANALYSIS 

3.1 Emission Predictions 
 

Figure 1: General Population MPE (Maximum Permissible Exposure) Limits. Gray 
represents areas where exposure levels are calculated to be at or below 5%; Green- between 5% & 100% (below MPE limits); blue, yellow & red  
greater than 100% (exceeds MPE limits).  Individuals can safely occupy areas in gray and green for indefinite amount of time; whereas areas in blue, 
yellow & red must be restricted to RF trained personnel who has been made fully aware of potential for exposure, has control and knows how to reduce 
their exposure with the use of personal protection equipment or has the ability to power down the transmitters. 

 



 

5850 Oberlin Drive, Ste. 300 San Diego, CA 92121 58.792.0066 www.dtechcom.com Page 7/14

Figure 2:
Exposure) Limits. Gray represents areas where exposure levels are calculated to be at or below 5%; Green- between 5% & 
100% (below MPE limits); blue, yellow & red  greater than 100% (exceeds MPE limits).  Individuals can safely occupy 
areas in gray and green for indefinite amount of time; whereas areas in blue, yellow & red must be restricted to RF trained 
personnel who has been made fully aware of potential for exposure, has control and knows how to reduce their exposure with the 
use of personal protection equipment or has the ability to power down the transmitters. 

 
 



 

5850 Oberlin Drive, Ste. 300 San Diego, CA 92121 58.792.0066 www.dtechcom.com Page 8/14

Figure 3:
Exposure) Limits. Gray represents areas where exposure levels are calculated to be at or below 5%; Green- between 5% & 
100% (below MPE limits); blue, yellow & red  greater than 100% (exceeds MPE limits).  Individuals can safely occupy 
areas in gray and green for indefinite amount of time; whereas areas in blue, yellow & red must be restricted to RF trained 
personnel who has been made fully aware of potential for exposure, has control and knows how to reduce their exposure with the 
use of personal protection equipment or has the ability to power down the transmitters. 

 
 



 

             5850 Oberlin Drive, Ste. 300 San Diego, CA 92121 58.792.0066 www.dtechcom.com Page 9/14 

4.0 CONCLUSION  
 

4.1 Results  
 
For a person standing in accessible areas on the ground and adjacent roof, calculations for T-Mobile  

t General Population MPE Limits  
(see figure 1 & 2). 
 

General Population MPE 
Limits near the T-Mobile antenna(s) (see figure 3). The overexposed (yellow and blue) areas extend 41-feet 
from the front face of the T-Mobile antenna(s). From the provided drawings, there are no other buildings or 
surrounding structures at antenna elevation within 41-feet of the T-Mobile antenna(s).  Beyond 41-feet, 

General Population MPE Limits.  
 
The antennas are mounted on a tall tower and therefore not accessible by the general public. It is presumed 
that T-Mobile employees and facility owners are aware of the transmitting antennas and will take 
appropriate precautions when working near them. 
 
 

4.2 Recommendation(s)  
 
The following compliance action(s) would be sufficient to meet the FCC's RF Safety Guidelines  
(see figure 4):   

1) Install NOC Sign(s), GUIDELINES Sign(s) and CAUTION Sign(s) at each tower climbing access 
point or base of the tower, where they will be clearly visible to tower climbers. 

a. Signage should be mounted preferably away from public view and high on the tower to 
minimize unnecessary alarm. 

  
 
 
 
  



 

5850 Oberlin Drive, Ste. 300 San Diego, CA 92121 58.792.0066 www.dtechcom.com Page 10/14

Figure 4: Recommendation(s)    

 
 



 

             5850 Oberlin Drive, Ste. 300 San Diego, CA 92121 58.792.0066 www.dtechcom.com Page 11/14 

 06/30/21 

4.3 Statement of Compliance 
 
Based on the above resul
that T-Mobile site provided recommendation(s) are 
implemented.  
 
 

4.4 Engineer Certification 
 
This report has been prepared by or under the direction of the following Registered Professional Engineer: 
Darang Tech, holding California registration number 16000.  I have reviewed this report and believe it to be 
both true and accurate to the best of my knowledge. 
 
 
 

 
 
________________________ 

Darang Tech, P.E. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

             5850 Oberlin Drive, Ste. 300 San Diego, CA 92121 58.792.0066 www.dtechcom.com Page 12/14 

Appendix A:  Background 
 
Dtech uses the 

-
Electromagnetic Fields  below summarizes the current Maximum Permissible Exposure 

safety limits classified into two groups: General population and Occupational. 
 

Table 3: FCC MPE Limits (from OET-65)

Frequency 
(Mhz) 

General Population/ 
Uncontrolled MPE 

(mW/cm2) 

 
Averaging 

Time 
(minutes) 

 

 
Occupational/ 

Controlled MPE 
(mW/cm2) 

 

   
Averaging 

Time 
   (minutes) 

 

30 - 300 0.2 30 1.0 6 

300 - 1500 Frequency (Mhz)/1500 
(0.2  1.0) 30 Frequency (Mhz)/300 

(1.0  5.0) 6 

1500 - 
100,000 

1.0 30 5.0 6 

 
 limits apply in situations in which the general public may be exposed or 

in which persons who are exposed as a consequence of their employment, and may not be fully aware of the 
potential for exposure or cannot exercise control over their exposure.  Therefore, members of the general 
public always fall under this category when exposure is not employment-related. 
 

 limits apply in situations in which persons are exposed as a consequence of their 
employment, and those persons have been made fully aware of the potential for exposure and can exercise 
control over their exposure.  Occupational/controlled limits also apply where exposure is of a transient 
nature as a result of incidental passage through a location where exposure levels may be above general 
population/uncontrolled limits, as long as the exposed person has been made fully aware of the potential 
for exposure and can exercise control over his or her exposure by leaving the area or by some other 
appropriate means. 
 
It is important to understand that the FCC guidelines specify exposure limits not emission limits.  For a 
transmitting facility to be out of compliance with the FCC's RF safety guidelines an area or areas where 
levels exceed the MPE limits must, first of all, be in some way accessible to the public or to workers.  When 
accessibility to an area where excessive levels is appropriately restricted, the facility or operation can certify 
that it complies with the FCC requirements. 
  



 

             5850 Oberlin Drive, Ste. 300 San Diego, CA 92121 58.792.0066 www.dtechcom.com Page 13/14 

Appendix B:  Measurement and/or Computer Simulation Methods 
 
Spatial averaging measurement technique is used.  An area between 2 and 6 feet, approximately the size of 
an average human, is scanned in single passes from top to bottom in multiple planes.  When possible, 
measurements were made at very close proximity to the antennas and inside the main beam where most of 
the energy is emitted.  The spatial averaged values were recorded. 
 
Dtech uses an industry standard power density prediction computer Model1 to assess the worse-case, 
cumulative EMF impact of the surrounding areas of the subject site.  The Model does not take into account 
losses due to buildings.  Its methodologies are conservative enough to account for typical down-tilts 
deployed in wireless communications.  In addition, the analysis is performed at 100% duty cycle-all 
transmitters are active at all times and transmitting at maximum power.  For purposes of a cumulative study, 
nearby transmitters are included where possible.  The result is a surrounding area map color-coded to 

A result higher than 100% exceeds the Limits.   
 
Appendix C:  Limitations 
 
The conclusions in this document rendered by Dtech are based solely upon the information collected during 
the site survey and/or furnished by our Client which Dtech believes is accurate and correct.  Dtech, 
however, has no responsibility should such Client provided information prove to be inaccurate or 
incorrect.   Third party specification estimates used for cumulative computer simulation purposes, where 
applicable, are based on common industry practices and our best interpretation of available information.  
Data, results and conclusions in this document are valid as of its date.  However, as mobile technologies 
continuously change, these data, results and conclusions may also be at variance with such future changes.
Dtech has no responsibility to update its survey or report to account for such future technology changes.  
This document was prepared for the use of our Client only and cannot be utilized by any third party for any 
purpose   Dtech shall have no liability for any unauthorized use of this 
document and any such unauthorized user shall defend, indemnify and hold Dtech and its owners, directors, 
officers and employees harmless from and against any liability, claim, demand, loss or expense (including 

 
 
  

                                                 
1 Roofmaster(tm) 2015 Version 15.7.2.18 



 

5850 Oberlin Drive, Ste. 300 San Diego, CA 92121 58.792.0066 www.dtechcom.com Page 14/14

Appendix D:  T-Mobile RF Advisory Signs 

 

 
 

GUIDELINES Sign 
 
 

 
 

 
 

NOC Sign 
 
 

 
 

NOTICE Sign 

 
 

CAUTION Sign 
 
 

 
 

WARNING Sign 

 
 



Attachment 5







































































































































































































































































































































































































Attachment 6











ATTACHMENT 7

CODE ENFORCEMENT SUMMARY

 Request for Investigation received by Code Enforcement on July 16, 2019. 
Submitted by Paul Bingham on behalf of reporting party Mike Hendel. Concerns 
include: unpermitted storage, cargo containers, intensification of use of property, 
unpermitted slurry pits, parking commercial vehicles on adjacent residential street.

 Code case opened July 18; case #CE2019-1427; case received by Officer Pinaglia 
on July 22.

 Phone call made to Marcus Leso, Environmental Compliance Supervisor. Marcus 
stated that annual inspections of the property, including making sure any slurry pits 
found complied with State law and above ground fuel tanks had proper 
containment beneath them, have been conducted. No Environmental Compliance 
violations have been noted. County DEH is tasked with inspection and certification 
of fuel tanks. DEH was contacted and had no record of tanks at this location. They 
stated they would investigate.

 Code Enforcement inspection performed on July 23, 2019. Items noted during 
inspection: multiple cargo containers throughout the property, diesel fuel storage 
tank located in AirX staging area (former tennis courts), total of 6 slurry pits in 
various stages of processing, commercial storage of semi-trailers, vehicles, and 
miscellaneous equipment, businesses without valid City business license, 
statement from AirX manager Darek Spizewski regarding hours of operation 
beginning as early as 0600 hours.

 Requested and received information regarding active business licenses on the 
property. 3 current business licenses are for: AirX, Soapstone Works, and CE 
Wilson. Requested and received a copy of the original business license application 
for AirX, which was submitted to the business license department on July 20, 2009.

 Additional noise complaint received.
 On July 24, received an email from Paul Bingham regarding the Planning 

Commission’s approval of cell tower. Question arose regarding validity of 2007 
restatement letter.

 Meeting held with City Attorneys Gary McCarthy, and Deputy Alma Gurrola. Also 
in attendance Adam Finestone, Bill Kaw, and myself to present the case and 
receive some clarification on the Certificate of Non-Conforming Use, and 
restatement letter of 2007.

 Initial contact with property owner, Brian Wilson, on August 2. I explained 
complaints on the property, and that I was waiting for more information from the 
City Attorney. Wilson declined to provide me with a list of the businesses operating 
on the property.

 On August 2, received a copy of the Condemnation Settlement Agreement from 
Owen Tunnell. Forwarded the information to Alma Gurrola and Gary McCarthy.

 Notice of Violation issued on August 5, 2019. Violations cited: 1) Unpermitted 
cargo container 2) Businesses without valid business license 3) Construction noise 
beyond lawful hours 4) Unpermitted use—commercial storage.

 August 5, additional noise complaints received.



 Phone call with property owner, Sharon Wilson, on August 14. She stated the 2007 
restatement letter was invalid, and merely a proposal.

 Email received from AirX stating application for cargo container has been denied 
by the Planning Department.

 Email received from reporting party, requesting a meeting with himself and the 
neighborhood group.

 Additional noise complaints August 14.
 Written response from the Nalu Law Firm regarding Notice of Violation received 

on August 14. Forwarded response to the City Attorney.
 Additional complaint received regarding standing water and mosquitos on the 

property; August 15.
 On August 19, complaint received regarding slurry draining into the street near 

Jonathan Place. Went to the area for an inspection. No violation found. 
Documented with photos.

 Business license application received for “Wilson Storage” on August 20.
 Business license application received for “Wilson Brothers Construction” on Aug 

20.
 Meeting with Brian and Sharon Wilson on the property. We discussed the case 

and the business of Wilson Brothers Construction. Mr. Wilson stated this business 
license application was in anticipation of AirX company leaving his property. He 
said the new company would perform maintenance on heavy duty, civil 
engineering equipment. Wilson stated this business use would be louder than the 
current use.

 Additional complaint received on August 20, regarding construction noise.
 On August 21, a meeting was held with the City Attorneys. In attendance were 

Gary McCarthy, Alma Gurrola, Jim Kurupas, Adam Finestone, Paul Bingham, 
Marcus Leso, and Juan Magdaraog. It was determined that the 2007 letter does 
not apply to this case. The 1988 Certificate of Non-Conforming Use will be to 
determine actions necessary to bring the property into compliance. The certificate 
includes an “Exhibit B”, as well as a “Site-Plan”, and that Exhibit B would take 
precedent for any discrepancies. It was also determined at this time that an 
addendum Notice of Violation would be issued for the slurry pits, citing that the 
addition of the pits was an “intensification” of the non-conforming use.

 On August 21, Gail McMorran, president of Airx, came to the front counter. She 
expressed her frustration regarding the number of inspections her business has 
undergone in the recent weeks. Gail said she felt she was being harassed. She 
also spoke with Grant in Planning Department, inquiring about the possibility of 
relocating her business to 559 N Hale, formerly Talone’s Meat Market. Gale said 
it would take her “at least a year” to relocate her business and that she had 71 
employees that would be unemployed if she was forced to stop operating.

 On August 22, attended annual storm water inspection with Marcus Leso. 
Performed concurrent vehicle/ equipment inventory on the property.

 Received email with attached report from recent storm water inspection.
 On August 22, received email complaint of standing water on El Norte. Went to the 

property and inspected the area. No standing water found.
 Additional complaint on August 26, regarding noise and slurry.



 Additional complaint on August 27, regarding noise level of slurry pump.
 Additional complaint on Aug 28, regarding noise level and slurry pump.
 On August 29, a meeting was held with Deputy City Manager Bill Wolfe. Also in 

attendance were Bill Martin, Paul Bingham, Bill Kaw, and myself. I briefed Mr. 
Wolfe on the case, and the previous meeting with the City Attorney. It was 
reiterated that the slurry pit violation would be the focus of this case at this time. I 
asked for guidance on a time frame for compliance. I was given an initial time frame 
of 30 days. Bill Martin recommended AirX contact Michelle Gellar for assistance in 
relocating.

 August 30, I issued an addendum Notice of Violation regarding the slurry pits.
 Phone call with Mr. Wilson, to schedule meeting to deliver NOV. Wilson was 

unavailable to meet. He asked for information. I told him the contents of the new 
NOV and said he would receive a copy in the mail.

 Meeting scheduled with Gail McMorran of AirX to deliver the Noitce of Violation.
 On August 30, I met with Gail and her partner Steve Tweeting, on the property. I 

delivered the Notice of Violation and had a lengthy conversation regarding its 
contents. Gail’s biggest concern was the 30-day time frame. I gave her Michelle 
Gellar’s contact information and told her I would follow-up in 30 days to check on 
the progress of her move.

 On August 30, attempted contact at the home of the reporting party, Mike Hendel. 
There was no response. Left door hanger with note asking for a call.

 On August 30, contacted second RP, Tom Albergo. Met with Mr. and Mrs. Albergo 
at their home. Gave them a brief update on the case and the direction the City will 
take regarding the slurry pits. Tom had follow-up questions regarding the 
underground fuel tank, and testing of the slurry.

 On September 3, I received an email chain between Pam Albergo and the County 
Dept. of Health Care Services. Mrs. Albergo was requesting an investigation into 
the sober-living facility on the property.

 On September 3, received a call from RP Mike Hendel. Gave him a brief update 
on the case. He had follow-up questions regarding the underground fuel tank, and 
testing of the slurry.

 On September 4, received email from RP, Hendel, with an extensive list of follow-
up questions.

 On September 5, request for investigation email received from RP, Hendel, 
regarding the diesel fuel tank.

 On September 5, received a voicemail message from both Gail McMorran of Airx, 
and her partner Steve. Gail had contacted Michelle Gellar and was told no 
properties available for relocating within the city.

 On September 5, additional complaint received regarding construction noise.
 On September 5, received a written response from the Nalu Law Firm regarding 

the Notice of Violation issued August 30, on behalf of the property owner.
 On September 6, complaint received regarding broken sewer line. Property was 

inspected by CEO Don Simpkins, and Sr. CEO Jim Kurupas. No broken sewer line 
or sewage was present at the time.

 Between the dates of September 4-8, received several emails from AirX 
employees regarding their opposition to the City’s enforcement.



 On September 10, received email from RP Hendel, again requesting an 
informational meeting on the case.

 On September 10, received additional noise complaint.
 On September 11, went to the property to inspect the sober-living facility. Found 

unpermitted construction in the dwelling, as well as violations of the CA Health and 
Safety Code, and property maintenance violations. Notice of Violation and 
separate case number pending.

 On September 11, received information from Building Inspector, Luke Storno, that 
a building permit would not be required to build the pits. I also sent an email inquiry 
to Cynthia in Engineering, per Luke’s request.

 On September 12, checked the microfiche and reviewed county assessor building 
records. No permit found for diesel fuel storage tank related to AirX business.

 Pending Notice of Violation for diesel fuel tank.
 On September 13, complaint received from real estate developer developing 

property just west of this parcel.
 On September 13, received additional noise complaint.
 On September 16, received 2 emails: one opposition letter and one health advisory 

letter from members of the neighborhood group.
 September 16, phone call to Keith James, resident manager of the sober-living 

facility to schedule second inspection, to be attended by a building official and fire 
marshal. Inspection scheduled for September 19.



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-148

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, TO DENY 
AN APPEAL AND UPHOLD THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION’S APPROVAL OF A CONDITIONAL 
USE PERMIT TO INSTALL A WIRELESS 
COMMUNICATION FACILITY AT 2534 EAST EL 
NORTE PARKWAY 

APPLICANT: Plancom, Inc. (for PTI-T-Mobile)
CASE NO.: PHG 18-0016

WHEREAS, the project applicant, Plancom, Inc., on behalf of PTI-T-Mobile 

(hereinafter referred to as “Applicant”), filed a land use development application (Planning 

Case No. PHG18-0016) constituting a request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the 

installation of a wireless communication facility on a 4.52-acre site located at 2534 East 

El Norte Parkway (APN 225-270-63-00), zoned single-family residential (R-1-10), and 

more accurately described in Exhibit “A,” attached to this Resolution and incorporated 

herein by this reference as though fully set forth; and 

WHEREAS, the land use development application site plan (attached hereto as 

Exhibit “D” and incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth) was 

submitted to, and processed by, the Planning Division of the Community Development 

Department in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Escondido Zoning Code 

and the applicable procedures and time limits specified by the Permit Streamlining Act 

(Government Code Section 65920 et seq.) and the California Environmental Quality Act 

(“CEQA”) (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.); and

WHEREAS, wireless communication facilities are conditionally permitted uses 

within the R-1-10 Zone, subject to approval of a Conditional Use Permit, in accordance 



with Division 1 of Article 61 in all residential and open space zones and Article 34 

(Wireless Communication Facilities Ordinance); and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed public hearing on 

July 23, 2019, to review and consider the Conditional Use Permit request.  At the 

conclusion of said hearing, the Planning Commission adopted Planning Commission 

Resolution No. 2019-14, approving the project without prejudice; and

WHEREAS, the appellant, Mike Hendel, filed a timely appeal received by the Office 

of the City Clerk on August 1, 2019; and  

WHEREAS, a notice was published and mailed as required by the Escondido 

Zoning Code and applicable State law, and the City Council held a public hearing on 

September 25, 2019, to consider the appeal.  At said hearing, a staff report was presented 

discussing the issues in the matter, and all persons desiring to speak did so; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council may reach a decision on the matter without deference 

to the decision of the Planning Commission.  The City Council reviewed the findings of 

the Planning Commission and may utilize or adopt any, all, or none of them.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That the Findings of Fact, attached as Exhibit “B,” and incorporated herein 

by this reference as though fully set forth herein, are hereby made by this City Council, 

and represent the City Council’s careful consideration of the record. The findings of the 

City Council in Exhibit "B" shall be the final and determinative Findings of Fact on this 

matter.



3. That upon consideration of the September 25, 2019, City Council Staff 

Report, the comments provided at the Planning Commission public hearing on July 23, 

2019; public testimony presented at the City Council hearing; and the findings of fact and 

applicable law; the City Council denies the appeal and upholds the Planning Commission 

approval, subject to the Conditions of Approval attached as Exhibit “C” to this Resolution, 

and incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, pursuant to Government Code Section 

66020(d)(1):

1. NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the project is subject to certain fees 

described in the City of Escondido’s Development Fee Inventory on file in both the 

Community Development Department and Public Works Department. The project is also 

subject to dedications, reservations, and exactions, as specified in the Conditions of 

Approval.

2. NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that the 90-day period during which to 
protest the imposition of any fee, dedication, reservation, or other exaction described in 
this Resolution begins on the effective date of this Resolution, and any such protest 
must be in a manner that complies with Government Code Section 66020. 



Resolution No. 2019-148
Exhibit “A”

Page 1 of 1

EXHIBIT “A”
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PHG18-0016



Resolution No. 2019-148
Exhibit “B”

Page 1 of 2

EXHIBIT “B”
FACTORS TO BE CONSIDERED/FINDINGS OF FACT

PHG18-0016

Environmental Determination:  

1. The project is categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15303 (New 
Construction or Conversion of Small Structures) of the CEQA Guidelines.  This exemption 
includes projects that involve the construction and location of limited numbers of new, 
small facilities or structures.  This project consists of a Conditional Use Permit (“CUP”) to 
construct and operate a wireless cellular facility.  All public services and facilities are 
available and the area is not considered environmentally sensitive.  Based on staff’s 
review of the project, findings of the Planning Commission, and the independent findings 
of the City Council, no special circumstances exist that would create a reasonable 
possibility that granting a CUP for this project will have a significant effect on the 
environment. Therefore, the proposed project qualifies for this exemption and no further 
environmental review is required.

Conditional Use Permit Determinations:  

1. Under the State Constitution, the City may make and enforce within its limits all local 
ordinances and regulations not in conflict with general laws, often referred to as the “police 
power.”  Escondido Zoning Code, Article 34 et. seq. is a valid City enactment regulating 
the time, place, and manner upon which facilities are installed, which the City’s Planning 
Commission relied upon and made applicable when it approved the application on July 
23, 2019, through written findings.  

2. The establishment, maintenance or operation of the use applied for will not under the 
circumstances of the particular case (location, size, design, and operating characteristics), 
be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, morals, comfort, or general welfare of persons 
residing or working in the neighborhood of such use, or the general welfare of the City.  
The proposed facility would be constructed in compliance with the Uniform Building Code, 
Public Utilities Commission of the State of California, and the Federal Communication 
Commission regulations.  As noted in the September 25, 2019 City Council Staff Report, 
which is incorporated herein as though fully set forth herein, federal law prohibits cities 
from considering radio frequency (“RF”) emissions as a basis for denying or regulating 
wireless facilities if (as is the case here) the applicant has demonstrated that the proposed 
wireless facility complies with the FCC’s RF emissions regulations. Therefore, the 
establishment and operation of the facility will not be detrimental to the health, safety, 
peace, morals, comfort, or general welfare of persons residing or working in the area.



Resolution No. 2019-148
Exhibit “B”

Page 2 of 2

3. The proposed facility complies with the requirements of Article 34 and with all applicable 
requirements of other chapters of the Zoning Code, including Article 61, Section 33-1203 
to which establishes findings for all decisions granting or denying a CUP.  For the reasons 
stated herein this exhibit and in the September 25, 2019 City Council Staff Report, the 
CUP is being granted upon sound principles of land use and in response to services 
required by the community.  The CUP has been duly considered for its relationship to its 
effect on the community.  The proposed use, at the proposed location, will not be 
detrimental or injurious to property or improvements in the vicinity.  The proposed use will 
be located and conducted in a manner in accord with the Escondido General Plan and the 
purposes of the Zoning Code.  

4. The City may impose such reasonable conditions or restrictions as it deems necessary to 
secure the purposes of the Zoning Code and to assure operation of the use in a manner 
compatible with the aesthetics, mass, bulk, and character of existing and potential uses 
on adjoining properties in the general vicinity and to ensure compliance with the provisions 
of the Municipal Code and Zoning Code and the provisions of any other applicable laws 
and regulations.  Special conditions have been added the permit to achieve the stated 
purpose and intent of all complying regulations contained in Article 34 and Article 61 of 
the Zoning Code.  It is further determined by the City Council that these special conditions 
are necessary and desirable to preserve the public health, safety and general welfare.

5. The Planning Commission’s findings are sufficient under the City’s police power, as 
authorized by Article 34 regulation and within the constraints of federal and state law 
governing the regulation of telecommunications facilities.  The appeal does not offer any 
new evidence that had not been previously considered by the Planning Commission, nor 
does the appeal offer new substantiated evidence, which is required to support a denial 
of an application like this.  The proposed wireless communications facility complies with 
the General Plan and development standards for site design, safety design, location, 
lighting, landscaping, and design/finish.  The proposed facility will increase the wireless 
coverage for residents and people traveling through the City. 



Resolution No. 2019-148
Exhibit “C”

Page 1 of 3

EXHIBIT “C”
PROJECT CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

PHG 18-0016

1. All construction and operations shall comply with all applicable requirements of the Escondido 
Zoning Code and requirements of the City.  Approval of this request shall not waive 
compliance with any sections of the Municipal Code and all other applicable City requirements 
in effect at the time of building permit issuance.  

2. The applicant shall be required to pay all development fees of the City in effect at the time and 
in such amounts as may prevail when building permits are issued, including any applicable 
City Wide Facilities fees.  

3. The proposed wireless communication facility shall be in substantial conformance with the 
plans attached as Exhibit “D” hereto, to the satisfaction of the Planning Division, except as 
modified by these Conditions of Approval.

4. Any proposed construction shall comply with all applicable requirements of the Escondido 
Zoning Code and requirements of the Planning Division, Building Division, Fire Department 
and Engineering Services Department.    

5. The legal description attached as Exhibit “A” hereto, has been provided by the applicant and 
neither the City of Escondido nor any of its employees assume responsibility for the accuracy 
of said legal description.

6. All exterior lighting shall conform to the requirements of Article 35, Outdoor Lighting. 

7. All new utility service shall be installed underground or kept within the structure.

8. The proposed antennas shall reach a maximum height of 35 feet, with the overall height of 
the mono-pine “tree” being 40 feet high.  

9. The proposed equipment enclosure shall be stucco-finished and painted to match the 
adjacent residential structure, and shall include a wooden trim cap.

10. Socks shall be installed over and around the antennas and all antennas, radio units, 
associated equipment, brackets, mounting arrays, etc., shall be painted to match the needles 
on the faux mono-pine tree.

11. Faux pine needles shall be of a sufficient density to adequately screen the proposed antennas 
and other equipment mounted on the faux mono-pine from view, to the satisfaction of the 
Planning Division.

12. A screen wall three feet high shall be installed around the base of the mono-pine to screen 
the bolts and other footing material from view.



Resolution No. 2019-148
Exhibit “C”

Page 2 of 3

13. Additional vines, shrubs or other landscaping material shall be installed in front of the 
proposed block wall enclosure facing El Norte Parkway and shown on the building plans to 
the satisfaction of the Planning Division. 

14. The trunk and branches of the faux pine tree shall be textured and finished to appear as 
natural tree bark and so noted on the building plans, to the satisfaction of the Planning 
Division.  

15. The GPS antenna units shall be painted to match the building or wall, which shall be noted on 
the building plans to the satisfaction of the Planning Division.

16. No equipment placed within the equipment enclosure shall protrude above the top of the 
enclosure.

17. Any support poles, brackets, cable runs and other support equipment shall be painted to 
match/blend with the varying colors and textures of the tree, and/or equipment enclosure. 
These shall be clearly noted on the building plans to the satisfaction of the Planning Division. 

18. An appropriate number of branches shall be incorporated into the faux pine tree to create a 
natural shape and to appropriately screen the antenna panels. This shall clearly be indicated 
on the building plans and an example in the form of a photo of another faux mono-pine tree 
with the same number of antennas and RRUs as proposed shall be submitted with the building 
plans for approval.  

19. This project shall conform to the Public Art Partnership Program, Article 37 of the Escondido 
Zoning Code.

20. No utilities shall be released for any purpose or Certificate of Occupancy issued until all 
requirements of the Planning, Engineering, and Building Divisions have been completed.   

21. The plans submitted for building permit shall include notes or details containing the necessary 
work involved in complying with these project conditions. 

22. An inspection by the Planning Division will be required prior to operation of the project. 
Everything should be installed prior to calling for an inspection, although preliminary 
inspections may be requested.  Contact the project planner at (760) 839-4306 to arrange a 
final inspection.

23. If at the time of Planning final inspection, it is determined that sufficient screening has not 
been provided, the applicant shall be required to provide additional landscaping improvements 
to the satisfaction of the Planning Division.

24. The applicant, or any subsequent operator/leaseholder, hereby agrees to investigate 
complaints related to possible interference with electronic equipment in the surrounding area, 
to determine the cause of the interference. If this facility is determined to be the cause of the 
electronic interference, T-Mobile, or any subsequent operator/leaseholder, shall solve the 
problem in a timely manner to the satisfaction of the complainant and the Director of 
Community Development. Any interference with Fire Department or public safety 
communications shall be corrected immediately to the satisfaction of the City of Escondido.  



Resolution No. 2019-148
Exhibit “C”

Page 3 of 3

25. The applicant shall coordinate with the City of Escondido to select a qualified, independent, 
third party to conduct actual power density measurements of the facility within ninety (90) days 
of installation and full operation. The results of the study shall be submitted to the Director of 
Community Development so that the theoretical power density study can be compared to the 
actual output and ensure compliance with FCC requirements.

26. The applicant, or any subsequent operator/leaseholder, shall be responsible for all ongoing 
maintenance of the facility, including the antennas, faux branches, associated equipment and 
live plantings, to ensure that the condition of the facility does deteriorate and the faux pine 
does not appear weathered.  

27. Signage proposed for the facility shall be limited to that required by law, and shall comply with 
the City of Escondido Sign Ordinance (Ord 92-47). Appropriate signs providing notice, caution 
or warning, and other necessary markings shall be placed at the main access point(s) and 
other locations, as may be required, in order to alert the general public, maintenance or other 
workers approaching the antennas to the presence of RF transmissions and to take 
precautions to avoid exposures in excess of FCC limits. The requirement for the appropriate 
signage/notice shall be indicated on the building plans.

28. No additional antennas or expansion of this facility shall be permitted without a modification 
of the Conditional Use Permit and a public hearing before the Planning Commission, or as 
allowed by relevant State or Federal law. T-Mobile shall not oppose co-location on the pole 
for another wireless carrier (subject to the City of Escondido approval) if it can be proven that 
the additional carrier would not adversely affect the operation and function of T-Mobile 
Wireless Service antennas.  Minor changes within the approved size and design parameters 
may be permitted by the Director of Community Development and the Building Division. 

29. All municipal and zoning code violations, whether currently known or identified as part of any 
code enforcement investigation of the project site, shall be resolved, abated, or otherwise 
addressed, and the property must be in full compliance with all aspects of the Escondido 
Municipal and Zoning Codes prior to issuance of any building permit for the project. A written 
determination of such compliance by the Director of Community Development or his or her 
designee shall be required prior to issuance of said building permit.

30. After installation of the wireless communication facility, the entire property must be maintained 
in compliance with the legal nonconforming status of said property or if discontinued, pursuant 
to the timelines provided in Article 61, which may be amended, must be found to be in 
conformance with applicable measures of the Escondido Zoning Code, to the satisfaction of 
the Director of Community Development. Noncompliance with the foregoing shall constitute 
cause for immediate revocation of this Conditional Use Permit through a noticed public 
hearing before the Planning Commission. The wireless communication facility approved by 
this Conditional Use Permit shall be immediately abated upon notice of permit revocation.

31. This item may be referred to the Planning Commission for review and possible revocation or 
modification of the Conditional Use Permit at a noticed public hearing upon receipt of nuisance 
complaints and/or non-compliance with the conditions of approval.

32. This CUP shall become null and void unless utilized within twelve (12) months of the effective 
date of approval.



Resolution No. 2019-148
Exhibit “D”

Page 1 of 1
EXHIBIT “D”

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SITE PLAN
PHG18-0016



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-149

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, TO GRANT 
AN APPEAL, OVERTURN THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION’S APPROVAL, AND DENY A 
PERMIT REQUEST TO INSTALL A WIRELESS 
COMMUNICATION FACILITY AT 2534 EAST EL 
NORTE PARKWAY 

APPLICANT: Plancom, Inc. (for PTI-T-Mobile)
CASE NO.: PHG 18-0016

WHEREAS, the project applicant, Plancom, Inc., on behalf of PTI-T-Mobile 

(hereinafter referred to as “Applicant”), filed a land use development application (Planning 

Case No. PHG18-0016) constituting a request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the 

installation of a wireless communication facility on a 4.52-acre site located at 2534 East 

El Norte Parkway (APN 225-270-63-00), zoned single-family residential (R-1-10); and 

WHEREAS, the land use development application site plan (attached hereto as 

Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth) was 

submitted to, and processed by, the Planning Division of the Community Development 

Department, in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Escondido Zoning Code 

and the applicable procedures and time limits specified by the Permit Streamlining Act 

(Government Code Section 65920 et seq.) and the California Environmental Quality Act 

(“CEQA”) (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.); and

WHEREAS, wireless communication facilities are conditionally permitted uses 

within the R-1-10 Zone, subject to approval of a Conditional Use Permit, in accordance 

with Division 1 of Article 61 in all residential and open space zones and Article 34 

(Wireless Communication Facilities Ordinance); and



WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed public hearing on 

July 23, 2019, to review and consider the Conditional Use Permit request.  At the 

conclusion of said hearing, the Planning Commission adopted Planning Commission 

Resolution No. 2019-14, approving the project without prejudice; and

WHEREAS, the appellant, Mike Hendel, filed a timely appeal received by the Office 

of the City Clerk on August 1, 2019; and

WHEREAS, a notice was published and mailed as required by the Escondido 

Zoning Code and applicable State law, and the City Council held a public hearing on 

September 25, 2019, to consider the appeal.  At said hearing, a staff report was presented 

discussing the issues in the matter, and all persons desiring to speak did so; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council may reach a decision on the matter without deference 

to the decision of the Planning Commission.  The City Council reviewed the findings of 

the Planning Commission and may utilize or adopt any, all, or none of them; and

WHEREAS, the approval or rejection of wireless communication facilities is 

addressed in the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996. In that Act, Congress 

delegated to the local governments the power to consider cell tower applications and 

required that a denial of an application “be in writing and supported by substantial 

evidence contained in a written record.”

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That the Findings of Fact, attached as Exhibit “A,” and incorporated herein 

by this reference as though fully set forth herein, are hereby made by this City Council, 

and represent the City Council’s careful consideration of the record. The findings of the 



City Council in Exhibit "A" shall be the final and determinative Findings of Fact on this 

matter.

3. That upon consideration of the September 25, 2019, City Council Staff 

Report, the comments provided at the Planning Commission public hearing on July 23, 

2019; public testimony presented at the City Council hearing; and the findings of fact and 

applicable law; the City Council determines that substantial evidence exists to support the 

appellant’s position and the grounds for appeal is valid by itself to overrule the Planning 

Commission’s decision.  The City’s requirements have not been met.   

4. The decision of the City Council to deny a request to place, construct, or 

modify personal wireless service facilities has been made in writing and supported by 

substantial evidence contained in a written record.  



Resolution No. 2019-149
Exhibit “A”

Page 1 of 3

EXHIBIT “A”
FACTORS TO BE CONSIDERED/FINDINGS OF FACT

PHG18-0016

Environmental Determination:  

1. The proposed project is statutory exempt from environmental review in conformance with 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Section 15270, “Projects Which Are 
Disapproved.” CEQA does not apply to projects rejected or disapproved by a public 
agency.

Conditional Use Permit Determinations:  

1. Under the State Constitution, the City may make and enforce within its limits all local 
ordinances and regulations not in conflict with general laws, often referred to as the “police 
power.”  Escondido Zoning Code, Article 34 et. seq. is a valid City enactment regulating 
the time, place, and manner upon which facilities are installed.  More specifically, the 
purpose of this ordinance is to regulate, as allowed by state and federal law, the placement 
of wireless communications facilities in Escondido in a manner that recognizes the 
community benefits of communications technology, which provides clear guidance to the 
communications industry but also recognizes the strong need to base decisions upon 
sound principles of land use.  

2. The City of Escondido shall not regulate the placement, construction, and modification of 
wireless communication facilities on the basis of the environmental effects of radio 
frequency (RF) emissions to the extent that such facilities comply with the Commission’s 
regulations concerning such emissions.  The City Council finds that this determination is 
not based on any actual or perceived effect from RF emissions as the proposed wireless 
facility.  However, the City Council retains the ability, based on substantial evidence, to 
either grant or deny the appeal, depending on the Council’s evaluation of the facts and 
evidence provided, regulating the time, place, and manner of that proposed facility.  

3. As detailed in the September 25, 2019 City Council Staff Report, which is incorporated 
herein as though fully set forth herein, the volume of nonconforming use activity on the 
subject site constitutes a public safety issue, of life and property, and the permit request 
further intensifies, alters, and expands the use of the property.  Subsequent to the July 
23, 2019 Planning Commission meeting, the Community Development Department, Code 
Enforcement Division learned of the full nature and scope of code violations on the 
property and only recently established the full extent of such nonconforming activities, 
which exceeds City requirements.  Pursuant to Article 61, Section 33-1241, a 
nonconforming use may be continued even though such use does not conform to the 
revised provisions of applicable regulatory ordinances, but only if such use constitutes a 



Resolution No. 2019-149
Exhibit “A”

Page 2 of 3

legal nonconforming use as determined by the provisions of this division.  A 
nonconforming use shall not be physically extended or enlarged, except as permitted in 
Section 33-1243.  The division is not applicable when a nonconforming building or use 
has been changed to another nonconforming use.

4. Denying the proposed Conditional Use Permit (“CUP”) to allow the construction of a 
wireless communication facility would be based upon sound principles of land use, 
because the project does not conform to Article 34 or Article 61 of the Escondido Zoning 
Code adopted by the City Council.  The current standards for the establishment, 
maintenance or operation of the use applied for encourages co-location, rather than 
proliferations that create or compound undesirable visual impacts.  The alternative site 
analysis and gap coverage analysis is insufficient to shift the burden to the City of 
disproving the inaccessibility of the applicant’s proposed site.  The applicant has failed to 
fully substantiate that it is technically infeasible to locate in more preferred locations – and 
that potentially available location alternatives may more closely conform to the local values 
as expressed in local law.  

5. The proposed project lacks compatibility with the surrounding development given that the 
proposed facility makes those existing nonconforming uses more permanent and taken 
together, the uses don’t fit in within the residential setting.  Granting the proposed CUP 
could potentially cause deterioration of bordering land uses or create special problems for 
the area in which it is located, since the facility would not fit into the context of the existing 
neighborhood, and the volume of nonconforming uses (in absolute and relative terms) is 
out of scale as evidenced by both oral and written public testimony.  The proposed CUP 
for a wireless communication facility has been considered in relationship to its effect on 
the neighborhood and it has been determined not to be compatible with the surrounding 
neighborhood and not in conformance with City standards, and would result in a negative 
impact to the adjacent neighborhood.  Based on the foregoing, substantial evidence exists 
to support the appeal, overturning the Planning Commission’s approval, which is 
comprised of the Planning Commission Resolution No. 2019-14, in its entirety.

6. The denial of the particular placement, construction, and modification of the proposed 
wireless communication facility by the City of Escondido is not unreasonably 
discriminating among providers of functionally equivalent services.  The City Council finds 
that the decision attached hereto was carefully made and considered taking into account 
the nature and scope of such request - independent of the project proponent’s relationship 
and/or desired use of the installation.

7. Denial of one permit application does not constitute a denial of service. Under Federal 
law, the denial of a single permit is not generally a prohibition of service under 47 U.S.C 
332(c)(7).  The alternative site analysis is insufficient to shift the burden to the City of 
disproving the inaccessibility of the applicant’s proposed sites.  The applicant has failed 
to fully substantiate that it is technically infeasible to locate in more preferred locations – 



Resolution No. 2019-149
Exhibit “A”

Page 3 of 3

and that potentially available location alternatives may more closely conform to the local 
values as expressed in local law.  Alternative equipment/locations within structures should 
have been provided for consideration.



Resolution No. 2019-149
Exhibit “B”

Page 1 of 1
EXHIBIT “B”

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SITE PLAN
PHG18-0016



Staff Report - Council

Public Hearing Item No. 10 September 25, 2019 File No. 0800-70

SUBJECT: Downtown Specific Plan Amendment and Master and Precise Development Plan 
for the Quince Street Senior Housing Project (PHG 17-0028)

DEPARTMENT: Community Development Department, Planning Division

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council introduce Ordinance No. 2019-12 approving an amendment to the 
Downtown Specific Plan (DSP) and a new Planned Development (Master and Precise Development 
Plan) for the Quince Street Senior Housing Project.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

The project involves the following two requests:

1. Amendment to the DSP
 Allow ground-floor residential uses at subject property
 Modify parking requirements for senior housing projects
 Modify open space requirements

2. Planned Development Permit (Master and Precise Development Plan)
 145-unit senior housing project

Specifically, the project would modify the parking requirements for senior housing projects in the DSP 
so that they match those identified in the Escondido Zoning Code. Open space requirements for 
residential and mixed-use projects in the DSP would be modified to encourage higher density 
development by allowing less open space per unit on a sliding scale for projects with higher densities. 
The Specific Plan Amendment would also remove the requirement to provide ground-floor retail or 
office uses along both street frontages on the project site, subject to approval of a Planned 
Development Permit.

The senior housing project would consist of 145 dwelling units (four studio units, 129 one-bedroom 
units and 12 two-bedroom units) on four floors above an at-grade parking garage with 142 parking 
spaces. The project would have a net density of 98.6 units per acre, and would be age-restricted for 
rental to seniors only. Additional detail on the project can be found in the background and analysis 
sections of this report, below. 

The proposal also includes the adoption of the environmental determination prepared for the project.



Quince Street Senior Housing Project (PHG 17-0028)
September 25, 2019
Page 2

LOCATION:

The parking and open space modifications would apply throughout the DSP area. The proposed senior 
housing project would be located on a 1.47 acre parcel on the northeast corner of N. Quince Street and 
W. Valley Parkway, addressed as 220 N. Quince Street (APN 229-331-10-00). The project site is 
directly across N. Quince Street from the Escondido Transit Center, and immediately south of the 
Escondido Creek Trail and flood control channel, and is depicted in Attachment 1 to the Planning 
Commission staff report, which itself is attached as Attachment 1 hereto.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

The proposed Project is a private development project that will require the payment of fees in effect at 
the time permits are requested. The applicant has indicated that they may request affordable housing 
grants from the City, however no request has yet been made.

PREVIOUS ACTION:

On February 14, 2018, the City Council voted 3 – 1 – 1 (Diaz no, Abed abstained) to authorize the 
processing of a request for an amendment to the DSP that is part of the current project. (It should be 
noted that this authorization allowed the processing of two separate and unrelated requests to amend 
the DSP, the other of which would allow drive-thru facilities in certain districts of the DSP.)

On August 13, 2019, the Planning Commission voted 7 – 0 to forward the proposed project to the City 
Council with a recommendation for approval. Two members of the public spoke against the project, 
voicing general concerns with parking in the project vicinity. The aforementioned Planning Commission 
staff report and the Planning Commission meeting minutes are included as Attachments 1 and 2, 
respectively, to this staff report.

BACKGROUND:

Downtown Escondido is a dynamic city center offering cultural events, retail, services, business and 
medical offices, employment opportunities, and a range of housing types within the City’s urban core. 
The proposed project would be located in the Gateway Transit District of the DSP, in a location 
designed to take advantage of proximity to transit and other commercial gods and services. The 
property is currently occupied by three large warehouse buildings and a smaller maintenance building, 
all of which would be demolished to make way for the project.  

The applicant proposes to construct a 145-unit senior housing project on the 1.47-acre site, with a 
resulting density of 98.6 units per acre.  The project would contain four stories of residential units on a 
podium deck above a grade-level parking garage. The podium would contain a large plaza and 
courtyard, and other interior and exterior open space areas would be provided on the project site. The 
residential unit mix would include four studio units, 129 one-bedroom units, and 12 two-bedroom units, 
ranging in size from 612 square feet to 869 square feet. The building would reach a maximum height 



Quince Street Senior Housing Project (PHG 17-0028)
September 25, 2019
Page 3

of 61-feet, and would include a variety of colors and materials, as well as decorative illuminated panels 
at the corner of W. Valley Parkway and N. Quince Street.  A passenger loading and delivery zone would 
be provided at the main building entrance along N. Quince Street, with additional access available from 
within the garage. The project would be responsible for widening W. Valley Parkway to its ultimate 
width and would provide landscaping and other enhancement along both street frontages and adjacent 
to the Escondido Creek Trail. Emergency access would be provided to the site along the existing alley 
on the east side of the building and from the creek trail, which would be widened and enhanced as part 
of the project. Project plans are attached to draft City Council Ordinance No. 2019-12 as Exhibit “C.”  

ANALYSIS:

1. General Plan / Zoning

The City’s General Plan and the Downtown Specific Plan (DSP) encourage high-density residential 
development in urbanized areas that are within close proximity to commercial uses, offer recreational 
opportunities, and provide convenient access to public transit. The subject property is located directly 
across N. Quince Street from the Escondido Transit Center, within the Gateway Transit District of the 
DSP, which makes it a prime candidate for this type of high-density development. At a yield of 145 
dwelling units, the proposed project takes full advantage of the allowable density of 100 units per acre, 
with a density of 98.6 units per acre. Thus, the development embodies the land use densities envisioned 
for this area

2. Downtown Specific Plan Amendment

Three revisions to the DSP are proposed as part of this amendment. Each revision is summarized 
below, and analyzed in more detail in the aforementioned Planning Commission staff report. Revisions 
to DSP text and graphics are included as Exhibit “B” to draft City Council Resolution No. 2019-12.

Ground Floor Residential Use at the Project Site

The DSP currently requires ground-floor retail or office uses along both street frontages on the project 
site. The proposed project includes a parking garage on the entire ground floor, which would be an 
accessory use to the residential development above. Thus, the applicant has requested that Figure II-
4 of the DSP be modified to allow ground-floor residential uses through a Planned Development Permit 
process. 

Modification to Parking Requirements for Senior Housing Projects

Parking requirements for residential projects in the DSP do not identify different requirements for senior 
housing projects versus other residential projects that are not age-restricted. An amendment to the 
Escondido Zoning Code was recently adopted which modified parking requirements for senior housing 
projects elsewhere in the city. That amendment is not applicable to properties in the DSP area, so the 



Quince Street Senior Housing Project (PHG 17-0028)
September 25, 2019
Page 4

proposed DSP amendment would create consistency with parking requirements for senior housing 
projects City-wide.

Modification to Open Space Requirements

Recent experience has demonstrated that the current open space requirement in the DSP (300 square 
feet per unit) has been very difficult to achieve for higher-density projects. The only project above 50 
dwelling units per acre that have been approved or constructed in the DSP area over the past decade, 
which provided the full 300 square feet of open space per unit, was able to do so because it included 
subterranean parking. The majority of recent downtown projects have provided approximately 250 
square feet of open space per unit. (Reductions have been a result of density bonus concessions or 
through Development Agreement.)

The proposed modification is intended to incentivize the provision of higher density projects in the DSP 
area by reducing one of the impediments to their construction. Specifically, the open space requirement 
would be reduced on a sliding scale in relation to the project density. Projects proposing less than 30 
dwelling units per acre would see no change in the current open space requirement (300 square feet 
per unit), however projects between 30 and 50 units per acre would have their open space requirement 
reduced to 250 square feet per unit, and those greater than 50 units per acre would see a reduction to 
200 square feet per unit. Additionally, senior housing projects would have their open space requirement 
reduced to 150 square feet per dwelling unit, regardless of project density. Staff believes the reductions 
described above would be appropriate since higher density and senior housing projects tend to have 
smaller units (more studio and one-bedroom units), and therefore fewer residents per unit. Open space 
would be a reflection anticipated number of residents rather than number of units.

Another minor change to the open space requirements would revise the definition of “Useable Open 
Space” to ensure that it is, in fact, useable. To do so, minimum size of an area that could be counted 
as open space would be increased from 100 square feet to 200 square feet, and required setbacks 
from rights-of-way would be excluded. The last change would remove the requirement for a 
Development Agreement to allow reductions in minimum open space, and to remove the 50 percent 
limitation of that reduction. (A Planned Development Permit and commensurate publicly accessible 
open space or other public benefit would still be required.)

3. Planned Development Permit (Master and Precise Development Plan)

One of the proposed revisions to the DSP described above would allow the ground floor of the project 
site to be used for residential purposes, subject to issuance of a Planned Development Permit. In this 
instance, the ground floor of the site would consist of a parking garage, which is an accessory use to 
the residential uses proposed above. As such, the applicant has requested approval of a Planned 
Development Permit, consisting of a Master and Precise Development Plan, to construct the proposed 
145-unit senior housing project. The project is briefly described in the Background section above, and 
discussed in-detail in the attached Planning Commission staff report.



Quince Street Senior Housing Project (PHG 17-0028)
September 25, 2019
Page 5

4. Supplemental Details of Request

1. Property Size: 1.47 acres (net)  

2. Density: 98.6 dwelling units per acre

3. Building Size: 205,670 SF including 145 residential units and garage
4-stories over grade-level garage

4. Parking: Current Requirement: 254 spaces
Per Specific Plan Amendment: 119 spaces
Provided: 142 spaces

5. Setbacks
Required Proposed

Front (W. Valley Pkwy): 14’ from ultimate curb face 14’ from ultimate curb face
Street Side (N. Quince St.): 14’ from ultimate curb face 14’ from ultimate curb face
Interior Side (alley) 0’ 10’ (PL), 0’ (edge of easement)
Rear (flood control channel) 0’ 11’

6. Signage: No signage has been proposed. All signage will be subject to conformance with the 
DSP and Article 66 (Sign Ordinance) of the Escondido Zoning Code.

7. Landscaping: New ornamental landscaping, irrigation, and street trees to be provided along W. 
Valley Parkway, N. Quince Street, and the Escondido Creek Trail. On-site 
landscaping on podium deck. Biofiltration basins built-in to the landscaped areas.

8. Street Improvements Widening of W. Valley Parkway by 7 feet to its ultimate width, including Class 2 bike 
lane. Drop-off zone to be provided along N. Quince Street. Median islands at creek 
trail crossing to be modified to accommodate emergency access vehicles.

9. Trash: Trash and recycling shoots on each residential floor; bins located in garage. Bins to 
be placed by utility gate along alley by staff on pick-up day(s)

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:

A Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration (ENV 17-0008) was issued for the project for a thirty (30) day 
public review period beginning on June 7, 2019. Mitigation measures were developed to reduce 
potential impacts in the areas of cultural and tribal cultural resources, geology and soils, hazards and 
hazardous materials, and noise to a less than significant level. Three comments were received on the 
Draft document during the public review period, and have been addressed and incorporated into the 
Final Mitigated Negative Declaration which can be found at the following link: 



Quince Street Senior Housing Project (PHG 17-0028)
September 25, 2019
Page 6

https://www.escondido.org/north-quince-street-senior-housing-project.aspx

In staff’s opinion, no significant issues remain unresolved through compliance with mitigation measures, 
code requirements and the recommended conditions of approval.  The project will have no impact on 
fish and wildlife resources as no sensitive or protected habitat occurs on-site or will be impacted by the 
proposed development.

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:

Mike Strong, Assistant Director of Planning
9/18/2019 4:27 p.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Attachment 1 – August 13, 2019 Planning Commission staff report 
2. Attachment 2 – August 13, 2019 Planning Commission Minutes 
3. Ordinance No. 2019-12
4. Ordinance No. 2019-12 – Exhibits A through F



ATTACHMENT 1

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT PACKET
PHG17-0028

(August 13, 2019)

Due to the number of pages of Attachment 1, the following link has been provided to review the
document electronically on the City’s web site:

https://www.escondido.org/Data/Sites/1/media/agendas/PC/2019/08.13.19PCAgendaPacket.pdf 

A hard-copy of the Attachment is available for review in the Office of the Planning Division during
normal business hours. To obtain a copy, please contact the City Clerk at (760) 839-4617 or 
Planning Division at (760) 839-4671.



Attachment 2











ORDINANCE NO. 2019-12

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
APPROVING A SPECIFIC PLAN 
AMENDMENT AND A MASTER AND PRECISE 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR A 145-UNIT 
SENIOR HOUSING PROJECT

APPLICANT: San Diego Interfaith Housing Foundation
CASE NO.: PHG 17-0028

The City Council of the City of Escondido (“City”), California, DOES HEREBY 

ORDAIN as follows:

SECTION 1. The City Council makes the following findings: 

a) San Diego Interfaith Housing Foundation (herein after referred to as 

“Applicant”), filed a verified application with the City of Escondido regarding property 

located at 220 N. Quince Street (APN: 229-331-10-00), in the Gateway Transity District 

of the Downtown Specific Plan, more particularly described as shown on Exhibit “A” (“the 

property”), attached to this Ordinance and incorporated herein by this reference as though 

fully set forth. Said verified application constitutes a request for an amendment to the 

Downtown Specific Plan and a Planned Development Permit (Master and Precise 

Development Plan) to construct a 145-unit senior housing project as shown on Exhibits 

“B” (Downtown Specific Plan revisions) and “C” (Master and Precise Development Plan), 

and on file in the Planning Division, Planning Case No. PHG 17-0028, and incorporated 

herein by this reference as though fully set forth.

b) The Planning Division of the Community Development Department 

completed its review and scheduled a public hearing regarding the application before the 

Planning Commission on August 13, 2019.  Following the public hearing on August 13, 



2019, the Planning Commission adopted Resolution No. 2019-15, which recommended 

that the City Council approve the amendment to the Downtown Specific Plan and the 

Master and Precise development Plan to construct a 145-unit senior housing project (the 

“Project”).

SECTION 2. An original copy of the proposed Master and Precise Development 

Plan and all other related Project materials are on file in the Office of the City Clerk, with 

a copy of each document submitted to the City Council for its consideration.  The City 

Clerk, whose office is located at 201 North Broadway, Escondido, California 92025, is 

hereby designated as the custodian of the documents and other materials which 

constitute the record of proceedings upon which the City Council's decision is based, 

which documents and materials shall be available for public inspection and copying in 

accordance with the provisions of the California Public Records Act.

SECTION 3. The City Council did on September 25, 2019, hold a duly noticed 

public hearing as prescribed by law. Evidence was submitted to and considered by the 

City Council, including, without limitation:

a) Written information including all application materials and other written and 

graphical information posted on the Project website;

b) Oral testimony from City staff, interested parties, and the public;

c) The City Council staff report, dated September 25, 2019, which along with 

its attachments, is incorporated herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein, 

including the Planning Commission's recommendation on the request; and

d) Additional information submitted during the public hearing.



SECTION 4. Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) 

(Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.), the State CEQA Guidelines (Article 14 of 

the California Code of Regulations Section 15000 et. seq.), the City is the lead agency 

for the Project, as the public agency with the principal responsibility for approving the 

proposed Project. The City Council, in its independent judgement, has reviewed the Final 

Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for the project (City File No. ENV 

17-0008), as described in the September 25, 2019, City Council staff report, including the 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, attached hereto as Exhibit “D” and 

incorporated herein by this reference. The City Council hereby adopts the Final Initial 

Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration, and instructs staff to file a Notice of Determination 

with the County Clerk.  

SECTION 5. Upon consideration of the Findings of Fact, attached as Exhibit “E,” 

and the Conditions of Approval, attached as Exhibit “F,” both of which are incorporated 

herein by this reference as though fully set forth herein, the City Council approves the 

Project.

SECTION 6.  All references within this Ordinance to "Applicant" or "Developer," 

shall be equally applicable to the current property owner and to any successors-in-interest 

or assigns, whether such successors of assigns own, control, or otherwise have 

development authority for all, a portion, or portions of that property included within the 

Project site.

SECTION 7. SEPARABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, 

phrase or portion of this Ordinance is held invalid or unconstitutional for any reason by 

any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and 



independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions.

SECTION 8. As of the effective date of this ordinance, all ordinances or parts of 

ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

SECTION 9. The City Council authorizes all subsequent action to be taken by 

City Officials consistent with this Ordinance.  

SECTION 10. The City Clerk is hereby directed to certify to the passage of this 

Ordinance and to cause the same or a summary to be prepared in accordance with 

Government Code Section 36933, to be published one time within 15 days of its passage 

in a newspaper of general circulation, printed and published in the County and circulated 

in the City of Escondido.

SECTION 11. The Ordinance shall become effective 30 days from the date of the 

passage.  



Ordinance No. 2019-12 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 2



Ordinance No. 2019-12 

Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 2



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “B”

Page 1 of 4

Page 1 of 4

EXHIBIT “B”
SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT

PHG 17-0028 / ENV 17-0008

Revise Figure II-4 of the Downtown Specific Plan to allow ground floor residential uses 
on the subject property through the Planned Development application process, as 
depicted below on the following pages.

EXISTING FIGURE II-4 (detail area shown for clarity)

PROPOSED FIGURE II-4 (detail area shown for clarity)



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “B”

Page 2 of 4

Page 2 of 4



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “B”

Page 3 of 4

Page 3 of 4

Revise Figure III-3 of the Downtown Specific Plan as shown below. Underline typeface 
indicates new text. 

FIGURE III-3
Downtown Residential Parking Matrix1, 4 

Apartments, Townhomes, 
Row Homes, Flats, 

Duplexes, Condominiums

Mixed Use, Shopkeeper
(Defined in this Chapter)

Artisan Loft / Live-Work
(Defined in this Chapter)

Conventional Single 
Family Dwelling

Spaces per dwelling unit:
Studio: 1 
1 Bdrm: 1.5 
2 Bdrm: 1.75 
2+ Bdrm: 2 

(Minimum 1 covered 
space per dwelling unit)

Same as apartments 
In addition:
1 space / 250 SF gross 
floor area of 
commercial space2

(Minimum 1 covered 
space per dwelling unit)

1.75 spaces per unit
(Minimum 1 covered 
space per dwelling unit)

2 spaces per unit
(Minimum 2 covered 
spaces per dwelling 
unit)

Guest: 0.25 / dwelling unit 
or fraction thereof3

Guest: 0.25 / dwelling 
unit or fraction thereof3 

Guest: 0.5 / dwelling 
unit or fraction thereof3

Guest: no minimum

1   Parking may be modified through the Planned Development application process. Justification shall be 
based on a peak-hour parking demand utilizing a methodology approved by the City.

2   Mixed Use and Shopkeeper units within Vehicle Parking Districts 1 and 2 are exempt from non-residential 
parking requirements (see Vehicle Parking District information in this Chapter).

3   On-street guest parking may be approved by the City on a case-by-case basis.

4   Parking for senior housing projects, as defined in Article 41 of the Escondido Zoning Code, shall be 
provided in compliance with Article 39 of the Escondido Zoning Code, unless modified through the 
Planned Development application process



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “B”

Page 4 of 4

Page 4 of 4

Revise Chapter III, Section B.6. of the Downtown Specific Plan as shown below. Strikeout 
typeface indicates deletions and underline typeface indicates new text. 

6. USABLE OPEN SPACE

a. Definition
Usable open space is defined as an open area or recreational facility that is integrated into 
the development, in addition to the following:

1) Does not exceed a grade of 10% and excludes 
parking areas and required setbacks from 
rights-of-way;

2) Common areas measure must contain a 
minimum of 200 square feet and have 
minimum dimensions of 10 feet in all 
directions;

3) Private areas directly accessed from 
residential units measure a minimum of 5 feet 
in all directions; and,

4) Includes outdoor landscaping, walks, fountains, 
recreational facilities, etc. and interior common recreation areas.

b. Residential-Only and Mixed-Use Residential Open Space 
Projects with net densities below 30 dwelling units per acre shall provide a A minimum of 
300 square feet of usable open space shall be provided per residential unit. Projects with 
net densities between 30 and 50 dwelling units per acre shall provide a minimum of 250 
square feet of usable open space per unit. Projects equal to or greater than 50 dwelling units 
per acre shall provide a minimum of 200 square feet of usable open space per unit. Senior 
housing projects, as defined in Article 41 of the Escondido Zoning Code, shall provide a 
minimum of 150 square feet of usable open space per unit.

Required open space may be reduced up to 50% subject to through the Planned 
Development application process and Development Agreement approval in exchange for 
alternative open space benefitting the public including but not limited to:

1) Paying a per-square-foot in-lieu fee that 
contributes toward the cost of installing, 
improving and/or expanding parkland or 
facilities in the downtown area.

2) Providing on-site, publically accessible outdoor, 
street-level open space (i.e. plaza, courtyard, 
etc.) maintained by the property owner.



LIVIN��AREA

�ARA�E���ENTR�����TILITIES

COMM�NIT����LEASIN�

STAIRS���TERRANCES���CIRC�LATION

�ALCONIES���PATIOS
S�.�F�.
S�.�F�.
S�.�F�.
S�.�F�.

S�.�F�.

LEVEL�������ARA�E���ENTR�����TILITIES

LEVEL�R����COMMON�AREAS���RESIDENTIAL

LEVEL�R����COMMON�AREAS���RESIDENTIAL

LEVEL�R����COMMON�AREAS���RESIDENTIAL

LEVEL�R����COMMON�AREAS���RESIDENTIAL

LEVEL�R����OPEN�PODI�M���NON���ILDIN��AREA

S�.�F�.

S�.�F�.

S�.�F�.

S�.�F�.

S�.�F�.

S�.�F�.

S�.�F�.

���������EDROOM�������ATH

���EDROOM�������ATH ������

����

���

�����

������ST�DIO���������������ATH ���

������������S�.�F�.�

������S�.�F�.��

������S�.�F�.�

������R��LEVEL�

R��LEVEL� ������

��.���

��.���

���.���

������R��LEVEL� ��.�����ST�DIO�������������R.������������R.

R��LEVEL� ������ ��.���

��ST�DIO�������������R.������������R.

��ST�DIO�������������R.������������R.

��ST�DIO�������������R.������������R.

 Exhibit "C" 

O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 
2
1



LIVIN��AREA

�ARA�E���ENTR�����TILITIES

COMM�NIT����LEASIN�

STAIRS���TERRANCES���CIRC�LATION

�ALCONIES���PATIOS
S�.�F�.
S�.�F�.
S�.�F�.
S�.�F�.

S�.�F�.

LEVEL�������ARA�E���ENTR�����TILITIES

LEVEL�R����COMMON�AREAS���RESIDENTIAL

LEVEL�R����COMMON�AREAS���RESIDENTIAL

LEVEL�R����COMMON�AREAS���RESIDENTIAL

LEVEL�R����COMMON�AREAS���RESIDENTIAL

LEVEL�R����OPEN�PODI�M���NON���ILDIN��AREA

S�.�F�.

S�.�F�.

S�.�F�.

S�.�F�.

S�.�F�.

S�.�F�.

S�.�F�.

���������EDROOM�������ATH

���EDROOM�������ATH ������

����

���

�����

������ST�DIO���������������ATH ���

������������S�.�F�.�

������S�.�F�.��

������S�.�F�.�

������R��LEVEL�

R��LEVEL� ������

��.���

��.���

���.���

������R��LEVEL� ��.�����ST�DIO�������������R.������������R.

R��LEVEL� ������ ��.���

��ST�DIO�������������R.������������R.

��ST�DIO�������������R.������������R.

��ST�DIO�������������R.������������R.

O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 2

 o
f 
2
1



O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 3

 o
f 
2
1



O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 4

 o
f 
2
1



O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 5

 o
f 
2
1



O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 6

 o
f 
2
1



O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 7

 o
f 
2
1



O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 8

 o
f 
2
1



O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 9

 o
f 
2
1



O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
 o

f 
2
1



O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
 o

f 
2
1



O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
 o

f 
2
1



O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 1

3
 o

f 
2
1



O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 1

4
 o

f 
2
1



O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 1

5
 o

f 
2
1



O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 1

6
 o

f 
2
1



O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 1

7
 o

f 
2
1



PRELIMINARY GRADING AND UTILITY PLAN

O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 1

8
 o

f 
2
1



DETAILS & SECTIONS

O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 1

9
 o

f 
2
1



Phone:  Housing Foundation
San Diego Interfaith

619-668-1532
Lemon Grove, CA  91945
7956 LESTER AVE.

L  A  N  D  S  C  A  P  E      A  R  C  H  I  T  E  C  T  U  R  E

form/work
2585 UNIVERSITY AVE.
SAN DIEGO, CA 92104
T: 619.269.4423

CANDIDATE PLANT LEGEND

PRUNUS C. 'BRIGHT N TIGHT' 5 GAL MOD
(DWF CAROLINA CHERRY)

AEONIUM SPP. 1 GAL LOW
(AEONIUM)
ALOE SPP. 1 GAL LOW
(ALOE)

SENECIO SERPENS 1 GAL LOW
(BLUE CHALK STICKS)

HARDENBERGIA VIOLACEA 5 GAL MOD
(LILAC VINE)

MULHENBERGIA DUBIA 1 GAL LOW
(PINE MUHLY)

FESTUCA MAIREI 1 GAL LOW
(ATLAS FESCUE)

FICUS REPENS 5 GAL MOD
(CREEPING FIG)

GREVILLEA 'NOELLII' 5 GAL LOW
(NOEL'S GREVILLEA)

ROBINIA X. 'PURPLE ROBE' 36" BOX LOW
(PURPLE ROBE LOCUST)

LEPTOSPERMUM S. CVS 5 GAL LOW
(DWF TEA TREE)

KOELREUTERIA BIPINNATA 36" BOX MOD
(CHINESE FLAME TREE)

RHUS LANCEA 24" BOX LOW
(AFRICAN SUMAC)

AGONIS FLEXUOSA 24" BOX MOD
(PEPPERMINT WILLOW)

TIPUANA TIPU 36" BOX LOW
(TIPU TREE)

DIETES BICOLOR 1 GAL MOD
(FORTNIGHT LILY)

ROSEMARINUS O. 1 GAL LOW
(ROSEMARY CULTIVARS)

PITTOSPORUM TENUIFOLIUM 15-GAL LOW
(KOHUHU)

CERCIS OCCIDENTALIS 15-GAL LOW
(WESTERN REDBUD)

ZELKOVA S. 'JFS-KW1' 15-GAL LOW
(CITY SPRITE ZELKOVA)

LAURUS N. 'SARATOGA' 15-GAL LOW
(SWEET BAY)

PITTOSPORUM T. 'WHEELER'S DWF' 5 GAL MOD
(DWF MOCK ORANGE)

CAREX SPP. 1 GAL MOD
(SEDGE)

POLYSTICHUM MUNITUM 1 GAL LOW
(WESTERN SWORD FERN)

MYOPORUM 'PUTAH CREEK' 1 GAL LOW
(CREEPING MYOPORUM)

CERCIS CANADENSIS 15-GAL LOW
(EASTERN REDBUD)

CONCEPTUAL STATEMENT OF DESIGN INTENT

IRRIGATION SYSTEM

IRIS DOUGLASIANA 1 GAL MOD
(DOUGLAS IRIS)

LOPHOSTEMON CONFERTA 15-GAL LOW
(BRISBANE BOX)

BOUGAINVILLEA SPP. 5 GAL LOW
(BOUGAINVILLEA)

LAURUS NOBILIS 5 GAL LOW
(LAUREL)

LANTANA MONTIVIDENSIS 1 GAL LOW
(TRAILING LANTAN)

MAHONIA SPP. 1 GAL LOW
(OREGON GRAPE)

CORDYLINE SPP. 5 GAL LOW
(CORDYLINE)

ADDITIONAL DESIGN NOTES

LANDSCAPE ELEMENTS LEGEND
CONCRETE PAVING

ENHANCED CONCRETE PAVING

4x6 TREE GRATE (WITH ADA-COMPLIANT OPENINGS)

CITY SIDEWALK: CONCRETE PAVING

STORMWATER TREATMENT PLANTER: MIN. 18" HIGH (SEE CIVIL PLANS)

lLEVEL 2 PLANTERS:

 VARYING HEIGHTS OF 18", 24", 30", 42"

RESIDENT RECREATION AREA

DECORATIVE COBBLE

POTTED PLANTS

TRELLIS SHADE STRUCTURE

OUTDOOR FURNITURE

BBQ COUNTER

'AT-GRADE' PLANTER BED

LARGE PRE-CAST CONCRETE PLANTERS FOR QUINCE TREES

(NO IN-GROUND PLANTING DUE TO SEWER RESTRICTIONS)

4

3

2

1

8

7

6

5

12

11

10

9

L I
C E

N S

E D
L A N D S C A P E A R C H I T E C T

S T A T E O F C A L I F O
R N I

A

Signature

Renewal Date

Date

LIC #4991

01/31/2020

M I C
H A E L W . V A I L

LANDSCAPE DATA

13

14

SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"

NORTH

N. QUINCE STREET

W
. V

AL
LE

Y 
PA

RK
W

AY

NEW SENIOR
HOUSING BLDG.

5

3

5

21 14 5 14 21 5 15 14

1

13

3

13

59

13

5

13

14

O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 2

0
 o

f 
2
1



Phone:  Housing Foundation
San Diego Interfaith

619-668-1532
Lemon Grove, CA  91945
7956 LESTER AVE.

L  A  N  D  S  C  A  P  E      A  R  C  H  I  T  E  C  T  U  R  E

form/work
2585 UNIVERSITY AVE.
SAN DIEGO, CA 92104
T: 619.269.4423

CANDIDATE PLANT LEGEND

PRUNUS C. 'BRIGHT N TIGHT' 5 GAL MOD
(DWF CAROLINA CHERRY)

AEONIUM SPP. 1 GAL LOW
(AEONIUM)
ALOE SPP. 1 GAL LOW
(ALOE)

SENECIO SERPENS 1 GAL LOW
(BLUE CHALK STICKS)

HARDENBERGIA VIOLACEA 5 GAL MOD
(LILAC VINE)

MULHENBERGIA DUBIA 1 GAL LOW
(PINE MUHLY)

FESTUCA MAIREI 1 GAL LOW
(ATLAS FESCUE)

FICUS REPENS 5 GAL MOD
(CREEPING FIG)

GREVILLEA 'NOELLII' 5 GAL LOW
(NOEL'S GREVILLEA)

ROBINIA X. 'PURPLE ROBE' 36" BOX LOW
(PURPLE ROBE LOCUST)

LEPTOSPERMUM S. CVS 5 GAL LOW
(DWF TEA TREE)

KOELREUTERIA BIPINNATA 36" BOX MOD
(CHINESE FLAME TREE)

RHUS LANCEA 24" BOX LOW
(AFRICAN SUMAC)

AGONIS FLEXUOSA 24" BOX MOD
(PEPPERMINT WILLOW)

TIPUANA TIPU 36" BOX LOW
(TIPU TREE)

DIETES BICOLOR 1 GAL MOD
(FORTNIGHT LILY)

ROSEMARINUS O. 1 GAL LOW
(ROSEMARY CULTIVARS)

PITTOSPORUM TENUIFOLIUM 15-GAL LOW
(KOHUHU)

CERCIS OCCIDENTALIS 15-GAL LOW
(WESTERN REDBUD)

ZELKOVA S. 'JFS-KW1' 15-GAL LOW
(CITY SPRITE ZELKOVA)

LAURUS N. 'SARATOGA' 15-GAL LOW
(SWEET BAY)

PITTOSPORUM T. 'WHEELER'S DWF' 5 GAL MOD
(DWF MOCK ORANGE)

CAREX SPP. 1 GAL MOD
(SEDGE)

POLYSTICHUM MUNITUM 1 GAL LOW
(WESTERN SWORD FERN)

MYOPORUM 'PUTAH CREEK' 1 GAL LOW
(CREEPING MYOPORUM)

CERCIS CANADENSIS 15-GAL LOW
(EASTERN REDBUD)

CONCEPTUAL STATEMENT OF DESIGN INTENT

IRRIGATION SYSTEM

IRIS DOUGLASIANA 1 GAL MOD
(DOUGLAS IRIS)

LOPHOSTEMON CONFERTA 15-GAL LOW
(BRISBANE BOX)

BOUGAINVILLEA SPP. 5 GAL LOW
(BOUGAINVILLEA)

LAURUS NOBILIS 5 GAL LOW
(LAUREL)

LANTANA MONTIVIDENSIS 1 GAL LOW
(TRAILING LANTAN)

MAHONIA SPP. 1 GAL LOW
(OREGON GRAPE)

CORDYLINE SPP. 5 GAL LOW
(CORDYLINE)

ADDITIONAL DESIGN NOTES

LANDSCAPE ELEMENTS LEGEND
CONCRETE PAVING

ENHANCED CONCRETE PAVING

4x6 TREE GRATE (WITH ADA-COMPLIANT OPENINGS)

CITY SIDEWALK: CONCRETE PAVING

STORMWATER TREATMENT PLANTER: MIN. 18" HIGH (SEE CIVIL PLANS)

lLEVEL 2 PLANTERS:

 VARYING HEIGHTS OF 18", 24", 30", 42"

RESIDENT RECREATION AREA

DECORATIVE COBBLE

POTTED PLANTS

TRELLIS SHADE STRUCTURE

OUTDOOR FURNITURE

BBQ COUNTER

'AT-GRADE' PLANTER BED

4

3

2

1

8

7

6

5

12

11

10

9

L I
C
E N

S E

D
L A N

D S C A P E A R C H I T E
C
T

S T A T E O F C A L I F
O R

N I

A

Signature

Renewal Date

Date

LIC #4991

01/31/2020

M I
C H A

E L W . V A I L

LANDSCAPE DATA

13

SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"

NORTH

N. QUINCE STREET

W
. V

AL
LE

Y 
PA

RK
W

AY

NEW SENIOR
HOUSING BLDG.

6

1

7

11

6

11

9

8

126 10612 117 10

6782

2

1

9

2

11

9

O
rd

in
a
n
c
e
 N

o
. 
2
0
1
9
-1

2
 

E
x
h
ib

it
 "

C
" 

P
a
g
e
 2

1
 o

f 
2
1



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the  
220 North Quince Street Senior Housing Project 

Mitigated Negative Declaration/Initial Study Environmental Checklist  

City File No. ENV 17-0008 
 
The City of Escondido adopts this Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) in accordance with Public 
Resources Code (PRC) Section 21081.6 and Section 15097 of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines. The purpose of the MMRP is to ensure that the 220 North Quince Street Senior Housing Project (proposed 
project), which is the subject of the Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) and Initial Study Environmental Checklist, 
complies with all applicable environmental mitigation requirements. The mitigation described in the MND and summarized 
below provides a broad purpose and overview of actions that will occur in order to reduce identified environmental 
impacts.  
 
For each project that is subject to CEQA, PRC Section 21081.6 requires the Lead Agency to monitor performance of the 
mitigation measures included in any environmental document to ensure that the specified mitigation is implemented. The 
City of Escondido is the designated Lead Agency for the proposed project. The City is responsible for review of all 
monitoring reports, enforcement actions, and document disposition related to implementation of the MMRP.  
 
After review and approval by the Lead Agency, minor changes to the MMRP are permitted but can only be made by the 
City of Escondido. No deviations from this MMRP shall be permitted unless it continues to satisfy the requirements of 
PRC Section 21081.6, as determined by the City of Escondido.  
 
The organization of the MMRP follows the subsection formatting style presented within the MND and Initial Study 
Environmental Checklist. Only those subsections of the environmental issues presented in the Initial Study Environmental 
Checklist that have mitigation measures are provided below in the MMRP table. All other subsections do not contain 
mitigation measures. For each mitigation measure, the MMRP table identifies the following: (1) mitigation measure, 
(2) implementation action, (3) responsible agency/party, (4) monitoring schedule, and (5) verification date.  

EXHIBIT "D"

Ordinance No. 2019-12 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 1 of 8



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

220 North Quince Street Senior Housing Project 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program  69 July 2019 

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
Cultural Resources 
CUL-1: The City of Escondido Planning Division 
(“City”) recommends the applicant enter into a 
Tribal Cultural Resource Treatment and 
Monitoring Agreement (also known as a pre-
excavation agreement) with a tribe that is 
traditionally and culturally affiliated with the 
Project Location (“TCA Tribe”) prior to issuance of 
a grading permit. The purposes of the agreement 
are (1) to provide the applicant with clear 
expectations regarding tribal cultural resources, 
and (2) to formalize protocols and procedures 
between them. Applicant/Owner and the TCA 
Tribe for the protection and treatment of, including 
but not limited to, Native American human 
remains, funerary objects, cultural and religious 
landscapes, ceremonial items, traditional 
gathering areas and cultural items, located and/or 
discovered through a monitoring program in 
conjunction with the construction of the proposed 
project, including additional archaeological 
surveys and/or studies, excavations, geotechnical 
investigations, grading, and all other ground 
disturbing activities. 

• Applicant should enter into
a Tribal Cultural Resource
Treatment and Monitoring
Agreement.

Applicant; City of 
Escondido 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Planning Division 

X 

CUL-2: Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the 
applicant shall provide written verification to the 
City that a qualified archaeologist and a Native 
American monitor associated with a TCA Tribe 
have been retained to implement the monitoring 
program. The archaeologist shall be responsible 
for coordinating with the Native American monitor. 
This verification shall be presented to the City in a 
letter from the project archaeologist that confirms 
the selected Native American monitor is 
associated with a TCA Tribe. The City, prior to 
any pre-construction meeting, shall approve all 
persons involved in the monitoring program. 

• Require verification and
approval of qualified
archaeologist.

Applicant; City of 
Escondido 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Planning Division 

X 

Ordinance No. 2019-12 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 2 of 8



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

220 North Quince Street Senior Housing Project 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program  70 July 2019 

Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
CUL-3: The qualified archaeologist and a Native 
American monitor shall attend the pre-grading 
meeting with the grading contractors to explain 
and coordinate the requirements of the monitoring 
program. 

• Require monitoring 
program coordination. 

City of Escondido 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Planning Division; 
Qualified 

Archaeologist; 
Grading Contractor 

X    

CUL-4: During the initial grubbing, site grading, 
excavation or disturbance of the ground surface, 
the qualified archaeologist and the Native 
American monitor shall be on site full-time. The 
frequency of inspections shall depend on the rate 
of excavation, the materials excavated, and any 
discoveries of tribal cultural resources as defined 
in California Public Resources Code Section 
21074. Archaeological and Native American 
monitoring will be discontinued when the depth of 
grading and soil conditions no longer retain the 
potential to contain cultural deposits. The qualified 
archaeologist, in consultation with the Native 
American monitor, shall be responsible for 
determining the duration and frequency of 
monitoring. 

• Require on-site 
archaeological monitor and 
Native American Monitor. 

City of Escondido 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Planning Division; 
Archaeological 
Monitor; Field 
Engineering 

Division 

 X   

CUL-5: In the event that previously unidentified 
tribal cultural resources are discovered, the 
qualified archaeologist and the Native American 
monitor, shall have the authority to temporarily 
divert or temporarily halt ground disturbance 
operation in the area of discovery to allow for the 
evaluation of potentially significant cultural 
resources. Isolates and clearly non-significant 
deposits shall be minimally documented in the 
field and collected so the monitored grading can 
proceed. 

• Require identification and 
preservation of any 
unidentified cultural 
resources. 

City of Escondido 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Planning Division; 
Project 

Archaeologist; 
County Coroner; 
Native American 

Monitor 

 X   

CUL-6: If a potentially significant tribal cultural 
resource is discovered, the archaeologist shall 
notify the City of said discovery. The qualified 
archaeologist, in consultation with the City, the 
TCA Tribe and the Native American monitor, shall 
determine the significance of the discovered 

• Require identification and 
preservation of any 
significant tribal resource. 

• Consultation with Native 
American Monitor. 

City of Escondido 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Planning Division; 
Project 

 X   

Ordinance No. 2019-12 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 3 of 8



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

220 North Quince Street Senior Housing Project 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program  71 July 2019 

Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
resource. A recommendation for the tribal cultural 
resource’s treatment and disposition shall be 
made by the qualified archaeologist in 
consultation with the TCA Tribe and the Native 
American monitor and be submitted to the City for 
review and approval. 

Archaeologist; 
Native American 

Monitor; TCA Tribe 

CUL-7: The avoidance and/or preservation of the 
significant tribal cultural resource and/or unique 
archaeological resource must first be considered 
and evaluated as required by CEQA. Where any 
significant tribal cultural resources and/or unique 
archaeological resources have been discovered 
and avoidance and/or preservation measures are 
deemed to be infeasible by the City, then a 
research design and data recovery program to 
mitigate impacts shall be prepared by the qualified 
archaeologist (using professional archaeological 
methods), in consultation with the TCA Tribe and 
the Native American monitor, and shall be subject 
to approval by the City. The archaeological 
monitor, in consultation with the Native American 
monitor, shall determine the amount of material to 
be recovered for an adequate artifact sample for 
analysis. Before construction activities are allowed 
to resume in the affected area, the research 
design and data recovery program activities must 
be concluded to the satisfaction of the City. 

• Require research design 
and data recovery 
program. 

• Consultation with Native 
American Monitor. 

City of Escondido 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Planning Division; 
Project 

Archaeologist; 
TCA Tribe 

 X   

CUL-8: As specified by California Health and 
Safety Code Section 7050.5, if human remains 
are found on the project site during construction or 
during archaeological work, the person 
responsible for the excavation, or his or her 
authorized representative, shall immediately notify 
the San Diego County Coroner’s office. 
Determination of whether the remains are human 
shall be conducted on-site and in situ where they 
were discovered by a forensic anthropologist, 
unless the forensic anthropologist and the Native 
American monitor agree to remove the remains to 
an off-site location for examination. No further 
excavation or disturbance of the site or any 

• Require identification and 
preservation of any 
undiscovered cultural 
resources or human 
remains. 

City of Escondido 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Planning Division; 
Project 

Archaeologist; 
County Coroner 

 X   

Ordinance No. 2019-12 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 4 of 8



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

220 North Quince Street Senior Housing Project 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program  72 July 2019 

Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie 
adjacent remains shall occur until the Coroner has 
made the necessary findings as to origin and 
disposition. A temporary construction exclusion 
zone shall be established surrounding the area of 
the discovery so that the area would be protected, 
and consultation and treatment could occur as 
prescribed by law. In the event that the remains 
are determined to be of Native American origin, 
the Most Likely Descendant, as identified by the 
Native American Heritage Commission, shall be 
contacted in order to determine proper treatment 
and disposition of the remains in accordance with 
California Public Resources Code section 
5097.98. The Native American remains shall be 
kept in-situ, or in a secure location in close 
proximity to where they were found, and the 
analysis of the remains shall only occur on-site in 
the presence of a Native American monitor. 
CUL-9: If the qualified archaeologist elects to 
collect any tribal cultural resources, the Native 
American monitor must be present during any 
testing or cataloging of those resources. 
Moreover, if the qualified Archaeologist does not 
collect the cultural resources that are unearthed 
during the ground disturbing activities, the Native 
American monitor, may at their discretion, collect 
said resources and provide them to the TCA Tribe 
for respectful and dignified treatment in 
accordance with the Tribe’s cultural and spiritual 
traditions. Any tribal cultural resources collected 
by the qualified archaeologist shall be repatriated 
to the TCA Tribe. Should the TCA Tribe or other 
traditionally and culturally affiliated tribe decline 
the collection, the collection shall be curated at 
the San Diego Archaeological Center. All other 
resources determined by the qualified 
archaeologist, in consultation with the Native 
American monitor, to not be tribal cultural 
resources, shall be curated at the San Diego 
Archaeological Center. 

• Require that a Native 
American monitor is 
present during any testing 
or cataloging.  

• Any tribal cultural 
resources collected by the 
qualified archaeologist 
shall be repatriated to the 
TCA Tribe.  

• Any tribal cultural 
resources collected by the 
qualified archaeologist that 
are denied collection by the 
TCA Tribe shall be curated 
at the San Diego 
Archaeological Center.  

• Any resource determined 
not to be a tribal cultural 
resource shall be curated 
at the San Diego 
Archaeological Center.  

City of Escondido 
Community 

Development 
Department 

Planning Division; 
Project 

Archaeologist 

 X X  

Ordinance No. 2019-12 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 5 of 8



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

220 North Quince Street Senior Housing Project 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program  73 July 2019 

Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
CUL-10: Prior to the release of the grading bond, 
a monitoring report and/or evaluation report, if 
appropriate, which describes the results, analysis 
and conclusion of the archaeological monitoring 
program and any data recovery program on the 
project site shall be submitted by the qualified 
archaeologist to the City. The Native American 
monitor shall be responsible for providing any 
notes or comments to the qualified archaeologist 
in a timely manner to be submitted with the report. 
The report will include California Department of 
Parks and Recreation Primary and Archaeological 
Site Forms for any newly discovered resources. 

• Require documentation of 
analysis and data by the 
qualified archaeologist. 

• Consultation with Native 
American Monitor. 

Qualified 
Archaeologist; 

Native American 
Monitor 

  X  

Geology and Soils 
GEO-1: General and specific recommendations 
identified in Section 8.0 of the project 
Geotechnical Investigation prepared by SCST 
(2017) shall be implemented in the design and 
construction of the proposed project to address 
the presence of potentially compressible and 
potentially liquefiable soils. To mitigate the 
potentially compressible soils and reduce the 
potential for static settlement and distress to the 
planned building and improvements, remedial 
grading of the existing upper soil shall be 
performed. To mitigate the liquefaction hazard 
and the resulting settlements to acceptable levels, 
ground improvement consisting of rammed 
aggregate piers extending down to the underlying 
granodiorite shall be performed. A qualified 
geotechnical consultant shall observe the ground 
improvement operations and verify that hazards 
related to compressible soils and liquefaction 
have been mitigated to acceptable levels. All 
applicable recommendations, including those 
identified in the Geotechnical Investigation (SCST 
2017) located in Appendix C of the MND, shall be 
included on the grading and site plans prepared 
for the project and shall be implemented during 
project design and construction. Project grading 
plans shall be reviewed by a qualified 

• Require remedial grading 
of existing upper soil.  

• Require ground 
improvement consisting of 
rammed aggregate piers 
extending down to the 
underlying granodiorite.  

• Require a qualified 
geotechnical consultant to 
observe the ground 
improvement operations 
and grading.  

• Require a qualified 
geotechnical consultant to 
review final design 
submittal. 

Qualified 
Geotechnical 
Consultant; 

Construction 
Contractor 

X X   

Ordinance No. 2019-12 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 6 of 8



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

220 North Quince Street Senior Housing Project 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program  74 July 2019 

Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
geotechnical consultant prior to final design 
submittal to determine if additional analysis and 
recommendations beyond those summarized 
above (and listed in full in the Geotechnical 
Investigation) are required. All geotechnical 
recommendations shall be fully implemented in 
accordance with applicable industry/regulatory 
standards (e.g., CBC requirements). 
Hazards and Hazardous Materials 
HAZ-1: Testing for soil contamination shall be 
conducted by an individual licensed in the State of 
California to assess soil conditions for the 
potential presence of contaminated soils following 
the completion of grading activities, but prior to 
construction of on-site structures. Soil sampling 
shall be performed in areas deemed most likely to 
have had residual impact from previously released 
diesel fuel, gasoline, or waste oil associated with 
the historical recognized environmental condition 
at the property. In the event that contaminated 
soils are encountered, these soils shall be 
properly tested, managed, and disposed of at a 
licensed facility in accordance with the County 
Department of Environmental Health 
requirements. 

• Require testing for soil 
contamination in areas 
most likely to have had 
residual impact from 
previously released 
hazardous materials. 

• Require testing, managing, 
and disposal of 
contaminated soils.  

Applicant/ 
Construction 
Contractor 

X    

Noise 
NOI-1: For the project’s habitable areas (both 
living rooms and bedrooms) with a view (including 
partial) of North Quince Street or West Valley 
Parkway, which are likely to exceed an interior 
noise level of 45 CNEL, the following measures 
shall be incorporated to provide the required noise 
control to ensure that noise levels at interior 
habitable areas are 45 CNEL or less: 
• Exterior wall requirement of standard 0.875-

inch stucco over 0.5-inch shearwall on 2x6 
studs with 0.625-inch Type “X” Drywall. 

• Minimum window requirement of STC 28. 
• Window construction of dual glazing window 

thickness 0.125-inch and 0.5-inch air gap. 

• Require incorporation of 
noise minimization 
measures into the 
construction of exterior 
walls and windows. 

• Require appropriate air 
circulation.  

• Require the inclusion of a 
mechanical ventilation 
system into the building 
design.  

Applicant/ 
Construction 
Contractor 

X X   

Ordinance No. 2019-12 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 7 of 8



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

220 North Quince Street Senior Housing Project 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program  75 July 2019 

Mitigation Measures 
Implementation, Monitoring, 

and Reporting Action Responsibility 

Monitoring Schedule 
Verification 

Date 
Before 

Construction 
During 

Construction 
After 

Construction 
• Appropriate means of air circulation and 

provision of fresh air must be present to allow 
windows to remain closed for extended 
intervals of time so that acceptable levels of 
noise can be maintained on the interior. 

• The building design would include a 
mechanical ventilation system that would 
meet the criteria of the International Building 
Code (Chapter 12, Section 1203.3 of the 
2013 CBC) to ensure that windows would be 
able to remain permanently closed. 

 

Ordinance No. 2019-12 

Exhibit "D" 

Page 8 of 8



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “E”

Page 1 of 4

EXHIBIT “E”

FACTORS TO CONSIDER / FINDINGS OF FACT

PHG 17-0028 / ENV 17-0008

Environmental Determination(s):

1. Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, (CEQA, Public Resources Code 
Section 21000 et. seq.), and its implementing regulations (the State CEQA Guidelines), 
Article 14 of the California Code of Regulations Section 15000 et. seq., the City of 
Escondido is the Lead Agency for the project (“Project”), as the public agency with the 
principal responsibility for approving the Project.
 

2. An Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for the Project was prepared, 
published, circulated and reviewed in accordance with the requirements of CEQA, the 
State CEQA Guidelines, and the local environmental procedures. The decision making 
body of the Lead Agency shall adopt the proposed IS/MND only if: 

- It finds on the basis of the whole record before it that there is no substantial 
evidence the project will have a significant effect on the environment, and 

- The IS/MND reflects the Lead Agency's independent judgment and analysis.

3. The Final IS/MND and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP), collectively 
constitute the environmental documentation under and pursuant to CEQA, the CEQA 
Guidelines, and local environmental procedures relating to the project, and shall be 
referred to herein collectively as the "CEQA Documents." 

4. The Planning Commission has received the material record supporting all of the CEQA 
Documents for the project. The Planning Commission, finds the following: 

- The IS/MND reflects the City’s independent judgment and analysis. 
- That there is no substantial evidence that the Project or any of its aspects could 

result in significant adverse impacts that cannot be mitigated related to the 
CEQA Documents, with the implementation of the mitigation measures in the 
MMRP.  All previously identified impacts have been mitigated to less than a 
significant level. 

- The Planning Commission also finds that the mitigation measures listed in the 
MMRP will not cause any potentially significant effects. 

5. Mitigation measures are recommended to be incorporated as part of the adoption of the 
Mitigated Negative Declaration. The recommended approval of the Project also includes 



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “E”

Page 2 of 4

the adoption of the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) that is attached 
to the Resolution. 

6. The Commission further finds the Final IS/MND has been completed in compliance with 
CEQA and it constitutes a complete, accurate, adequate and good faith effort at full 
disclosure under CEQA. 

7. Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21081.6(a)(2) and CEQA Guidelines Section 
15091(e), all documents and other materials which constitute the record of proceedings 
are located at the City of Escondido, City Civic Center.  The City Clerk, whose office is 
located at 201 North Broadway, Escondido CA 92025, is hereby designated as the 
custodian of the documents and other materials which constitute the record of proceedings 
upon which the Planning Commission’s decision is based, which documents and materials 
shall be available for public inspection and copying in accordance with the provisions of 
the California Public Records Act.

Specific Plan Amendment:

1. The public health, safety and welfare would not be adversely affected by the proposed 
amendments to the Downtown Specific Plan because the amendment would refine 
development standards in a manner that would allow a development that would assist in 
ongoing efforts to promote an economically vibrant downtown with high-density residential 
uses in close proximity to the Escondido Transit Center.

The proposed action to amend the Downtown Specific Plan to: 1) change the location for 
allowable ground-floor residential land uses, 2) reduce open space requirements based 
on project densities, and 2) establish parking requirements for senior housing projects 
seek to remove governmental constraints aimed at improving, maintaining, and 
developing housing opportunities in the Escondido community.  The Amendment is 
necessary to ensure future projects are feasible and not unduly constrained by housing 
development, while facilitating the reasonable application of land use regulation to ensure 
desired community character is preserved. 

2. The proposed amendments to the Downtown Specific Plan would not be detrimental to 
surrounding properties since they would assist in implementation of the vision and goals 
identified in the Specific Plan. The proposed changes would have no effect on the 
residential density allowed in the area and would not allow any new commercial uses that 
are not already permitted in the Specific Plan.  Additionally, the amendment would allow 
a development that would increase the residential population in an area where public 
transportation is readily available and would support the economic viability of existing and 
future businesses in the project vicinity.

3. The proposed amendment to the Downtown Specific Plan would be consistent with the 
General Plan because it would not increase residential densities allowed by the General 
Plan, would not detrimentally impact levels of service on area roadways, would not unduly 



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “E”

Page 3 of 4

burden public services in the area, and would be consistent with the transit-oriented 
development opportunities envisioned for the project area.  It would also retain the General 
Plan vision which states the Downtown Specific Plan shall provide a range of retail, office, 
financial, cultural and residential opportunities. The specific plan goal to create an 
efficiently organized, aesthetically pleasing and vibrant downtown is further enabled and 
enhanced as a result of the proposed amendment.

Master and Precise Development Plan:

1. The location, design, and residential density of the proposed planned development are 
consistent with the goals and policies of the Escondido General Plan since high-density 
residential development is permitted and encouraged in Specific Plan Area #9.  The 
proposed infill residential project would be in conformance with General Plan Housing 
Goals and Policies to plan for quality managed and sustainable growth and provide a 
range of housing opportunities for all income groups and populations with special needs, 
and which encourage a compact, efficient urban form the promotes transit, supports 
nearby commercial establishments and takes advantage of infrastructure improvements 
installed to accommodate their intended intensities.

2.  The proposed location of the development allows the planned development to be well 
integrated with its surroundings by providing a high-density residential housing project for 
senior citizens in close proximity to transit, and near retail and other commercially 
developed properties. Adequate parking, circulation, utilities and access would be 
provided for the development (as detailed in the staff report).  The residential project also 
would not be out of character for the area because the Gateway Transit District of the 
Downtown Specific Plan envisions an upscale urban area with a mix of high-density 
residential and commercial development, and the proximity to the Escondido Transit 
Center makes the density appropriate.  The overall mass and scale of the buildings is 
appropriate for the proposed location due to the street-oriented appeal and urban design 
characteristics, along with the quality of the architectural design and use of a variety of 
building materials and colors.

3. All vehicular traffic generated by the proposed development would be accommodated 
safely and without causing undue congestion upon adjoining streets, according to the 
Mitigated Negative Declaration, issued June 8, 2019 (City File No. ENV 17-0008), the 
traffic study completed for the project by Linscott , Law & Greenspan, Engineers (June 3, 
2019), and the Engineering Division.

4. The overall design of the proposed residential development would produce an attractive, 
efficient and stable environment for living, since adequate residential amenities, parking, 
and landscaping would be provided, and the design of the development is consistent with 
a high quality, urban infill project that will provide housing opportunities within walking 
distance of downtown commercial and retail services consistent with the City’s vision for 
the downtown area.  The project includes sufficient on-site open space amenities 



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “E”

Page 4 of 4

appropriate for a senior housing project, including a large plaza, community room/club 
house, and other view decks and outdoor seating areas.

5. The proposed development would be well integrated into its surroundings, since the new 
structure would incorporate compatible and integrated architecture, materials and colors, 
the project would not be visually obstructive or disharmonious with surrounding areas, or 
harm major views from adjacent properties.  The proposed grading design would not result 
in any manufactured slopes or pad that would create any significant adverse visual or 
compatibility impacts with adjacent lots, nor block any significant views.   Extensive 
grading is not required to support the project, and the project would not result in the 
destruction of desirable natural features, nor be visually obstructive or disharmonious with 
surrounding areas because the site is not located on a skyline or intermediate ridge, and 
the site does not contain any significant topographical features.

6. Utilizing the Planned Development process allows flexibility from the Specific Plan 
requirements to achieve a high-density residential project in the urban core.  The project 
would provide residential opportunities integrated into a comprehensive and self-
contained development, which creates an environment of sustained desirability and 
stability through the controls offered and regulated through the Planned Development 
process.

7. The project would provide an environment of sustained desirability and stability since city 
services and adequate access would be provided, adequate parking would be provided, 
the proposed architecture would be integrated into its surroundings, and the project could 
serve as a catalyst for further revitalization efforts in the area.



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “F”

Page 1 of 16

Page 1 of 16

EXHIBIT “F”
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

PHG 17-0028 / ENV 17-0008

Planning Division Conditions

A. Project Mitigation Measures

1. The approval of the Specific Plan Amendment and Master and Precise Development Plan, 
Planning Case Nos. PHG 17-0028 and ENV 17-0008, (hereinafter referred to as "Project"), 
is granted subject to the approval of the Final IS/MND and is subject to all Project features 
and mitigation measures contained therein. Applicant shall implement, or cause the 
implementation of the Final IS/MND Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, 
provided as an Exhibit “D” to this ordinance. 

B. General

1. This project is conditionally approved as set forth on the application received by the City 
of Escondido, all designated as approved by the City Council on September 25, 2019, and 
shall not be altered without express authorization by the Community Development 
Department.

2. Approval of this request shall not waive compliance with any sections of the Municipal 
Code and all other applicable City regulations in effect at the time of Building Permit 
issuance unless specifically waived herein.  Nothing in this permit shall relieve the 
Applicant from complying with conditions and regulations generally imposed upon 
activities similar in nature to the activity authorized by this permit.  This action does not 
relieve the applicant of the obligation to comply with all ordinances, statutes, regulations, 
and procedures.

Exceptions granted by the Planned Development Permit to the development standards 
identified in the Downtown Specific Plan are as follows:

a) Allow ground-floor residential use (parking garage as an accessory use to residential 
uses above)



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “F”

Page 2 of 16

Page 2 of 16

3. Prior to any use of the project site pursuant to this permit, all conditions of approval 
contained herein shall be completed or secured to the satisfaction of the Community 
Development Department.

4. The developer shall be required to pay all development fees of the City prior to building 
permit issuance, including any applicable City-Wide Facilities fees at the established rate. 
Such fees may include, but not be limited to: Permit and Plan Checking Fees, Water and 
Sewer Service Fees, School Fees, Traffic Mitigation Fees, Flood Control Mitigation Fees, 
Park Mitigation Fees, Fire Mitigation/Cost Recovery Fees, and other fees listed in the Fee 
Schedule, which may be amended.  Arrangements to pay these fees shall be made prior 
to building permit issuance to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department.

5. All construction shall comply with all applicable requirements of the Escondido Zoning 
Code and requirements of the Planning Department, Building Official, and the Fire Chief.

6. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall enter into and cause to be recorded 
a Senior Housing Regulatory Agreement, to be provided by the City, which shall contain 
requirements for the design, phasing, construction, marketing, occupancy and 
maintenance of the senior housing project.  The provision herein does not limit the 
authority of the applicant to enter into an affordable housing covenant or regulatory 
agreement with nonpossessory interest in real property imposing limitations, restrictions 
or affirmative obligations that encourage development or that ensure continued availability 
of affordable rental and owner-occupied housing for low or moderate income individuals.

7. The appropriate agreement(s) shall contain the term, household income requirements and 
restrictions (if any), rental rate restriction (if any), sales price restriction (if any), monitoring 
procedures and any other conditions to ensure the appropriate occupancy during the term. 
The occupancy term of the senior housing project shall commence on the issuance of 
certification of occupancy for unit, and continue in accordance with provisions contained 
within the Senior Housing Ordinance (Article 41 of the Escondido Zoning Code).  Said 
Regulatory Agreement shall be of a form and content satisfactory to the Community 
Development Director.

8. The legal description, attached as Exhibit “A” to this ordinance, has been provided by the 
applicant and neither the City of Escondido nor any of its employees assume responsibility 
for the accuracy of said legal description.

9. All requirements of the Public Partnership Program, Ordinance No. 86-70 shall be satisfied 
prior to building permit issuance.  The ordinance requires that a public art fee be added at 
the time of the building permit issuance for the purpose of participating in the City Public 
Art Program.



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “F”

Page 3 of 16

Page 3 of 16

10. Three (3) copies of revised plan sets, reflecting any modifications identified in these 
conditions of approval, shall be submitted to the Planning Division for certification. Said 
plans must be certified by the Planning Division prior to submittal of grading, public 
improvement and landscape plans for the project. 

11. This Planned Development Permit shall expire three (3) years after the date of final 
approval of this project, that date being the effective date of the ordinance approving the 
Permit. Extensions of time may be requested in the same manner as would be permitted 
for a tentative map.

12. An inspection by the Planning Division will be required prior to occupancy of the project.  
Items subject to inspection include, but are not limited to, parking layout and striping, 
identification of handicap parking stalls and required signage, landscaping, trash 
enclosures, and architecture, as well as any other conditions of approval.  Everything shall 
be installed prior to calling for an inspection, although preliminary inspections may be 
requested. Contact the project planner at (760) 839-4671 to arrange a final inspection.

13. At all times during the effective period of this permit, the responsible party shall obtain and 
maintain in valid force and effect, each and every license and permit required by a 
governmental agency for the operation of the authorized activity.

14. In the event that any of the conditions of this permit are not satisfied, the Community 
Development Department shall cause a noticed hearing to be set before the authorized 
agency to determine whether the City of Escondido should, acting through the authorized 
agency, add, amend, or delete conditions and regulations contained in this permit.

15. Nothing in this permit shall relieve the applicant from complying with conditions and 
regulations generally imposed upon activities similar in nature to the activity authorized by 
this permit.

16. Nothing in this permit shall authorize the applicant to intensify the authorized activity 
beyond that which is specifically described in this permit.  Any future modifications to the 
approved project will be reviewed relative to the findings for substantial conformance.  
Modifications beyond the scope described therein will require submittal of an amendment 
to the project plans and approval by the authorized agency.

17. The City of Escondido hereby notifies the applicant that State Law (SB 1535) effective 
January 1, 2007, requires certain projects to pay fees for purposes of funding the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife. If the project is found to have a significant 
impact to wildlife resources and/or sensitive habitat, in accordance with State law, the 
applicant shall remit to the City of Escondido Planning Division, within two (2) working 



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “F”

Page 4 of 16

Page 4 of 16

days of the effective date of the adoption of the Mitigated Negative Declaration, a check 
payable to the “San Diego County Clerk,” in the amount of $ $2,404.75 for a project with 
a Mitigated Negative Declaration, which includes an additional authorized County 
administrative handling fee of $50.00 ($2,354.75 + $50). Failure to remit the required fees 
in full within the specified time noted above will result in County notification to the State 
that a fee was required but not paid, and could result in State imposed penalties and 
recovery under the provisions of the Revenue and Taxation code. In addition, Section 
21089(b) of the Public Resources Code, and Section 711.4(c) of the Fish and Game Code 
provide that no project shall be operative, vested, or final until all the required filing fees 
are paid. If the fee increase after the date of this approval, the applicant shall be 
responsible for the increase. 

C. Architecture and Design

1. All signs are to be approved by a separate sign permit. All signs must be consistent with 
the sign standards in the Downtown Specific Plan.

2. A minimum of 80 cubic feet of private storage shall be provided in each residential unit. 
Said storage shall be in addition to typical cabinets and closets, and shall have no 
dimension less than two feet.

3. Any retaining walls and raised planters shall be constructed with split-face block or shall 
be stucco-finished to match the color(s) used on the building. 

4. All exterior lighting shall conform to the requirements of Article 35 (Outdoor Lighting 
Ordinance) of the Escondido Zoning Code.

5. Prior to building permit issuance, proposed outdoor lighting fixtures shall be submitted to 
the Planning Division for review and approval. 

6. Site lighting and photometric plans shall be included with the building plans.

7. The building, architecture, colors and materials, and conceptual landscaping shall be in 
substantial conformance with the Master and Precise Development Plan attached as 
Exhibit “C” to this ordinance and on-file with the Planning Division, except as modified by 
these conditions of approval.  Any major modifications to the exterior architectural building 
elements or lessening of the quality of the exterior design shall require the processing of 
a Precise Plan modification, as described in Article 19 of the Escondido Zoning Code. 
Minor modifications may be approved through a design review process described in Article 
64 of the Escondido Zoning Code. 



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “F”

Page 5 of 16

Page 5 of 16

8. Color and material callouts on the plans shall be revised to reflect those shown on the 
Architectural Color Scheme board submitted by the applicant on January 15, 2019, and 
on-file in the Planning Division.

9. Louvered vents or other method of screening acceptable to the Director of Community 
Development shall be provided on the ground floor in order to screen the garage from 
public view.  Wrought iron fencing is not sufficient.

10. Illuminated art panels shall be provided in locations shown on the plans attached to this 
ordinance as Exhibit “C.” Final design of said panels shall be subject to design review by 
the Planning Division.

11. All mechanical equipment shall be screened from view in accordance with Section 33-
1085 of the Escondido Zoning Code.

12. All new utilities shall be underground.

D. Operational

1. Trash and recycling shall be picked up as frequently as necessary to prevent overflow. 

2. The property owner/manager shall be responsible for placing trash and recycling bins by 
the utility gate near the southeast side of parking garage prior to scheduled pickup time(s). 
Bins shall be returned to the trash room as soon as they have been emptied by the hauler.

3. Provisions shall be made so that trash and recycling materials are not placed in the trash 
chute(s) while the bins are not in place. This may be accomplished by providing other 
receptacles in the trash room when the bins are not in place, by locking the chutes, or by 
other means that will accomplish this provision. 

4. Permitted animals/pets shall be allowed in conformance with those identified in the 
Escondido Zoning Code for R-5 zoned properties, unless more restrictive standards are 
applied by the property owner.

5. All project generated noise shall conform to the City’s Noise Ordinance (Ordinance 90-
08).

6. Security cameras shall be provided if deemed necessary by the Police Chief.

7. Any decorative pavement, driveways and sidewalks shall be indicated on the building and 
landscape plans, including appropriate notes regarding type and color of materials. Any 
decorative paving damaged or removed by the City or other utility provider in order to 



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “F”

Page 6 of 16

Page 6 of 16

perform maintenance of public utility lines shall be replaced at the sole expense of the 
property owner.

8. Balconies and patios shall be kept in a neat and orderly manner.  Items stored on 
balconies should be kept out of view or properly screened.  Items shall not be hung over, 
across or on balconies or patios (such a towels, clothing, etc.).

E. Parking, Access and Circulation 

1. A minimum of 120 parking spaces shall be provided on-site, including at least four 
accessible parking spaces. No more than 30 percent of the parking spaces shall be 
compact spaces.

2. Electric vehicle charging spaces shall be provided in accordance with the California 
Building Code.

3. All parking spaces shall be striped in conformance with Article 39 of the Escondido Zoning 
Code.

4. All onsite parking spaces shall be within a grade-level garage accessed from one driveway 
on N. Quince Street. Said driveway and all interior parking aisles shall be a minimum of 
24 feet wide.

5. The garage identified in Parking, Access and Circulation condition no. E4 above may be 
gated, however said gate shall remain open from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. The City Engineer 
may require modifications to these hours if it is determined that they are not sufficient to 
preclude impacts to the traffic flow on N. Quince Street resulting from vehicle queuing. 

6. The gated access identified in Parking, Access and Circulation condition no. E5 above 
shall be electric. All residents with assigned parking spaces and all employees shall be 
provided with remote access for entrance into the garage. An electric/magnetic loop shall 
be installed on the interior of the garage so that the gate automatically opens for exiting 
vehicles.

7. A parking and garage management plan shall be submitted to the City for review. Said 
plan shall address parking lot access, space assignment(s), gate hours, general 
maintenance, signage and striping, delivery and other short-term parking 
allowances/requirements, guest parking, utility access and trash/recycling staging, and 
any other issues which affect the use and maintenance of the parking garage. 



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “F”

Page 7 of 16

Page 7 of 16

8. A utility gate shall be provided in the alley, near the southeast corner of the building, to 
allow maintenance and other utility access to the site, including, but not limited to, pickup 
of trash and recycling.

9. An emergency access/fire lane shall be provided along the north and east sides of the 
building, to the satisfaction of the Fire Department. 

F. Landscaping

1. All landscaping shall be installed prior to occupancy. 

2. All vegetation shall be maintained in a flourishing manner, and kept free of all foreign 
matter, weeds and plant materials not approved as part of the landscape plan.  

3. All irrigation shall be maintained in fully operational condition.  

4. The property owner assumes all responsibility for maintaining all on-site landscaping and 
any landscaping in the public right-of-way adjacent to the property, including potted plants.

5. Five copies of detailed landscape and irrigation plans shall be submitted to the 
Engineering Services Department with the second submittal lf the grading plan. The initial 
submittal of the landscape plans shall include the required plan check fees.

6. The landscape and irrigation plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Division and Engineering Services Department prior to issuance of grading permits, and 
shall be equivalent or superior to the conceptual landscape plans included as part of the 
Master and Precise Development Plans, to the satisfaction of the Planning Division. The 
required landscape and irrigation plans(s) shall comply with the provisions, requirements 
and standards outlined in Article 62 (Landscape Standards) of the Escondido Zoning 
Code, except where stricter requirements are imposed by the State of California. The 
plans shall be prepared by, or under the supervision of, a licensed landscape architect.  

7. The installation of the landscaping and irrigation shall be inspected by the project 
landscape architect upon completion. He/she shall complete a Certificate of Landscape 
Compliance certifying that the installation is in substantial compliance with the approved 
landscape and irrigation plans and City standards.  The applicant shall submit the 
Certificate of Compliance to the Planning Division and request a final inspection.

8. Street trees shall be provided along each of the site’s street frontages, in conformance 
with the Landscape Ordinance and the City of Escondido Street Tree List. Due to the 
presence of a sewer main under the sidewalk on N. Quince Street, It may be necessary 



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “F”

Page 8 of 16

Page 8 of 16

to provide street trees in above-ground pots, designed to the satisfaction of the Director 
of Community Development and City Engineer. If necessary, all street trees, along both 
N. Quince Street and W. Valley Parkway, shall be placed in above-ground pots to maintain 
a uniform and cohesive appearance along the project frontage.

9. Trees planted in pots shall be selected based on their ability to flourish in such 
circumstances. 

10. Details of project fencing and walls, including materials and colors, shall be provided on 
the landscape plans.  Building permits may be required.

Engineering Conditions

General

1. The applicant shall provide the City Engineer a current Title Report covering the subject 
property.

2. As surety for the construction of required off-site improvements, bonds and agreements 
in a form acceptable to the City Attorney shall be posted by the developer with the City of 
Escondido prior to the approval of any building permit.

3. If site conditions change adjacent to the proposed development prior to completion of the 
project, the developer will be responsible to modify his/her improvements to accommodate 
these changes.  The determination and extent of the modification shall be to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer.

4. All public improvements shall be constructed in a manner that does not damage existing 
public improvements.  Any damage shall be determined by and corrected to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer.

Street Improvements and Traffic

1. The developer shall construct street improvements, including but not limited to, concrete 
curb, gutter, sidewalk, street lights, street trees, paving and base on the following streets 
within and adjoining the project boundary:

STREET CLASSIFICATION
            W. Valley Parkway                    Collector (32’ half width)



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “F”

Page 9 of 16

Page 9 of 16

See appropriate typical sections in the current Escondido Design Standards for additional 
details.

2. The W. Valley Parkway improvements shall transition within the existing driveway apron 
east of the site.

3. All driveways shall be alley-type in accordance with Escondido Standard Drawing No. G-
5-E, with a minimum throat width of 24 feet.

4. All unused driveways shall be removed and replaced with full height curb and gutter and 
sidewalk in accordance with City standards.

5. The developer may be responsible for an overlay of Quince Street and W. Valley Parkway 
due to the many utility trenches necessary to serve this project.  The determination of the 
extent of the overlay shall be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

6. An Encroachment Permit shall be obtained from the Engineering Department for all work 
within the public right-of-way.  Contact the Engineering Field Office at 760 839-4664 to 
arrange for the Encroachment Permit and inspections, and note on the plans.

7. A 30-foot radius curb return and pedestrian ramp shall be constructed at the northeast 
corner of W. Valley Parkway and Quince Street. 

8. Adequate horizontal sight distance shall be provided at all street intersections and 
driveway entrances.  Increased parkway widths, open space easements, and restrictions 
on landscaping and raised planters may be required at the discretion of the City Engineer. 

9. The developer’s engineer shall prepare a complete signing and striping plan for all 
improved roadways. The developer’s contractor shall complete all necessary removal of 
existing striping and signage and shall install all new signing and striping per the approved 
plans and as directed by the Field Engineer.

10. The developer will be required to provide a detailed detour and traffic control plan for all 
construction within the existing right-of-way, to the satisfaction of the Traffic Engineer and 
the Field Engineer.  The traffic control plan shall be approved prior to the issuance of an 
Encroachment Permit for construction within the public right-of-way.

11. The developer shall be required to install “No Parking – Bike Lane” signs and red-paint the 
curb along the project’s N. Quince Street and W. Valley Parkway frontage at 150-foot 
spacing, except in the area designated as the delivery/loading zone described in Street 
Improvement and Traffic condition no. 16 below.  The signs shall be mounted on the street 
light poles where possible.



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “F”

Page 10 of 16

Page 10 of 16

12. The developer shall be required to construct a LED street light in accordance with 
Escondido Standard Drawing No. E-1-E on Quince Street near the project’s entrance.  

13. Pedestrian access routes conforming to the American Disabilities Act shall be provided 
into the project from the public sidewalk, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

14. All gated entrances shall be designed and constructed to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer and the Fire Marshal.

15. The project owner shall remove and replace all damaged sidewalks and curb and gutters 
along project frontages on Quince Street and W. Valley Parkway to the satisfaction of the 
City Engineer, prior to issuance of Certificate of Occupancy.

16. An 8.5 foot-wide and 100-foot long loading zone shall be constructed along the project 
frontage on Quince Street.

17. The existing traffic signal the intersection of W. Valley Parkway and Quince Street shall 
be modified to accommodate the required widening of W. Valley Parkway and the 30’ curb 
return to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.  Modifications shall include relocating or 
replacing the traffic signal poles and equipment, cabinets, pull boxes, video detection, etc., 
per all current MUCTD and Caltrans standards.

18. The existing traffic signal at W. Valley Parkway and Centre City Parkway shall be modified 
to add an audible pedestrian signal (A.P.S.) system to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

19. An engineered improvement plan is required for all public improvements (unless only 
sidewalks, driveways and/or streetlights are required).  The developer shall post security 
for these improvements and an improvement plan shall be approved by the City of 
Escondido prior to issuance of any building permits.  All required improvements shall be 
constructed prior to final acceptance of subject construction by the City.

Grading

1. A site grading and erosion control plan prepared by a registered Civil Engineer shall be 
approved by the Engineering Department.  The first submittal of the grading plan shall be 
accompanied by 3 copies of the preliminary soils and geotechnical report.  The soils 
engineer will be required to indicate in the soils report that he/she has reviewed the grading 
design and found it to be in conformance with his/her recommendations.

2. Erosion control, including riprap, interim sloping planting, gravel bags, or other erosion 
control measures shall be provided to control sediment and silt from the project.  The 



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “F”

Page 11 of 16

Page 11 of 16

developer shall be responsible for maintaining all erosion control facilities throughout the 
development of the project.

3. All private driveways and parking areas shall be paved with a minimum of 3” AC over 6” of 
AB or 7” PCC over 6” AB.  All paved areas exceeding 15% slope or less than 1.0% shall 
be paved with PCC.  

4. The developer shall be required to construct a 20-foot-wide emergency access road on 
the north side of the property to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and City Fire Marshal.  
The width of the access road located on City property (along Escondido Creek bike path) 
and on this property shall be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and Fire Marshall.

5. The trash enclosure area shall be constructed or modified to comply with storm water 
quality management requirement to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

6. A Construction General Permit is required from the State Water Resources Control Board 
for all storm water discharges associated with a construction activity where clearing, 
grading, and excavation results in a land disturbance of one or more acres.

7. After the approval of the site grading and erosion control plan, and prior to the start of 
construction of the grading and street improvements, the developer shall obtain a Grading 
Permit and Encroachment Permit from the Engineering Field Office.  Contact the 
Engineering Field Office at 760 839-4664 to arrange for the Encroachment Permit and 
inspections.

8. Any blasting operations performed in connection with the improvements of the project shall 
comply with the City of Escondido Blasting Operations Ordinance.

9. The developer shall be required to obtain permission from adjoining property owners for 
any off-site grading and slopes necessary to construct the project and/or the required 
improvements.

10. The developer shall be responsible for the recycling of all excavated materials designated 
as Industrial Recyclables (soil, asphalt, sand, concrete, land clearing brush and rock) at a 
recycling center or other locations approved by the Director of Engineering Services.

11. All site grading and erosion control plans shall be prepared by a Registered Civil Engineer.  
A separate submittal to the Engineering Department is required for the site grading and 
erosion control plans.  Plans will not be forwarded from the Building Department.  



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “F”

Page 12 of 16

Page 12 of 16

Drainage

1. Final on-site storm drain improvements shall be determined to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer and shall be based on a drainage study to be prepared by the Engineer of Work.  
The drainage study shall be in conformance with the City of Escondido Design Standards.

2. The project shall limit drainage flows to their pre-construction rates.  Details and 
calculations for basins shall be submitted and approved as part of the grading plan check.

3. A Storm Water Quality Management Plan (SWQMP) in compliance with the City’s latest 
adopted Storm Water Design Manual shall be prepared for all newly created or replaced 
onsite impervious areas, impervious frontage, and required offsite improvements.  The 
SWQMP shall be submitted for approval with the final improvement and grading plans.  
The SWQMP shall include hydro-modification calculations, treatment calculations, post-
construction storm water treatment measures, and maintenance requirements.

4. All site drainage with emphasis on the parking and drive way areas shall be treated to 
remove expected contaminants using a high efficiency non-mechanical method of 
treatment.  The City highly encourages the use of bio-retention basins within or along the 
perimeter of the parking and driveway area as the primary method of storm water 
treatment and hydro-modification compliance.  The landscape plans shall reflect these 
areas of storm water treatment.

5. All on-site storm drains, detention basins, and all post-construction BMP’s facilities are 
private.  The responsibility for maintenance of these storm drains shall be that of the 
property owner.

6. Site Design and Source Control Best Management Practices (BMPs) shall be 
implemented to the maximum extent practicable.  Downspouts of the building shall be 
directed to landscaping to allow the infiltration of runoff into the ground.  Where feasible, 
runoff from the hardscape areas shall be directed to landscaped areas to allow infiltration 
into the ground.

7. The developer will be required to have the current owner of the property sign, notarize, 
and record a Storm Water Control Facility Maintenance Agreement. 

8. The project owner shall install and maintain trash capture devices on existing storm drain 
inlets along the project’s frontage to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “F”

Page 13 of 16

Page 13 of 16

Water Supply

1. Required water main improvements for the project include construction of an 8-inch public 
water main in Quince Street from Valley Parkway along the project’s Quince Street 
property frontage to the north end of the parcel. The 8-inch water main shall be in 
accordance with the current City of Escondido Design Standards and Standard Drawings 
and to the satisfaction of the Utilities Engineer.  The existing 6-inch water main in Quince 
Street that the 8-inch water main is replacing shall be abandoned.

2. Required water main improvements for the project include construction of an 8-inch public 
water main extension in the private access drive on the easterly side of the proposed 
project. The 8-inch water main extension shall serve the proposed hydrant at the northeast 
corner of the proposed building and shall be designed and constructed in accordance with 
the current City of Escondido Design Standards and Standard Drawings and to the 
satisfaction of the Utilities Engineer. A public utility easement shall be granted to the City 
of Escondido with a minimum easement width of 10-feet. 

3. The existing 8-inch public water main that extends from Valley Parkway north along the 
easterly side of the proposed project shall be located within a minimum 10-foot public 
utility easement. 

4. Fire hydrants together with an adequate water supply shall be installed at locations 
approved by the Fire Marshal. Fire hydrants shall connect to a minimum 8-inch water 
main.

5. A fire suppression sprinkler system shall be designed and constructed per current City of 
Escondido Design Standards and Standard Drawings and per the requirements of the Fire 
Marshal.

6. A 1-inch minimum water service, 1-inch water meter, and back flow prevention device 
shall be required for domestic water supply per City of Escondido Design Standards and 
Standard Drawings.  The water meter and back flow prevention device shall be located 
near the northeast corner of the site.  Water meters and back flow prevention devices shall 
not be installed within a driveway apron or private drive areas.

7. A 1.5-inch minimum irrigation service, 1.5-inch irrigation meter, and back flow prevention 
device shall be required for domestic water supply per City of Escondido Design 
Standards and Standard Drawings.  The water meter and back flow prevention device 
shall be located near the northeast corner of the site.  Water meters and back flow 
prevention devices shall not be installed within a driveway apron or private drive areas.



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “F”

Page 14 of 16

Page 14 of 16

8. All on-site water lines and backflow prevention devices beyond the City water meter shall 
be considered a private water system.  The property owner shall be responsible for all 
maintenance of these water lines and appurtenances.

9. No trees or deep rooted plants shall be planted within 10-feet of any water mains.

10. There shall be no permanent structures located within the City’s Public Utilities 
Easements.

Sewer

1. A private 6-inch minimum PVC sewer lateral with a standard clean-out within 18-inches of 
the Public Utilities Easement or right-of-way shall be constructed for the project and shown 
on the Improvement and Grading plans. Sewer laterals less than 8-inches in diameter 
shall connect to the sewer main with a wye fitting or Inserta-Tee.

2. All sewer laterals shall be constructed per current City of Escondido Design Standards 
and Standard Drawings and per the current Uniform Plumbing Code.  

3. No trees or deep rooted bushes shall be planted within 15-feet of any sewer main or within 
10-feet of any sewer lateral except in movable above-ground planters, to the satisfaction 
of the City Engineer. Sewer laterals shall be 5-feet horizontally clear from other utilities.

4. Should the above-ground planters referenced in Sewer condition no. 3 above need to be 
moved to allow access to a sewer main or lateral, it shall be the responsibility of the 
property owner to temporarily remove said planters. The property owner will also be 
responsible for putting the planters back in place after any work which necessitated their 
relocation has been completed.

5. All sewer laterals shall be considered a private sewer system. The property owner shall 
be responsible for all maintenance of the sewer laterals to the sewer main.

6. There shall be no permanent structures located within the City’s Public Utilities 
Easements.

Easements and Dedication

1. The developer shall dedicate 6 feet of right-of -way along the proposed loading zone 
located on the project frontage on Quince Street. 



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “F”

Page 15 of 16

Page 15 of 16

2. A ten (10)-foot public utility easements shall be granted to the City for the public water 
main extension in the private access drive on the easterly side of the proposed project.  

3. The property owner shall grant to the City a two (2) foot public utility easement along the 
property frontage of Quince Street and W. Valley Parkway in accordance with the design 
standards and the requirements of the City Engineer.

4. The owner shall dedicate to the public a 20-foot radius corner rounding at Quince Street 
and W. Valley Parkway.

5. An emergency access easement shall be granted to the City for the portion of the 
emergency access located along the north end of the parcel.  The width of the easement 
shall be to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and Fire Marshal.

6. All easements, both private and public, affecting subject property shall be delineated and 
labeled on the grading plans.

7. The developer shall make arrangements to remove from title all existing easements which 
conflict with the proposed project structure.

8. Material necessary for processing a dedication or easement shall include: a current grant 
deed or title report, a legal description and plat of the dedication or easement signed and 
sealed by a person authorized to practice land surveying (document size) and traverse 
closure tapes.  The City will prepare all final documents.

Repayment and Fees / Cash Security and Fees

1. A cash security shall be posted to pay any costs incurred by the City to clean-up eroded 
soils and debris, repair damage to public to private property and improvements, install or 
maintain BMP’s, and stabilize and/or close-up a non-responsive of abandoned project.  
Any moneys used by the City for clean-up or damage will be drawn from this security.  The 
remaining portion of this clean-up security shall be released upon final acceptance of the 
grading and improvements for this project.  The amount of the cash security shall be 10% 
of the total estimated cost of the grading, drainage, retaining wall, landscaping, and best 
management practices item of work with a minimum of $5,000 up to a maximum of 
$50,000, unless a higher amount is deemed necessary by the Director of Engineering 
Services.

2. The developer will be required to pay all development and plan check fees of the City then 
in effect at the time, and in such amounts as may prevail when building permits are issued.



Ordinance No. 2019-12
Exhibit “F”

Page 16 of 16

Page 16 of 16

Miscellaneous Requirements / Surveying and Monumentation

1. All property corners shall be monumented by a person authorized to practice land 
surveying and a Record of Survey Map (or Corner Record if appropriate) shall be recorded.  
If all record property corners of record are found at the completion of the project, they shall 
be flagged in the field for inspection and no corner record or record of survey will be 
required.

Utility Undergrounding and Relocation

1. All new dry utilities to serve the project shall be constructed underground.

2. The developer shall sign a written agreement stating that they have made all such 
arrangements as may be necessary to coordinate and provide utility construction, 
relocation, and undergrounding.  All new utilities shall be constructed underground. 

Fire Department Conditions

1. Project shall comply with mid-rise ordinance.

2. An approved paved all weather access and an adequate water supply shall be provided 
prior to combustibles being brought to the site. 

3. Vertical clearance of 13’6” shall be provided over all access roadways. 

4. Turning radius of 28ft inside shall be provide on access. 

5. Gates/fencing shall not impede fire access. 

6. Provide covers over “panic” buttons in the units, to prevent false alarms. Work with 
Escondido Fire Department on specifications for these covers.



Staff Report - Council

Public Hearing Item No. 11 September 25, 2019 File No. 0440-65

SUBJECT: Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act Hearing for HealthRIGHT 360 Facilities

DEPARTMENT: Community Development Department

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2019-141 approving the issuance o f  one 
or more series of revenue bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $65,000,000 (the 
“Bonds”) by the California Municipal Finance Authority (“CMFA”), of which approximately $6,150,000 
will be allocable to projects in the City of Escondido (“City”) and the remaining amount will be 
allocable to projects in other cities.

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund. The purpose of this agenda item is to facilitate a public 
hearing pursuant to the Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act (“TEFRA”) and adopt a resolution to 
approve the issuance of these revenue bonds by CMFA for this Project. The CMFA will then conduct 
its own process to actually issue the bonds, and investors will look only to HealthRIGHT 360 for 
repayment of the bonds. The City has no financial or legal obligation, nor liability or responsibility for 
this project or the repayment of the bonds issued pursuant to this Resolution No. 2019-141. No 
financial obligations are placed on the City for project financing costs or debt repayment.

PREVIOUS ACTION:

None.

BACKGROUND:

HealthRIGHT 360, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation and an organization described in 
section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, has requested that CMFA participate in the 
issuance of one or more series of revenue bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 
$65,000,000, of which approximately $6,150,000 will be allocable to projects in the City and the 
remaining amount will be allocable to projects in other cities. The projects in the City are the following:

(a) Not more than $3,700,000 will be utilized to refund the outstanding California Statewide 
Communities Development Authority Insured Health Facility Revenue Bonds (North County 
Serenity House, Inc.), 2003 Series A, issued to make a loan to North County Serenity House, 
Inc., a predecessor of HealthRIGHT 360 (“Serenity House”)for the following: (i) refinance the 
cost of purchasing Serenity Center, an approximately 18,800 square foot, 54 room, former 
hotel, located at 1341 North Escondido Boulevard in Escondido, California; (ii) finance the cost 



TEFRA Hearing for HealthRIGHT 360 Facilities 
September 25, 2019
Page 2

of improvements to Serenity Center, including expansion of the kitchen and dining room, 
addition of meeting rooms, offices and a training room, and construction of a children’s play 
area; (iii) finance the cost of purchasing Serenity Too, an approximately 3,100 square foot 
building, currently leased, located at 130 South Fig Street in Escondido, California; and (iv) 
refinance the cost of purchasing six properties located at 123 South Elm Street (Serenity 
House), 950 North Fig Street (Discovery Center), 117 North Elm Street (Child Care Center) 
(since sold), 701 East Second Street (Women and Children) (since sold), 834 East Second 
Street (Visions/1st Phase) (since sold) and 842 East Second Street (Women and Children) 
(since sold), all in Escondido, California.

(b) Not more than $250,000 will be utilized to provide for the prepayment of a HELP II loan 
from the California Health Facilities Financing Authority in 2008 to Serenity House to finance 
an outpatient services facility located at 130 South Fig Street in Escondido, California.

(c) Not more than $2,200,000 will be utilized to finance renovations and equipment to a facility 
providing residential substance use disorder treatment services located at 1341 North 
Escondido Boulevard in Escondido, California. 

In order for the interest on the Bonds to be tax-exempt to investors, Section 147(f) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), requires that an “applicable elected 
representative” of the governmental unit, in the geographic jurisdiction where the site of facilities to be 
financed with the proceeds of the Bonds is located, hold a public hearing on the issuance of 
the Bonds and approve the issuance of the Bonds following such hearing.

The City of Escondido is a member agency of CMFA, and CMFA has the authority to serve as the 
issuer of these tax-exempt revenue bonds, to obtain funds to make loans to finance projects for 
healthcare, education,  cultural facilities and waste-to-energy. The CMFA was created on January 
1, 2004, and is a public entity, separate and apart from its members, so the debts, liabilities and 
obligations of CMFA do not constitute debts, liabilities or obligations of its members. CMFA provides 
that any member may withdraw from the Agreement upon written notice to the Board of Directors of 
the CMFA at any time.

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:

Mike Strong, Assistant Director of Planning
9/18/2019 4:27 p.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution No. 2019-141



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-141

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING 
THE ISSUANCE OF REVENUE BONDS BY THE 
CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL FINANCE AUTHORITY 
IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $65,000,000 FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
FINANCING AND REFINANCING THE 
ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, IMPROVEMENT, 
AND EQUIPPING OF FACILITIES FOR 
HEALTHRIGHT 360, AND CERTAIN OTHER 
MATTERS RELATING THERETO

WHEREAS, HealthRIGHT 360, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation 

and an organization described in section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 

1986 (the “Corporation”), has requested that the California Municipal Finance Authority 

(the “Authority”) participate in the issuance of one or more series of revenue bonds in 

an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $65,000,000 (the “Bonds”); of which 

approximately $6,150,000 will be allocable to projects in the City of Escondido (“City”), 

and the remaining amount will be allocable to projects in other cities. The projects in the 

City are the following:

a. Not more than $3,700,000 will be utilized to refund the outstanding 

California Statewide Communities Development Authority Insured Health 

Facility Revenue Bonds (North County Serenity House, Inc.), 2003 Series 

A, issued to make a loan to North County Serenity House, Inc., a 

predecessor of the Corporation (“Serenity House”) to: (i) refinance the 

cost of purchasing Serenity Center, an approximately 18,800 square foot, 

54 room, former hotel, located at 1341 North Escondido Boulevard in 

Escondido, California; (ii) finance the cost of improvements to Serenity 



Center, including expansion of the kitchen and dining room, addition of 

meeting rooms, offices and a training room, and construction of a 

children’s play area; (iii) finance the cost of purchasing Serenity Too, an 

approximately 3,100 square foot building, currently leased, located at 130 

South Fig Street in Escondido, California; and (iv) refinance the cost of 

purchasing six properties located at 123 South Elm Street (Serenity 

House), 950 North Fig Street (Discovery Center), 117 North Elm Street 

(Child Care Center) (since sold), 701 East Second Street (Women and 

Children) (since sold), 834 East Second Street (Visions/1st Phase) (since 

sold) and 842 East Second Street (Women and Children) (since sold), all 

in Escondido, California,

b. Not more than $250,000 will be utilized to provide for the prepayment of a 

HELP II loan from the California Health Facilities Financing Authority in 

2008 to Serenity House to finance an outpatient services facility located at 

130 South Fig Street in Escondido, California, and

c. Not more than $2,200,000 will be utilized to finance renovations and 

equipment to a facility providing residential substance use disorder 

treatment services located at 1341 North Escondido Boulevard in 

Escondido, California. All or a portion of such amount may be used at 

such facility and all or a portion of such amount may be used in another 

city and none at all in the City.

Projects in Escondido (collectively, the “Project”) are all leased, owned or to be owned 

and operated by the Corporation in connection with the Corporation’s provision of 



residential substance use disorder treatment services; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 

(the “Code”), the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority must be approved by the 

“applicable elected representatives” required to approve the issuance of the Bonds 

under Section 147(f) of the Code; and

WHEREAS, the facilities to be financed and described above are both located 

within the territorial limits of the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is the elected legislative body of the City and is one 

of the “applicable elected representatives” authorized to approve the issuance of the 

Bonds under Section 147(f) of the Code; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has requested that the City Council approve the 

issuance of the Bonds by the Authority in order to satisfy the public approval 

requirement of section 147(f) of the Code and the requirements of Section 4 of the Joint 

Exercise of Powers Agreement Relating to the California Municipal Finance Authority, 

dated as of January 1, 2004 (the “Agreement”), among certain local agencies, including 

the City; and

WHEREAS, September 12, 2019, the City caused a notice to appear in the 

Escondido Times-Advocate, which is a newspaper of general circulation in the City, 

stating that a public hearing with respect to the issuance of the Bonds would be held by 

the City Council on September 25, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the City Council held the public hearing described above on 

September 25, 2019, and an opportunity was provided for persons to comment on the 



issuance and sale of the Bonds in one or more series and the plan of financing of the 

Project; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 147(f) of the Code, the City Council now desires 

to approve the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority as provided in this resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That the City Council hereby approves, solely for the purposes stated in 

this resolution, the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority. It is the purpose and intent 

of the City Council that this resolution constitutes approval of the issuance of the Bonds 

by the Authority, for the purposes of (a) section 147(f) of the Code by the applicable 

elected representative of the governmental unit having jurisdiction over the area in 

which the Project is located, in accordance with said section 147(f), and (b) Section 4 of 

the Agreement.

3. That the adoption of this Resolution shall not obligate the City or any 

department or officer thereof to: (i) provide any financing to acquire or construct the 

Project or any refinancing of the Project; (ii) approve any application or request for, or 

take any other action in connection with, any planning approval, permit, or other action 

necessary for the acquisition, construction, rehabilitation, installation, or operation of the 

Project; (iii) make any contribution or advance any funds whatsoever to OFH, the 

Authority, or to any holders of the Bonds; (iv) take any further action with respect to the 

Authority or its membership therein; or (v) make any investigations, representations, or 

disclosures in connection with the Bonds.



4. That the officers of the City, including by way of example and not as a 

limitation, the City Manager, the Finance Director, and the City Clerk are hereby 

authorized and directed, jointly and severally, to do any and all things and to execute 

and deliver any and all documents which they deem necessary or advisable in order to 

carry out, give effect to and comply with the terms and intent of this resolution and the 

financing transaction approved hereby.

5. That this Resolution shall take effect immediately  upon its adoption.



 

Staff Report - Council 

Current Business Item No. 12  September 25, 2019   File No. 0480-70 
 

SUBJECT:  Housing Related Parks Program Project Update 
 

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department  
Communications and Community Services Department 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Request the City Council receive and file the report and presentation. No action is required at this 
time. 
 

FISCAL ANALYSIS:  
 

The City of Escondido (City) received a Program Year (PY) 2016 Housing Related Parks (HRP) 
Program grant award of $1,207,000 for park and recreation capital investments, including major 
maintenance in areas that are both park deficient and low-moderate income. No matching funds were 
required. 
 
PREVIOUS ACTION: 
 
On February 1, 2017, the City Council authorized an application to the California Department of 
Housing and Community Development (HCD) for PY 2016 HRP Program funds and the acceptance 
of grant funds, if awarded, via Resolution No. 2017-16. 
 
On October 25, 2017, the City Council approved a budget adjustment for park improvement projects 
in conjunction with the award of $1,207,000 in PY 2016 HRP program grant funds. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
HCD administers the HRP Program, which was designed to encourage cities and counties to develop 
new residential housing by rewarding those jurisdictions that approve housing affordable to lower-
income households. The HRP Program was funded through Proposition 1C, the Housing and 
Emergency Shelter Trust Fund Act of 2006, Health and Safety Code Section 53545, subdivision (d) 
and originally established pursuant to Chapter 641, Statutes of 2008 (AB 2494, Caballero), at Chapter 
8 of Part 2 of Division 31 of the Health and Safety Code (commencing with Section 50700) and 
subsequently amended pursuant to Chapter 779, Statutes 2012 (AB 1672, Torres). The HRP 
Program awards funds on a per-bedroom basis for each unit affordable to low-income households in 
order to construct, rehabilitate, or acquire capital assets and/or costs incidental to park and recreation 
facility creation, development, or rehabilitation. PY 2016 was the final year of the HRP Program. 
 
In previous cycles, the City has used HRP funds to: paint and reroof the Santa Fe Train Depot 
Museum in Grape Day Park, install a new play structure in Grape Day Park, perform minor 



Housing Related Parks Program Project Update 
September 25, 2019 
Page 2 

rehabilitation of play equipment at Westside Park and Grove Park, rebuild the Jim Stone Pool 
mechanical room, resurface the Jim Stone and Washington Park Pools, rehabilitate multiple rooms 
and reroof the Park Avenue Community Center (PACC), replace signage and repaint the East Valley 
Community Center (EVCC), and rehabilitate the Oak Hill Activity Center. 
 
In the current cycle, the City used HRP funds for improvements to the Don Anderson Building, EVCC, 
Grape Day Park, Grove Park, Jim Stone Pool, Mathes Center, Felicita Mini Park, Oak Hill Activity 
Center, PACC, Washington Park, and Westside Park.  
 
Don Anderson Building ($19,828.93) 
The Don Anderson Building is the home of many child-centered activities. Funding assisted the 
rehabilitation of current facilities and installation of new amenities, including security features to 
protect children at the facility, electrical improvements, and a new dumpster enclosure. 
 
East Valley Community Center (EVCC) ($19,755.06) 
The EVCC is a full-service recreation center offering classes in health and fitness, dance, personal 
development, and other children's activities. Users expressed hesitation using the facilities after dark 
for safety reasons; funds were used to improve lighting in the parking lot to increase usage as well as 
water efficient landscaping improvements. 
 
Grape Day Park ($112,705.06) 
Grape Day Park, Escondido's oldest park, has been the center for community events and activities 
since the early 1930s. Funding assisted in rehabilitation of current facilities and installation of planned 
amenities. Improvements included: repairing playground equipment; rehabilitating three art pieces 
(Vinehenge; Monuments to Time in the Corridor of Life, Art and Culture; and Blue Granite Shift); 
installing new skirting on the historic Santa Fe Train Depot museum building; converting irrigation 
surrounding historic museum buildings to drip irrigation; removing old landscaping and replacing it 
with drought resistant, appropriately-sized landscaping; and rehabilitating a fountain feature. 
 
Grove Park ($34,732.80) 
Grove Park is one of the City's newest park. With this funding, the City was able to completely 
rehabilitate the park restrooms and improve landscaping, trash facilities, and lighting in the park. 
 
Jim Stone Pool ($125,378.08) 
Jim Stone Pool is a 30-year-old municipal pool. A needs assessment was commissioned for the 
facility in 2014. Program Year 2014 and 2015 funds were used to improve the pool and the 
mechanical room. Program Year 2016 funds were used to rehabilitate the bathhouse, including 
reroofing, improvements to the locker rooms, and structural repairs. 
 
Mathes Center ($60,787.20) 
The Mathes Center is the home of local history research facilities and multiple recreation activities. 
Funding assisted in rehabilitation of current facilities including enhancements to public areas (flooring, 
fixtures, and painting), as well as water efficient landscape improvements. 



Housing Related Parks Program Project Update 
September 25, 2019 
Page 3 

 
Felicita Mini Park ($1,150.76) 
This pocket park received water efficient landscaping improvements. 
 
Oak Hill Activity Center ($2,045.90) 
This park area received water efficient landscaping improvements. 
 
Park Avenue Community Center (PACC) ($89,441.42) 
The PACC is home to the City's senior center, senior focused non-profits, and senior nutrition 
program as well age-neutral activities. Funding assisted in rehabilitation of current facilities and 
installation of new amenities including the installation of a new (20-ton) air conditioning unit and 
improved landscaping surrounding the building and in the private courtyard. 
 
Washington Park ($717,278.31) 
Washington Park is located in one of the City's mostly urbanized areas. Improvements in this park 
were made with both HRP and Park Development funds. Improvements made with HRP funds 
include: 

 Restroom rehabilitation (including conversion to single occupancy units); 

 Pool house rehabilitation (rehabilitation of shade structures, reroofing and painting); 

 Recreation building rehabilitation (brand new air conditioning, reroofing, window replacement, 
flooring replacement, electrical upgrades, restroom upgrades, new appliances, improvements 
to cabinets and countertops, upgraded lighting, interior & exterior paint, replacement of 
damaged exterior doors, and installation of brand new 30'x40' concrete pad); 

 Baseball field upgrades (turf, grading, lighting, backstop, and fencing); 

 Resurfaced basketball courts; and 

 Improved landscaping and park lighting. 
 
Westside Park ($23,907.92) 
Westside Park is located in an area of town heavily affected by crime. Funding was used for a 
complete restroom rehabilitation, installation of new bike racks, and improved lighting. Additionally, a 
new fence feature was installed along the western boundary to improve safety in and accessibility to 
the park. 
 
APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY: 
 

Joseph Goulart, Director of Public Works 

9/18/2019 2:23 p.m. 
 

Joanna Axelrod, Director of Communications and Community Services 

9/18/2019 2:27 p.m. 



 

 
Workshop Item No. 13  September 25, 2019 

 
 

 

COMMUNITY ADVISORY GROUP UPDATE - 

 

 No materials available 



- 1 - 
 

 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 
Updated September 18, 2019 

 

 

 
 

 
 

October 2, 2019 
NO MEETING 

 
 

October 9, 2019 
6:00 p.m. 

PROCLAMATIONS 
 Water Professionals Appreciation Week 

 National Fire Prevention Week  

 Hispanic Heritage Month 

 Certificate of Achievement – Capstone Fire & Safety Management 

PRESENTATION 
 California Center for Arts, Escondido Annual Report 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 Amendment to the Utility Fund Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget Adding Three 

Full-Time Positions to the Wastewater Budget and One Full-Time Position to the 
Water Budget 
(C. McKinney) 
 
The proposed new positions are a Control System Supervisor (Water), two Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Operators (Wastewater), and a Utilities Safety Coordinator (Wastewater). 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 Development Agreement to Allocate Density from the Downtown Density 

Transfer Program and Master and Precise Development Plan Including a Density 
Bonus Application for the 131-Unit Aspire Mixed-Use Development (PHG 19-
0014) 
(B. Martin) 
 
The Aspire is one of two Touchstone projects in the Downtown area (including The Ivy at 2nd/Ivy).  The Aspire 
project includes both a Density Bonus available under state law and a density transfer from the new DTP for 
downtown.  This increases the number of residential units on the site from a base density of 79 allowable units 
to the proposed 131 units.  The Planning Commission voted 6-1 to recommend approval on August 27, 2019. 

  

AGENDA ITEMS AND CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE. 

CHECK WITH THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT 839-4617 



- 2 - 
 

October 9, 2019 
Continued 

PUBLIC HEARINGS Continued  
 Tentative Subdivision Map, Master and Precise Development Plan and 

Development Agreement for a 32-Unit Mixed-use Condominium Project at 555. 
W. Grand Avenue (SUB 18-0008 and PHG 18-0021) 
(B. Martin) 
 
The project includes a request for a one-lot Tentative Subdivision Map, Master and Precise Development Plan, 
and Development Agreement to construct a four-story, 32-unit air-space condominium development with 300 
SF of flex office space and a ground floor parking garage to accommodate 43 parking spaces.  The project 
includes a request for a 29.5 percent reduction in the parking requirement and a 16 percent reduction in the 
open space requirement.  The project also includes the proposed purchase of an adjacent City-owned parcel 
(approximately 2,275 square feet) and vacation of a portion of the adjacent alley to incorporate into the 
project for open space and site access.  A Development Agreement is necessary to pursue a reduction in 
Open Space in accordance with the Downtown Specific Plan. 

CURRENT BUSINESS 
 Year-End Financial Status Report for Fiscal Year 2018/19 and Budget 

Adjustment 
(J. Ryan) 
 
Quarterly financial reports present written financial updates to Council concerning certain funds of the City 
based on the most recent financial information available. These quarterly financial reports include budgetary 
information along with the actual resources received to date and the use of these resources in fulfilling each 
fund's financial plan.  The report provides information for the General Fund, Reidy Creek Golf Course 
Operations, and Water, and Wastewater Funds. 

WORKSHOP 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 



 

1 
 

September 19, 2019 
 
Emergency Operations Center Training 
The City’s Emergency Operations Center team held a training this week in coordination with 
other north County cities.  Whether a wildfire, earthquake or blackout, this team works around 
the clock in the event of an emergency in our community.  The team works to make sure accurate 
information is available to the public and resources are rolled out to deal with the emergency.   

 
 
Housing-Related Parks Grant Updates 
The City recently completed $1.2 million in improvements to more than 11 parks and recreational 
facilities across the City. Improvements include new smart irrigation control systems and 
landscaping to improve water efficiency; dumpster enclosures; security improvements; 
rehabilitating public art pieces and playground structures; renovating restrooms; new roofing, air 
conditioners, flooring, and fixtures; and an almost complete renovation of Washington Park.  
 
Learn more details and see before and after photos during the staff presentation at the 
September 25 City Council meeting. 

             
 
  



 

 2 

Escondido Schools Keep Shining 
 
Escondido High School Ag Program 
Mayor McNamara will be participating as a judge for the upcoming Escondido High School Ag 
Student Scholarship program. Each year, every Ag student is required to complete a Supervised 
Agriculture Experience Project. The Ag Boosters provide the opportunity for these students to 
apply for scholarship money to assist with the cost of the project. One scholarship is provided 
per grade level, as well as 2-3 additional scholarships based on advisor’s selection.  
 
Classical Academy High School  
Classical Academy High School has been recognized as a 2020 Best School by Niche, ranking 
#4 in San Diego and #16 in California. The 2020 Best Charter High Schools ranking is based on 
analysis of key statistics and millions of reviews from students and parents using data from the 
U.S. Department of Education. View more information about the ranking here: 
https://www.niche.com/k12/classical-academy-high-school-escondido-ca/  
 
EUSD Teacher Nominated for Teacher of the Year 
Each year the San Diego County Office of Education honors public school teachers for their 
work and commitment to students. Five teachers were announced as the Teachers of the Year 
on Saturday from a pool of 42 nominees. These five Teachers of the Year will go on to represent 
the region at the state level. Christine Hansen of Quantum Academy, with Escondido Union 
School District was one of the nominees. Congratulations Christine! 
 
For more information about the nominees visit: 
https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/news/education/story/2019-09-07/five-educators-
chosen-as-san-diego-county-teachers-2019 
 
BY THE NUMBERS 
 
Public Works 
 

 

2361

3126

3207

3389

3071

2107

2027

1990

1906

1410

1851

2637

3182

August

June

April

February

December

October

August

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500 4000

Number of Graffiti Tags Removed 2018 - 2019



 

 3 

 
 

 
 
Code Enforcement 
 

 
 

Total Code Cases (Year To Date) 1,931 

 

Voice Mail, 63

Report It!, 
167

Eradication 
Team, 554

Email, 3
Phone, 12

How Graffiti Was Reported - August 2019

Voice Mail Report It! Eradication Team Email Phone

0

100

200

300

400

500

600
NUMBER OF SHOPPING CARTS REMOVED

2018

2019

258 Total Active Cases

50 New Cases 

53 Voluntary 
Compliance

13 Notices 
Issued

57 Cases 
Closed

4 Citations 
Issued



 

 4 

Business Licenses 
 

 
 
Graffiti Restitution 
 

Collected This Week Collected Year to Date 

 $159 $4610.75 

 
Fire 
 

 
 

0

50

100

150

200

250

Monthly New Business License Applications by Year

2019 2018 2017 2016

10

19

249

57

Fires

Vehicle Accidents

EMS Responses

Other

0 50 100 150 200 250 300

Fire Emergency Responses
September 8-14



 

 5 

 
 

Total Emergency Responses (Year To Date)  11,798 

 
Police: 
 

 
 

 

1

38

48

New Business Inspections

Construction Inspections

Annual Inspections

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

Fire Inspections
September 8 - 14

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

Monthly Police Calls for Service by Year 

2016 2017 2018 2019



 

 6 

 
 
 

August Abandoned Vehicle Data 
 

 
  

Emergency, 
32,677, 23%

Non-Emergency, 
84,101, 59%

Outgoing , 26,017, 
18%

2019 YTD Police/Fire Communication Center 
Call Volume 

Emergency

Non-Emergency

Outgoing

453
Warnings issued to 
remove suspected 
abandoned vehicles 
within 72 hours

61
Abandoned vehicles 
impounded (removal 
of vehicles found 
littering city streets)

113
Total abandoned 
vehicles impounded 
(since July 1, 2019)



 

 7 

Building Division: 
*Data reflects activity through September 14 of each year. 
 

 
 

 
 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
  
Incidents: 
 
Attempted Carjacking 
On September 12, at 12:40 a.m., Officer Visconti was on routine patrol in the area of Grand Ave. 
and Grape St. when he was flagged down by a citizen. The citizen told Officer Visconti he was 
sitting in his car in the area of 2nd Ave. and Kalmia St. when he was approached by an unknown 
male.  The male engaged the citizen in a brief conversation before he wrapped his face with a 
bandanna, produced a handgun and asked for the vehicle keys. Believing the suspect was trying 
to take his car, the citizen drove over a curb in order to get away from the suspect.  The citizen 
drove down the street and flagged down Officer Visconti. Officer Visconti broadcasted the 
information about the crime and the description of the suspect over the radio.  A short time later, 
Officer Hamilton located the suspect near the intersection of 6th Ave and Maple St. The suspect 
was positively identified by citizen. Officers located a BB gun in a backpack belonging to the 

64,259,464

23,692,010

0 10,000,000 20,000,000 30,000,000 40,000,000 50,000,000 60,000,000 70,000,000

2018

2019

Permit Values

2,625

865

2,958

1026

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3,000 3,500

Permit Application

Solar Permits

Building Permits

2019 2018



 

 8 

suspect.  The suspect was arrested for attempted carjacking and booked into the Vista Detention 
Facility.    
 
PD Assists with Fire in the Area of I-15 & Hwy 78 
On September 17, at 1:00 p.m., officers responded to Highway 78 and Interstate 15 to assist the 
Escondido Fire Department with a fire along the east shoulder of Interstate 15.  The California 
Highway Patrol and the San Diego County Sheriff’s Department also responded to assist with 
freeway and road closures.   
 
COPPS: 
The COPPS (Community Oriented Policing and Problem-Solving) Unit is dedicated to increasing 
the quality of life for the residents of Escondido through pro-active responses to crime trends, 
quality of life issues, and addressing crime and public nuisance in Grape Day Park and at Maple 
Plaza.      

 2 arrest  

 18 citations 

 18 extra patrols 
 
News: 
 
FBI National Academy Graduates 277th Session 
Congratulations to Lieutenant Berreth for completing the 277th session of the FBI National 
Academy on September 13. The National Academy is internationally known for its academic 
excellence and offers ten weeks of advanced leadership, communication and fitness training. 
Lieutenant Berreth’s class included law enforcement leaders from 50 states and the District of 
Columbia as well as law enforcement representatives from 34 countries, five military 
organizations, and nine federal civilian organizations.  The FBI does not charge law enforcement 
agencies in the United States for tuition, books, equipment, meals, lodging or travel.   
 

 
 
  



 

 9 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
News: 
 
“Code X” Training 
When someone is in need of rescue while underwater, for example when a car is overturned in 
a shallow body of water, this is known as a “Code X” incident. In high risk, low frequency events 
such as this, it is imperative that first responders are well equipped and trained to work efficiently 
together across agencies. Last week, approximately 480 fire and rescue personnel from all of 
the fire agencies throughout North San Diego County, including the Escondido Fire Department, 
participated in training sessions and hands-on drills at Lake Hodges. Instructors from Escondido 
Fire, San Marcos Fire, Oceanside Lifeguards and CAL-FIRE led the sessions that included 
victim search techniques, rescue throw bag techniques and an incident tactic. The training 
culminated with a drill where training manikins that were placed in a partially submerged car and 
the surrounding area had to be rescued by the teams. This collaborative training benefitted the 
fire and rescue agencies and the communities they serve. 

  
 

On Sunday, September 8, at 4:00 a.m., an Escondido Fire engine crew (Captain Arnold, 
Engineer McCauley, and Firefighter Paramedics Johnson and Beveridge) were deployed to the 
Red Bank Fire near Redding, CA on Engine OES 8632. They returned home safely on Thursday, 
September 12.  
 
On Monday, September 9, at 9:14 a.m., Escondido Fire responded to a reported residential 
structure fire. Upon arrival, firefighters found that the residents of a multi-family condominium 
complex had momentarily left a pan of cooking oil unattended. When the resident returned to 
the kitchen there were flames extending from the stovetop, up the side of her refrigerator onto 
the overhead cabinets. The heat melted the items on top of her refrigerator as well as the 
stovetop knobs, making it impossible for her to turn off the burner. After attempting to extinguish 
the fire using water, which spread the burning oil and flames, the resident evacuated the home 
with her child and called 911. Fortunately, in this case the fire consumed all of the cooking oil, 
burned itself out, and did not spread into the rest of the home. Cooking fires are not uncommon 
and are very preventable. Some safety tips: 

 Never leave food unattended on the stove. 

 Do not pour water on an oil or grease fire, this spreads the flames. Instead, use baking 

soda or cover with a metal lid and turn off the burner (if possible) 

 Keep all surfaces near the stovetop clear of other flammable items 

 Periodically check smoke detectors, and replace them as needed 



 

 10 

On Tuesday, September 10, the North San Diego Business Chamber hosted the annual 
“Honoring Our Region's Heroes Awards Luncheon”, which honors the dedicated officers, first 
respondents, and public safety leaders who have gone above and beyond in their duties. Captain 
Bill Atkins and Firefighter Paramedic Ricky Tlapala were nominated for their contributions to the 
CPR program. As certified CPR instructors, Captain Atkins and Firefighter Paramedic Tlapala 
have a passion for empowering people to be ready to save a life by learning CPR and how to 
use an automatic external defibrillator (AED). Because a critical factor in heart attack survival is 
early bystander CPR, Captain Atkins and Firefighter Paramedic Tlapala are dedicated, on and 
off duty, to providing CPR classes to City employees, businesses, and community groups. By 
promoting the value of learning CPR and investing the time teaching classes, their efforts have 
helped hundreds of people learn CPR to be prepared to save the life of a loved one or community 
member. In addition, Firefighter Paramedic Tlapala coordinates an annual program to provide 
free blood pressure screen checks at various locations throughout Escondido. The dedication of 
Captain Atkins and Firefighter/Paramedic Tlapala has truly impacted the safety of our 
community. 
 

   
 
On Tuesday, September 11 Heritage Elementary held their annual “Patriots” assembly to honor 
those who put themselves on the line every day to protect others. In attendance were students, 
teachers, staff, and family members who are active military, police and fire. Presentations were 
given by Escondido Police Officer Henry Quach and Fire Prevention Specialist Sandra Bauer. 
The American Flag was honored and a special song presentation was given by the 3rd grade 
students and music teacher. 
 

 
 



 

 11 

On Saturday, September 14 at 1:05 p.m., the Escondido Fire Department was dispatched to a 
reported vegetation fire at the northbound I-15 and Highway 78 interchange. The first arriving 
unit reported one acre of brush burning at a fast rate of spread in medium to heavy fuels. Due 
to the high temperature, water needs and fire intensity, a second alarm and five closest engines 
were requested and dispatched. California Highway Patrol, Escondido Police and San Diego 
Sheriff units assisted with the closure of two northbound lanes on the I-15 and the full closure of 
Highway 78 on ramps to southbound and northbound I-15 for several hours to ensure the safety 
of fire crews that were working along the freeway. The fire was contained to approximately 2 
acres within 50 minutes and fire crews worked for several hours mopping up all hot spots. The 
cause of the fire is under investigation. No structures were damaged and there were no injuries 
to firefighters or civilians. 

 
 
On Saturday, September 14 at 5:29 p.m., the Escondido Fire Department was dispatched to a 
reported vegetation fire at Harmony Grove Road and Hale Avenue. The first arriving engine 
reported approximately one half acre of heavy fuels burning at a slow rate of spread. Due to the 
location in the Escondido Creek and the potential for the fire to spread, a second alarm was 
requested and dispatched. Escondido Police assisted with the closure of Harmony Grove Road 
between Hale Avenue and Andreasen Street. The fire was contained within 25 minutes. There 
were no injuries to civilians or firefighters. The cause of the fire is under investigation. 

 
 
VOLUNTEER PROGRAM 
 
If you would like to get involved and volunteer in Escondido, visit: 
https://www.escondido.org/volunteer-intern-program.aspx 
 



 

 12 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
Major Projects Update 
 
The following major projects are being reviewed and coordinated by Planning, Engineering, Fire, 
Building and Utilities.  The list of projects below encompasses recent project updates and/or 
milestones from last week.   
 
Commercial / Office: 
 
1. Escondido Research and Technology Center (ERTC) – West (Developer: James McCann) 

2181 Citracado Parkway – A plan for a new two-story, 57,000 SF, 52-bed Palomar 
Rehabilitation Institute (PRI) was submitted as a Plot Plan on July 31, 2017. The Plot Plan 
approval letter was issued on February 7, 2018.  An MOU explaining the phasing and proposed 
parking improvements for the hospital has been signed by all parties and was completed on 
July 15, 2019.  The state OSHPD will issue building permits and oversee construction 
inspections.  Site preparation and grading activities for the PRI building has commenced.  A 
grading plan for parking on Parcel 1 has been approved by Engineering and a permit is ready 
to be issued. 

 
2. Escondido Research and Technology Center (ERTC) – East (Developer: James McCann) 

2130 Citracado Parkway – Building plans for a 71,656 SF medical office building in this 
approved medical complex area across from Palomar Hospital were submitted into plan check 
on October 9, 2018.  A subsequent plan submittal increased the size of the building to 
approximately 80,000 SF, which exceeds the specific plan allowance for that planning area.  A 
plot plan application for the modified building design has been submitted by the applicant.  A 
fee deferral agreement has been signed by all parties in anticipation of building permit 
issuance.  A demolition permit was issued on September 16, 2019 of the residential structure. 

 
Industrial 

 
1. Escondido Self-Storage Facility (Developer: Brandywine Homes, Inc.) 2319 Cranston Dr. – 

Updated building plans were resubmitted into plan check on July 24, 2018.  Esgil, Engineering 
and Fire approved the plans several months ago.  Planning met with the architect on July 18, 
2019, to finalize design for the screening of rooftop mechanical equipment and then approved 
the building plans the same day.  The grading permit has been approved and grading has 
commenced on the site.  Issuance of the building permit is imminent. 

 
2. Citracado Business Park (Developer: Dentt Properties) 2207 Harmony Grove Road – A 

proposed specific plan for two industrial warehouse/office buildings (145,930 SF and 125,930 
SF) with the buildings to be separated by the future extension of Citracado Parkway.  The 
application was submitted on August 14, 2018.  All departments have completed their initial 
review and comments were sent to the applicant on September 17, 2018.  SDG&E also has 
provided comments regarding the high voltage power lines that traverse the site.  The 
applicant’s traffic consultant submitted revised methodology and distribution to Engineering on 
October 19, 2018.  A meeting with the applicant to review the various departmental comments 
occurred on October 29, 2018.  The developer team met with several departments on April 4, 
2019, primarily to discuss traffic-related issues.  Planning and Building are awaiting submittal 
of a demo permit for the two abandoned residences on the site.  A revised Traffic Impact 
Analysis was submitted to Engineering on August 8, 2019.  The developer and consultant team 
met with Engineering and Planning on August 20, 2019, to discuss proposed traffic mitigation 



 

 13 

measures.  Caltrans has recently responded favorably to the Engineering Division’s suggestion 
of adaptive signal timing as feasible mitigation for the Nordahl/Hwy 78 area. 
 

City Projects 
 
1. Membrane-Filtration Reverse Osmosis (Developer: City of Escondido Utilities Department) SE 

corner Ash/Washington – On January 16, 2019, the City Council expressed continued support 
for the MFRO, but directed staff to investigate moving the facility from Ash/Washington to 
another location.  A city-owned property located at 901 W. Washington Avenue has been 
selected as the new MFRO site.  An on-site meeting with the selected design-build and 
environmental contractors occurred on January 28, 2019.  Preliminary geotechnical and survey 
work is underway.  Helix Environmental Planning will be preparing the draft environmental 
documents.  A Design Build Agreement was approved by the City Council on April 3, 2019.  
The Design Build Agreement with Filanc+BC Joint Venture provides for design and pre-
construction services.  The Design Build team met with Utilities and Planning on May 15, 2019 
and June 5, 2019 to discuss design and timeline issues.  A revised draft site plan was submitted 
to Planning on July 10, 2019.  A draft environmental review document is in preparation.  Tribal 
consultation letters (i.e. AB 52 notification) to interested tribal groups were sent August 2, 2019.  
City staff met with the Design Build team to review site plan comments on August 14, 2019, 
and again on September 3, 2019.  A storm drain issue identified on the site is currently being 
investigated by staff.  The design team is working to put the Plot Plan application together for 
review by all departments.  

 
2. Lake Wohlford Replacement Dam (Developer: City of Escondido Utilities Department) – A 

Draft EIR was prepared and issued for a 45-day public review period that began on October 4, 
2016 and closed on November 17, 2016.  A field visit with staff from the state and federal 
wildlife agencies took place on May 11, 2017, to review biological mitigation requirements 
including an agency request for full mitigation for emergent vegetation at the eastern end of 
the lake that came into existence since the lake level was reduced for safety reasons.  Staff 
sent a follow-up letter to the wildlife agencies on June 29, 2017, seeking clarification on the 
proposed biological mitigation requirements. Additional information has been compiled and 
analyzed by the City’s biological consultants based on recent conversations with the agencies.  
The biological consultant and staff met with the wildlife agencies on November 28, 2018 to 
discuss a modified approach to fulfilling mitigation requirements.  Written information 
summarizing what was discussed at the meeting was transmitted to the agencies on December 
4, 2018.  City staff concluded a revised assessment of potential biological impacts and met 
with the agencies to present the findings.  Additional information requested by the agencies 
was prepared and submitted as requested.  The agencies responded they do not concur with 
the alternative mitigation proposal and the issue remains unresolved. 

 
Residential 

 
1. Harvest Hills (aka Safari Highlands Ranch) (Developer: Jeb Hall, Concordia Homes) 550 lots 

east of Rancho San Pasqual – A Notice of Availability for the Draft EIR was issued on October 
16, 2017 for public review and comment. The comment period ended on January 2, 2018. 
Staff transmitted all the comment letters and emails to the Draft EIR consultant for review 
and to prepare a response to each comment.  The Draft EIR and appendices have been 
posted on the City’s website at the following link:   

 
https://www.escondido.org/safari-highlands-ranch-specific-plan.aspx 
 



 

 14 

The responses to comments have generated related revisions to the project design. The 
applicant’s engineer submitted a revised tentative map on October 26, 2018.  Generally, the 
amount of grading and the area of disturbance has decreased, while the overall number of 550 
residential lots has remained the same.  Engineering met with the project engineer and 
applicant on January 31, 2019, to discuss their comments on the revised tentative map.  The 
revised tentative map and exhibits have been posted on-line at the link above.  The applicant 
met with Traffic Engineering during the week of February 25th to discuss off-site improvements.  
Staff, applicant and biological consultant met with the wildlife agencies on April 23, 2019, to 
discuss the revisions to the project design mentioned above.  The applicant and staff met on 
June 20, 2019, to refine the list of outstanding issues remaining to be resolved prior to 
advancing to public hearings for the project.  The applicant met with Traffic Engineering staff 
on August 15, 2019, and agreement was reached on several of the off-site mitigation locations. 
Additional information regarding biological resources was submitted on August 29, 2019. 
 

2. 18 lots at 701 San Pasqual Valley Rd (Developer: Bob Stewart) – Staff comments on the 
revised tentative map were issued the last week of July 2017.  The applicant has occasionally 
engaged in discussions with various departments since that time, but has declined a staff offer 
to schedule a comprehensive meeting with all city departments.  Another set of revised plans 
were submitted the week of November 26, 2018.  Planning, Engineering and Utilities 
comments on the revised plans were issued on February 25, 2019.  In response to a follow-up 
discussion with the applicant, Planning provided additional comments on April 29, 2019.  
Additional discussions between the applicant and the City to resolve project issues occurred 
on June 20, 2019. 

 
3. The Villages at Escondido Country Club (Developer: Jason Han, New Urban West, Inc.) 380 

residences – The City Council voted 3-2 to approve the project on November 15, 2017. The 
applicant submitted rough grading plans, drainage improvement plans and utility relocation 
plans for all three villages on May 7, 2018.  Most of the plans are in third or fourth plan check.  
Engineering comments were returned on March 12, 2019; and the developer team met with 
Engineering on April 1, 2019, to discuss the comments.  The homebuilder met with Building, 
Engineering and Planning on April 24, 2019 to discuss the building plan check and precise 
grading plan processes.  A revised Certified Tentative Map for substantial conformance review 
was submitted on May 23, 2019 and includes a proposal to relocate approximately 10 
residential lots within the development.  These changes in Villages 2 and 3 resulted from 
comments provided by the Regional Water Quality Control Board and that agency now has 
issued a permit.  The revised Certified Tentative Map was approved on September 3, 2019.  A 
resubmittal of Village 1 plans including grading, storm drain and the specific alignment plan for 
Country Club Lane was received on June 18, 2019, and has been approved by Fire.  
Engineering and Planning comments were sent to the applicant the week of July 15, 2019.  
The applicant provided another resubmittal of Village 1 plans the last week of July.  A bond 
and fee letter for Village 1 has been issued by Engineering and bonds/fees were posted by 
Lennar on September 10, 2019.  A rough grading permit was issued on September 16, 2019. 

 
The approved tentative subdivision map, Final EIR and appendices, Specific Plan and other 
related information can be accessed on the City’s website at the following link:  

 
https://www.escondido.org/ecc.aspx 

 
  



 

 15 

4. North Avenue Estates (Developer: Casey Johnson) 34 lots at North Ave./Conway Dr. –The 
City Council approved the project on January 10, 2018.  LAFCO approved the annexation 
application on October 1, 2018, and the annexation has recorded.  The new homebuilder, 
Taylor Morrison Homes submitted a Precise Development Plan to Planning on December 14, 
2018.  Grading plans, final map and improvement plans were submitted for review on 
December 7, 2018.  Engineering met with the applicant’s engineer on January 31, 2019 to 
discuss drainage issues.  A revised Certified TM was approved on March 14, 2019.  Final 
engineering plans were resubmitted on March 21, 2019.  The project engineer, Engineering 
and County Water Authority staff met on April 2, 2019, to discuss the street and utility crossings 
over the CWA aqueduct.  The applicant’s engineer submitted a revised design to address the 
CWA issues the week of June 3rd.  Building plans for four model homes were submitted into 
plan check on July 15, 2019, and comments were returned by Planning.  Revised grading and 
landscape plans and final map were submitted on July 30, 2019.  The Precise Development 
Plan was approved by the Planning Commission on August 13, 2019.  The project engineer 
has notified Engineering that revised plans will be submitted soon. 

 
5. Aspire (131 apartment units on Municipal Lot 1) (Developer: Addison Garza, Touchstone 

Communities) – The proposal consists of a six-story mixed-use development across from City 
Hall on Parking Lot 1. The project was initially submitted for entitlement processing for a 106-
unit development on June 23, 2017.  On March 14, 2019, the applicant submitted a revised 
project under state and city density bonus law that increases the number of dwelling units in 
return for the provision of 11 Very Low Income housing units.  The increased density (now 131 
units) has been accommodated by eliminating all 3-bedroom units to allow additional studio, 
one- and two-bedroom units within the same building structure.  The project includes 4,289 
square feet of commercial space on the ground floor, primarily fronting on Maple Street Plaza.  
A purchase and sale agreement for the project site (Parking Lot 1) was approved by the City 
Council on September 19, 2018.  Concerns regarding parking have been expressed; and the 
applicant’s parking consultant submitted a parking study on January 17, 2019.  A proposed 
Development Agreement was submitted for staff review on April 24, 2019.  Engineering 
completed final review of the traffic study and storm water plans, asking for modifications to 
complete the reports.  The Planning Commission voted 6-1 to recommend approval of the 
project on August 27, 2019.  A City Council hearing has been scheduled for October 9, 2019. 

 
6. Quince Street Senior Housing (Developer: Matt Jumper, 220 Quince, L.P.) 145 apartment units 

at 220 N. Quince St. – The five-story affordable senior housing apartment project was 
submitted on November 21, 2017.  The applicant submitted revised plans on May 3, 2019.  
Public review of the Draft Mitigated Negative Declaration resulted in two comment letters.  A 
Final MND was prepared and included in the staff report, which was presented to the Planning 
Commission.  The project was reviewed by the Planning Commission on August 13, 2019 and 
the commission unanimously supported the project.  The City Council will consider approving 
the project at a public hearing on September 25, 2019. 

 
7. Sager Ranch/Daley Ranch Resort Specific Plan (Developer: J. Whalen Associates, Inc., Sager 

Ranch Partners) 203 housing units and 225-room resort hotel on 1,783-acres, just north and 
east of Daley Ranch – This proposed residential and resort hotel annexation and specific plan 
project was received on March 2, 2018. The project submittal has been deemed incomplete 
and a letter from staff requesting additional project related information was sent to the applicant 
on April 4, 2018. Requested information includes annexation exhibits, proposed general plan 
amendment text, a proposed Transfer of Development Rights Program, environmental initial 
study, and a fiscal impact analysis. Planning met with the applicant on May 17, 2018 to discuss 
items listed in the letter. A follow-up meeting to discuss engineering issues occurred on June 



 

 16 

27, 2018. The applicant met with Escondido Fire and Valley Center Fire on August 1, 2018 to 
discuss fire protection issues. Significant fire-related issues to be addressed include the 
steepness of the project entry road, secondary emergency access and Fire Department 
response times.  A follow-up meeting with the applicant to discuss these issues occurred on 
October 11, 2018.  On April 5, 2019, the applicant provided a letter response with alternative 
compliance proposals to address some of the fire-related issues.  On May 14, 2019 the 
applicant provided additional fire-related information requested by Fire and Planning.  Fire, 
Planning, and Engineering staff met with the applicant team on May 29, 2019 to discuss the 
fire-related information.  A financial feasibility study for the proposed resort was submitted on 
July 8, 2019. 

 
 A project webpage containing draft documents and plans has been added to the Planning 

Division’s website at the following link:  
 
 Sager Ranch Resort Specific Plan - City of Escondido 
 
8. Nutmeg Condo General Plan Amendment (Developer: Jim Simmons, CCI) 137 townhome 

condo units on 7.7 acres on both sides of Nutmeg between I-15 and Centre City Parkway – 
This proposed multi-family residential development includes a GPA from Office to Urban III (up 
to 18 du/acre) as well as a specific alignment plan for Nutmeg and a vacation of approximately 
one acre of public right-of-way for use in the project. The project application was received on 
June 15, 2018. Initial comments from Planning, Fire, Engineering, Utilities and Traffic 
Engineering were provided to the applicant on July 13, 2018.  A Notice of Availability for the 
Draft EIR was issued May 7, 2019, announcing a 45-day public review period from May 10, 
2019 to June 24, 2019.  The USFWS has requested an additional time to comment.  Caltrans 
expressed a concern for having encroachment into their right of way.  Project revisions may 
be necessary to accommodate grading and fuel modification zone planning on-site.  The 
applicant met with Planning and Engineering on August 14, 2019 to discuss potential changes 
to the project.  Project changes could include splitting the project into northern and southern 
pieces with the Final EIR and northern piece progressing to public hearing while a redesign 
effort is undertaken on the southern piece to address Caltrans issues. 

 
9. Oak Creek (Builder: KB Homes) 65 single-family residential lots on approximately 44 acres at 

Felicita Road and Hamilton Lane – The Zoning Administrator approved a modification to the 
Precise Development Plan to revise the architecture on October 25, 2018.  On-site remediation 
of hazardous materials has been completed and DTSC has issued a clearance letter.  On-site 
improvement plans have been approved.  The rough grading permit was issued on April 18, 
2019, and grading has commenced on the site.  The Precise Grading Plan for the model homes 
has been approved and building permits for two model homes were issued the week of July 8.  
A Model Home Permit was approved by Planning on July 10, 2019, for the sales office and 
temporary improvements.  A second plan check submittal for the final map was received the 
week of May 13.  Second plan check for the off-site improvement plans was received on June 
3, 2019.  Engineering comments have been returned and Engineering has approved all 
improvements, excepting those provided for on Felicita, which additional changes are 
expected.  County of San Diego staff from the Parks and Public Works Divisions have met with 
the applicant to discuss ways to evaluate floodplain and drainage issues occurring at the 
Felicita Park.  A follow up meeting with Engineering occurred on August 28, 2019.  In response 
the applicant submitted a hydraulics study to DPW on September 9, 2019. 

 
  



 

 17 

10. 555 West Grand Mixed-Use Building (Developer: Ed McCoy) 32 condo units in three floors 
over a parking garage – This 32-unit mixed-use development with 610 SF of office/flex space 
was submitted as a planned development application on August 27, 2018.  The project is 
seeking a reduction in parking and open space standards.  Initial multi-department comments 
were sent to the applicant on September 26, 2018.  The applicant met with Fire, Engineering, 
Planning and Utilities staff on October 16, 2018 to discuss the staff comments.  It is anticipated 
that water lines will need to be upsized on Quince and Grand.  The applicant submitted a 
parking study on May 13, 2019, to support the proposed reduction in the number of parking 
spaces.  The applicant met with Engineering and Planning staff on May 22, 2019 to discuss 
the driveway location and Development Agreement terms.  Fire has approved the proposed 
hydrant locations and revised plans are expected soon.  Project plans were resubmitted to the 
City on June 24, 2019.  The project was recommended for approval by the Planning 
Commission on September 10, 2019. 

 
11. Villa Portofino (Developer: Chris Post, ATC Design Group) 15 apartment units in a three-story 

building with parking garage at 2690 S. Escondido Blvd. – This 15-unit multi-family residential 
project on a 0.52-acre parcel between S. Escondido Blvd and Cranston Drive was submitted 
as a Plot Plan application on November 28, 2018.  A comment letter was issued on December 
20, 2018.  Comments included the need to evaluate the building construction type for fire 
purposes and consider the design standards in the South Centre City Specific Plan.  Planning, 
Fire and Engineering met with the applicant on June 10, 2019, to discuss revisions to the plans 
intended to address the previous comments.  Utilities has requested a sewer study to assess 
potential impacts to the nearby Lift Station 2.  A revised project design was routed to all 
departments on August 23, 2019.  A City Council hearing is anticipated for late October or 
early November. 

 
12. Palomar Heights (Developer: Ninia Hammond, Integral Communities) Demolition and 

redevelopment of the old Palomar Hospital site with 510 multi-family units – A proposed 
Tentative Map, Planned Development, Specific Plan Amendment and EIR to redevelop the 
13.8-acre former hospital site.  Up to 5,500 square feet of recreation or commercial space 
could be included.  A partial project application was submitted on December 24, 2018.  
Engineering and Planning comments on the initial project submittal were sent to the applicant 
on February 12, 2019.  A contract for a developer-funded planning consultant to work on this 
project as an extension of Planning staff was approved by the City Council on February 13, 
2019. Planning Engineering and Fire met with the applicant team on February 27, 2019 and 
again on April 24, 2019 to go through proposed revisions to the site plan and building designs.  
The applicant revised the plans to increase the unit count from 424 units to 510 units.  A Notice 
of Preparation (NOP) for the Draft EIR was issued on May 3, 2019 and a public scoping 
meeting took place on May 20, 2019.  The public comment period for the NOP closed on June 
3, 2019, and approximately 28 comment letters and written forms from the scoping meeting 
were received.  Resubmittal of the redesign package was filed on June 25, 2019.  Design and 
site plan information was submitted on July 1, 2019 and a screen check EIR was submitted on 
July 29, 2019.  City comments on the design package was transmitted on August 2, 2019.  
Comments on the screen check EIR were issued on August 27, 2019.  It is anticipated that the 
draft EIR will be released for public review and comment in mid to late fall.  Revised project 
plans were submitted to Planning on September 11, 2019.  A Planning Commission work 
session focused on project design and architecture has tentatively been scheduled for October 
8, 2019.   

 
The development proposal and other related information can be accessed on the City’s website 
at the following link: https://www.escondido.org/palomarheights.aspx 



 

 18 

13. Henry Ranch (Builder: Joe Martin, Trumark Homes) An approved development of 97 single-
family residential homes on 74.35 acres at the eastern terminus of Lincoln Avenue – The Tract 
920 development proposal was originally approved in 2007 and an extension of the associated 
Development Agreement was approved in 2016.  Final Map, grading plans and improvement 
plans were submitted for initial review on February 12, 2019.  A demolition permit for the former 
packinghouse structures was submitted on February 14, 2019 and only needs utility shutoff 
before work starts.  Architectural plans were submitted for Design Review on February 15, 
2019, and comments were issued on March 14, 2019.  A vegetation removal permit was issued 
on March 21, 2019.  The second submittal of final engineering was received on April 22, 2019, 
and several rounds of comments have been issued.  The project applicant is still working on 
the improvement plans, particularly water service issues.  Fire Department staff met with the 
applicant on August 2, 2019 to review a plan to privatize hydrant installation and maintenance. 

 
14. Del Prado (Developer: Kerry Garza, Touchstone Communities) – An approved 113-unit 

townhome-style Planned Development located at the southwestern corner of Brotherton Road 
and the Centre City Parkway frontage road -  The Del Prado project was approved by the City 
Council in May of 2016.  The project site is separated into two parcels by an SDGE parcel.  
Engineering and Planning are reviewing third plan check for final map, grading and 
improvement plans for Del Prado South.  Del Prado North is in second plan check for the same 
plans.  No building plans have been submitted into plan check.  Planning has provided 
comments for the North landscape plans.  The applicant is attempting to resolve sewer issues 
with the Regional Water Quality Control Board because sewer lines are proposed to cross over 
water lines.  Utilities is awaiting resubmittal of a full set of plans and met with the applicant on 
August 1 to review potential redesign options.  Planning approved the South landscape plan.   

 
15. Pine Street Apartments (Developer: Paul Mayer, Pemcor) A five-story, 198-unit apartment 

complex with structured parking on 2.31 acres – A proposed planned development and 
Specific Plan Amendment for a new residential development on Third Avenue between Quince 
Street and Pine Street in the Mercado District of the Downtown Specific Plan.  The 
development proposal was submitted for initial review on August 2, 2019.  Plans have been 
distributed to all departments.  The applicant recently notified staff that the project economics 
will require a significant redesign and that revised plans will be forthcoming. 

 
16. Accessory Dwelling Units – Planning staff is currently working on nine (9) applications for 

accessory dwelling units.  Twenty-two (22) accessory dwelling units have been approved so 
far this year.  Twenty-four (24) accessory dwelling units were approved in 2018.  Three (3) 
accessory dwelling units were approved in 2017. 

 
Building Division: 
 
1. The Building Division issued 91 permits (including 41 solar photovoltaic) with a total valuation 

of $911,817 including a two single family dwellings with a combined value of $517,373. 
 

2. Our building inspectors responded to 174 inspection requests. 188 customers visited the 
Building counter during the week.   

 
3. No change from the previous. The Latitude 2 apartment project at 650 Center City Pkwy has 

received Building final approvals and Temporary Certificates of Occupancy for buildings 1-4. 
Field Engineering have released Building 6 for TCO. The Building Division has granted a 
Temporary Certificate of Occupancy, with minor restrictions and is awaiting a request for 



 

 19 

Final inspection of Bldg. 6. Final Inspection pending the receipt of all final reports from the 
contractor. 

 
4. No change from the previous.  The new two story church sanctuary building at 1864 N. 

Broadway is progressing toward final inspection.   Finish work continues to proceed and may 
take several weeks to complete. A Final Inspection will be performed once work is completed 
and requested by the contractor. 

 
5. No Change from the previous. The new 105 room hotel at 200 La Terraza is currently 

operating on a Temporary Certificate of Occupancy, pending Engineering final approval.  
Work is on-going to complete Engineering conditions, however, additional time is needed; 
Since their current TCO expires today they will be granted an additional 30-day extension, 
which will expire October 16th, 2019. 

 
6. No Change from the previous. The new five-story storage building at 852 Metcalf St has 

completed rough framing and drywall installation is on-going.  Rough electrical inspection 
has been approved.  A temporary electrical service meter has been approved and released- 
this meter is for construction purposes only. The installation of exterior wall panels is on-
going. Roof framing is complete and roof sheathing has been approved. The hold on 
inspections has been lifted by the Building Inspection staff, with the condition that no work 
is to be performed in the Bio-retention basin.  Plans to address the corrective measures for 
the Bio-retention basin are currently under review by Engineering. 

 
7.  The new Gateway Grand 126-unit apartment project at 700 W. Grand Ave. has received 

approval of floor sheathing on the 5th floor patio areas and loft and 3rd floor drywall approval 
of plumbing walls of Building B. 3rd floor sheathing for Building A, and 1st & 2nd floor exterior 
shear has been approved.  Building B has had additional portions approved top out plumbing 
inspection. Staff met with the Architect at the Building Division to discuss proposed plan 
revisions.  Other on-site work is proceeding as usual. 

 
8.  No change from the previous. The new apartments at 917 W Lincoln Ave, consisting of 3 

buildings and 9 total units, has received partial approval of drywall. Drywall installation is 
complete.  Finish work is on-going and will take several weeks to complete.  Staff is awaiting 
a request for final inspection.  

 
9.  No change from the previous. The new 2 story 20,000 sf office building for Superior Ready 

Mix on 1564 W Mission has received underground plumbing and foundation inspection 
approvals. Remaining Tilt up panels have been lifted into place. Roof framing construction 
is underway and once compete, staff will perform required inspections. Roof sheathing and 
2nd floor pan deck has been approved. 

 
10. KB Homes, located at the Oak Creek development on Daisy Field Glen has completed the 

model home construction phase of the development.  Plan revisions have been submitted 
and are currently under review.  Staff has been informed by KB’s permit coordinator that 
requests for permit issuance of the first phase could be occurring within the next 2 to 3 
weeks. The number of homes in the first phase could total between 12-16 dwellings. 
Construction of the Guard shack is currently underway-so far framing, roof sheathing, 
drywall and exterior lath have been approved.  

 
  



 

 20 

11. The Starbucks “shell” building located at 350 W Valley Pkwy has received underground and 
foundation inspection. Slab inspection has been approved. The tenant improvement plans 
have been approved and permit issuance is anticipated within the next few days. Framing 
of the building is currently in progress. 

 
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
 
Capital Improvements: 
 
1. Transit Center Pedestrian Bridge Project –  On the north end of the project the contractor is 

shaping the new channel. Pot holing of existing utilities will be on going along West Valley 
Parkway and Grand Avenue.  Sixty-four (64) working days remain on the contract. 

2. Storm Drain Pipe Lining and Rehabilitation Project Phase1 – The project consists of 14 work 
zones and 3 Bid Alternate locations for the videoing, grouting, repairing, and lining of existing 
corrugated metal pipes (CMP) within the City’s inventory. Pipe installation is being performed 
along Cranston Drive south of Citracado Parkway. Three (3) days remain in the contract. 

3. El Norte Parkway Improvements – The project includes widening of El Norte Parkway at the 
flood control channel by the installation of a new bridge, construction of new median islands 
from Valley Parkway to Washington Avenue, landscaping and drip irrigation system, a 
bike/pedestrian signal at the flood control channel, along with roadway resurfacing.  Pot 
holing of existing utilities and vibration monitoring is scheduled for this week during the 
channel wall demolition.  One-hundred and eight (108) working days remaining for project 
completion. Submittals of are continuing to be processed by staff.  

 Private Development: 
 

1. Tract 932 - Canyon Grove Shea Homes Community –  The developer is set to begin removing 
damaged concrete improvements throughout the project. This work will be ongoing for the 
next two weeks. 

2. Latitude II Condominiums: Washington Avenue @ Centre City Parkway –  No changes from 
that reported last week: The project will be working on punch list items over the next reporting 
period. 

3. Tract 934 – Is a 5 lot subdivision located at 1207 Gamble Street. Offsite & onsite concrete 
improvements were constructed on Wednesday of this week.    

4. 1221 Gamble Street – Is a 3 lot subdivision located adjacent to Tract 934. Installation of the 
required storm water elements is the first order of work.   

5. Veterans Village – No changes from that reported last week. It was determined after reporting 
on the project status last week that the Storm Water Certification has not been received. The 
bonds and securities will be placed on hold until this documentation is received.     

6. KB Homes Oak Creek Project – The construction of the new storm drain began this week. 
The contractor is using pre-formed box units that will accelerate the time needed to 
completed the installation. Hamilton lane will be closed to through traffic during this 
construction phase. A detour route is in place and the contractor was required to notify 
residents prior to the closure of the roadway. 



 

 21 

7. ATT Facility Tank Relocation – The paving restoration of Parking Lot 4 has been completed. 
The contractor will slurry this entire section of Parking Lot 4 and strip the parking stalls prior 
to final. The remaining concrete has been cancelled until the correct stamp is provided. 

8. North American Self Storage – The project is located at 852 Metcalf Street. The water line 
trench is being permanently patched this week along Mission Avenue and Metcalf Street.    

9. Pradera by Lennar –  The construction of 779’ of 12” water main along Conway Drive, 
between Lehner Drive and Rincon Avenue has begun. 200 feet of the new water main along 
Conway Drive has been laid.  

10. Henry Ranch Tract 920 - The project is located at the intersection of El Norte Parkway/Lincoln 
Avenue. The project currently has a Demo/Grading permit for clearing vegetation/trees and 
structures associated with the Henry Avocado Packing Plant that was located on the site. 
Installation of required erosion control measures is ongoing this week. 

11. The Villages – Village 1 Grading plans have been approved. The Village is between Country 
Club Drive to the South, David Drive to the East and Golden Circle Drive to the North. 111 
homes are to be constructed in the first Village. A preconstruction meeting has not yet been 
requested.    

 
GRANT APPLICATIONS 
 
None this week. 
 

### 


	CONSENT CALENDAR
	1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/RRB)
	2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council)
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None Scheduled
	4. FISCAL YEAR 2019 REGIONAL REALIGNMENT RESPONSE GRANT AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT -
	Budget Adjustment

	5. FISCAL YEAR 2019-20 STATE OF CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY SELECTIVE TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM (STEP) GRANT AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT -
	Budget Adjustment

	6. FISCAL YEAR 2019-20 STATE OF CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF TRAFFIC PEDESTRIAN AND BICYCLE SAFETY PROGRAM GRANT AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT -
	Budget Adjustment

	7. RUBBERIZED PAVEMENT GRANT PROGRAM APPLICATION -
	R2019-140 Rubberized Pavement Grant.pdf (1 page)

	8. BID AWARD FOR THE PURCHASE OF LIVE RAINBOW TROUT -
	R2019-137 Stocking Live Rainbow Trout.pdf (2 pages)


	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	9. APPEAL OF PLANNING COMMISSION DECISION TO APPROVE A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITY FOR PTI-T-MOBILE (PHG 18-0016)
	ATTACHMENT 1.pdf (2 pages)
	ATTACHMENT 2.pdf (77 pages)
	ATTACHMENT 3.pdf (3 pages)
	ATTACHMENT 4.pdf (14 pages)
	ATTACHMENT 5.pdf (195 pages)
	ATTACHMENT 6.pdf (5 pages)
	ATTACHMENT 7 .docx (4 pages)
	R2019-148.docx (3 pages)
	R2019-148 Exhibit A Legal Description.docx (1 page)
	R2019-148 Exhibit B.docx (2 pages)
	R2019-148 Exhibit C Conditions.docx (3 pages)
	R2019-148 Exhibit D.docx (1 page)
	R2019-149.docx (3 pages)
	R2019-149 Exhibit A.docx (3 pages)
	R2019-149 Exhibit B.docx (1 page)

	10. DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT AND MASTER AND PRECISE DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE QUINCE STREET SENIOR HOUSING PROJECT (PHG 17-0028) -
	 Attachment 1 Planning Commission Staff Report.docx (1 page)
	 Attachment 2 Planning Commission Minutes.pdf (5 pages)
	O2019-12 - PHG17-0028 Quince Street Senior Housing.docx (4 pages)
	O2019-12 EXHIBIT A - Legal Description.pdf (2 pages)
	O2019-12 EXHIBIT B - SPA.docx (4 pages)
	O2019-12 EXHIBIT C - Project Plans.pdf (21 pages)
	O2019-12 EXHIBIT D - MMRP.pdf (8 pages)
	O2019-12 EXHIBIT E - Findings of Fact.docx (4 pages)
	O2019-12 EXHIBIT F - Conditions.docx (16 pages)

	11. TAX EQUITY AND FISCAL RESPONSIBILITY ACT HEARING FOR HEALTHRIGHT 360 FACILITIES -
	R2019-141 TEFRA Hearing HealthRIGHT 360_FINAL.doc (5 pages)


	CURRENT BUSINESS
	12. HOUSING RELATED PARKS PROGRAM PROJECT UPDATE -

	WORKSHOP
	13. COMMUNITY ADVISORY GROUP UPDATE -

	FUTURE AGENDA
	14. FUTURE AGENDA -

	CITY MANAGER'S WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT
	WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT


